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() Five Year Financial Summary

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
BE017E  HE20166  HZE20155  HE2014F  HZ2013F
12308 127318 12A31H 12A31H 127318
LERE ItFE tEE LEE ItFE
(restated) (restated) (restated)
(BE5) (mE5) (&5
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
TER THET FEL FHEL FER
Revenue £ 1]
- Continuing operations -RBELEER 497,935 333,553 56,411 - -
- Discontinued operations —BRIEZEK - 5,058 10,610 16,540 21,598
497,935 338,611 67,021 16,540 21,598
Result EJ
- Continuing operations -FEEEER
Profit/(loss) before income BRATER AT
tax expense whl/ (E8) (158,026) (98,339) (46,219) 16,876 (48,180)
Income tax expense AR (1,535) (1,243) (6,112) = =
(159,561) (09,578) (52,331) 16,876 (48,180)
- Discontinued operations -BRIEEEER
Profit/(loss) before income BRATER T A
tax expense wH/ (B8) - 5,509 (422,428) (8,157) (10,332)
Income tax credits/(expense) FERER/ (X H) = - (2,952) 1,701 (2,820)
- 5,509 (425,380) (6,456) (13,152)
Profit/(loss) for the year rEERF/(EB) (159,561) (94,069) (477,711) 10,420 (61,332)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: ATALEERR/(BE)
Owners of the Company . NGE 2PN
Profit/(loss) for the year from TEERBREERL
continuing operations wkl/ (B8) (160,367) (102,495) (53,141) 16,876 (48,180)
Profit/(loss) for the year from REEERILEEET
discontinued operations &l (ER) - 5,509 (425,380) (6,456) (13,152)
(160,367) (96,986) (478,521) 10,420 (61,332)
Non-controlling interests FERES
Profit for the year from AEERELEEB L
continuing operations el 806 2917 810 S =
(159,561) (94,069) (477,711) 10,420 (61,332)
Earning/(loss) per share FRERN/ (EB)
- Basic (HK cents) - EAR(E) (0.955) (0.556) (2.682) 0.064 (0.467)
- Diluted (HK cents) - B (510) (0.955) (0.556) (2.682) 0.060 (0.467)
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LFEMBERR

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December ~ 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
120174 20165 120155 R2014% 120134
123180 127318 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TET FHT THT T THER
Assets and liabilities SEHAE
Non-current assets ErREEE 4,787,070 4,335,653 4,251,704 4,287,972 4,154,453
Net current assets/(liabilities) TEEE/(AE)FE (204,291) 220,904 (208,848) 121,919 (226,968)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,418,284) (1,464,914) (539,551) (355,902) (480,248)
Net assets BESE 3,164,495 3,001,643 3,508,305 4,053,989 3,447,237
Non-controlling interests IR (16,655) (15,512) (14,668) = =
Equity attributable to A/NGIE DN
owners of the Company Efh s 3,147,840 3,076,131 3,488,637 4,053,989 3,447,237
2017 total gas production recorded at 81.22 million 2017 pipeline gas sales accounted for 100% of
cubic meter and gas sales at 72.62 million cubic meter total gas sales
2017 BEREESI22AEY AR 201 7TF B BIHEHBIHEE 2100%
HEBET262BB K
million
cubic meter 0
=B YK 10%
Residential piped sales
10000 REGHNE

81.22

2017 CBM Sales Mix

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 90% 0172 FRERAERA
Industrial piped sales
Sales Production TEREEHE
(million cubic meter) (million cubic meter)
HEE (BB A XK) EfRE(A&LHK)
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Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited
hEHRIZERBRAE

Coalbed Methane
Business

BRERER

The Group holds
70% interest of
Sanjiao CBM

Block through a
production sharing
contract, which
PetroChina is the
business partner of
the project

SEEBE—MEM®
DRERER=X
BB SRR 58 70%H)
o HEAER
(R liak Y=

Raw Coal Washing
Project

REREER

The Group holds a
75% equity interest
of a raw coal
washing project
company located
in Qinshui Basin,
Shanxi Province

SEERLN LT
YK B — KR KR
SIRTAE RAI75%

e

W

Crude Oil Business

VG E 2

The Group sold
Shaanxi crude

oil business in
September 2016
and is actively
seeking for merger
and acquisitions
opportunities of oil
and gas project in
North America

EEFN20165F9A8 H
EPFMA R 1]
[ERE =k = Hm
M ARARRIAR HE
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Financial Services
Business

SRR TS

The Group owns
a wholly-owned
financial leasing
subsidiary in
Shaanxi Province

SERREHA — K
2EMBREEER
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LNG Station Project
BILXARIEH

The Group holds a
30% equity interest
of a LNG project
located in Shanxi
Province
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Corporate Statement @

ERERXELEM

Strategic Goal
2k i B =

Dedicated to become a professional international
oil & gas explorer and producer

BB AEEMEMRLHR B ERFAERS

Corporate Value

EXEES

People Oriented
Effective Use of Resources
Bring Harmony with Great Virtue

BUABEx ERAR EEHY

Business Principle
HE Rt

Equal emphasis on business and capital
Equal attention to resources and talent

BEXNREALE HRM\ALTLE

Enterprise Spirit
e EFH

Passion Efficiency Execution

HE S% BT
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Y Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Sino Oil and
Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”), | hereby present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Overview

Atmospheric pollution prevention is one of the focuses of the
national environmental protection policy in China. To deal with
smoggy weather and improve air quality, the Chinese government
vigorously launched “coal-to-gas” projects in 2017 and put high
emphasis on securing the natural gas supply, whilst actively
supporting enterprises to scale up domestic gas production. We
believe that the “coal-to-gas” initiative will become one of the
most significant drivers of natural gas consumption. According to
the statistics of National Development and Reform Commission,
growth of natural gas demand reached 14.8% in 2017 compared
to that of only 6.6% in 2016. Meanwhile, the supply-side reform
in Shanxi province yielded remarkable results and made some
progress, contributing to the gradual recovery of the local
economy. The provincial government expedited the development
of coalbed methane, the strategic emerging industry, and the
development of national comprehensive energy bases to ensure
the implementation of “Gasification for Shanxi” strategy. We are
therefore optimistic about the natural gas consumer market in
China, and are confident of the prospect of the coalbed methane
industry.

BHARR -

AAERRFEBARERBERRAA (AR
Al - EREMBARSEIAEEEFS
(EEg ) REAKEHE_ZT—+tF+=
A=+—HLWNFEXRE-

e
RRARARHFEBERRABRRNEHS Z
— REHBERR HNEEZEREE &
BRR2017TFRNEELERARI TR FE
ERARREERNORE TEBIHEEAR
BMBEAXAREE - BHARB RER]
KR RARBERENZEAB Nz — RIE
TEERERLRNEZNERER  2017F
RARFTRERZED14.8%  M2016F £ R
6.6% ° RBF - IIPaEHARIRERBER -
REEBRMEKRR  ERKEERLRLE - ER
JiF I BR 3% R K T SR L BB A 1 B B E SR M2 R
B RER G BEREM - RIEE [RAL 1L 78] B &
Bt At HAHBBERARBED SR
LBRE  HRBRITFXAMIITMED °
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Backed by the above favorable factors, our Sanjiao CBM
Project (“Sanjiao Project”) continued to develop steadily in the
preceding year. The Group actively expanded sales during the
year, thus the sale-to-production rate of Sanjiao Project reached
approximately 90%. Meanwhile, our project team pushed forward
various infrastructure projects in full swing. Last year, the annual
production capacity of the project exceeded 100 million cubic
meters with 16 new wells having access to the pipeline network.
Besides, the expansion of the CBM processing station has been
completed with daily processing capacity of 500,000 cubic
meters. In order to cope with the development of Sanjiao Project,
the project team has commenced the expansion of the CBM
processing station to a daily processing capacity of 750,000

cubic meters.

ERBES

ELaFfFEEZEIRT SE=XXKERSE
BE(ZXRBEEDREFREBTIER -5F
RERNBEREAREES  —RXBEHEHL RE
#190% : B W - 1B B B BX I8 0 X a0 55 i 3
EEAMERIRE BEFEEREFER
WK FEI6OHFBEAETE - mE
[ R I% ER AR K 3 B2 58 K B B IR B8 J1 #5058 3
FARMNBERIR - RREA=-RBEEZERS
% BEEEBRCHREREE R EBKK
VhHBRIRAE NETSE S KM TIE -
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‘;; Chairman’s Statement
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Prospect

Given the macro policy support and long-term growth potential of
the project, the Group believes that the growth of the earnings of
Sanjiao Project would be huge. The Group will continue to focus
its resources on developing Sanjiao Project and increasing the
production capacity in order to achieve steady and sustainable
growth and lay a solid foundation for the expansion of business
presence.

In 2017, the international crude oil market has mounted a
turnaround. With the positive impact of the output reduction
agreement with the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting
Countries, fundamentals of the industry continue to improve and
the international crude oil market is regaining its balance, with oil
price rising steadily. We will capture investment opportunities as
appropriate to steer the Group for a long-term and sustainable
development. We will actively identify potential merger and
acquisition projects relating to the oil and gas industry chain
in China and other countries, and perform in-depth research
and assessment in a prudent and pragmatic manner to ensure
that relevant decision-making could fully protect the interests of
shareholders.

FE=
EZERRXBANBEEREARPERED
ZHEET AEEHRE=XHEEZANEER
ENEE SESEBESETERER=X]A
B RBAER UKEBEFRER RHEAXE
BREETERERENER

2017F R R MG T EFES - BEE A M
BHEEASRER EIARETER  TEE

AETENE HHERABFEOREE—FE
#OHERTAS - RABEMSEENERE
BeE TREAEEBREFBRR -HMER
1R B A S SO SR SR SR AR R M B AR BF BB
BHE NAEEBENEREEETRAHAGTM
AP - R R R BE

0 R IR 2 o
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In the meantime, the Board, after careful consideration, is of the
opinion that optimizing the shareholder structure is beneficial
to the steady development of the Group and achieving a higher
standard of corporate governance. Accordingly, with the long-
term support from loyal shareholders who share the common
vision with the Group, the Board is actively introducing quality
strategic shareholders such that the Group could maximise its
corporate value.

Appreciation

In March 2018, the Board introduced Mr. Zhang Yongdong, a
financial investor, as a shareholder of the Company. | would
like to thank Mr. Zhang for his recognition of the Group’s
business operations as well as his strong support for its future
development.

Lastly, I, on behalf of the Group, would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders, business partners and
investors for their trust and support over the years. | would also
like to extend my deepest appreciation to all our staff members.
All our colleagues will continue to work hard to bring fruitful
returns to our shareholders.

Dai Xiaobing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018

+xass O
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}' Calendar of Events

Sanjiao CBM Project was
granted a mining permit by the
Ministry of Land and Resources
of the PRC with an approved
CBM production capacity of
500 million cubic meters per
annum. The mining permit shall
be valid for 25 years from July
2017 to July 2042

XEERER ERERELERPIRT GRBHUXR) @ BEFAENLEEREAS
FEEEVHKEBR - BHEEVMEA25F (A2017F7AE2042F7H)

12 Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

Issued a total of 3,380,000,000
Subscription Shares to an
independent investor, fund
raised approximately HK$178

million
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FEBE

The gas sale-to-production
rate has rebounded to
approximately

FRFYEHLEKIERFE

0%

Sales
The Group actively expanded its sales channels of CBM, the gas sale-to-production rate has

rebounded to approximately 90%

Infrastructure

e 9 newly added wells

e 16 wells newly accessed to a gas collection pipeline network

e Over 100 million cubic meters of production capacity was built

e Completed the expansion of CBM processing station, its total CBM daily processing capacity has
reached 500,000 cubic meters

e To cope with the increasing production volume of Sanjiao CBM Project, the Group has undertaken
the expansion of the station. Its daily processing capacity will reach 750,000 cubic meters upon

completion

HE

SENMIHE - FATHIEHL T AERAZELI0%

e R

o Figon

o 16 HEAER

o CEAKEBIB1 BHER

s EXKEREERERR KM ITIE  HERERBEIEENDEOELTK

s REEE=RKEEBREETHRANKERES  SECRREREEREEH K ARBENES
758 FRE T
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Sino Oil and Gas
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) recorded a total revenue of approximately
HK$497,935,000 (2016: HK$333,553,000), which has increased
by nearly 49% as compared with that of last year. The
revenue included the sales of Coalbed Methane (“CBM”) in our
Sanjiao CBM Project of approximately HK$76,663,000 (2016:
HK$57,467,000), the sales derived from raw coal washing project
located in Qinshui Basin, Shanxi Province of approximately
HK$417,637,000 (2016: HK$276,086,000), and the income
from the financial services business in Shaanxi Province of
approximately HK$3,635,000 (2016: HK$866,000 included in
“other income”). During the year, the Group recorded earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) of
approximately HK$237,819,000 (2016: EBITDA HK$121,613,000)
which included other gains from fair value changes of
approximately HK$230,317,000 (2016: HK$55,514,000).

During the year, the operation of Sanjiao CBM Project has
improved and CBM sales has increased by approximately 33%
as compared with that of last year. In 2017, the Group actively
expanded its sales channels of CBM, coupled with the substantial
increase in demand for natural gas in China, the gas sale-to-
production rate has rebounded to approximately 90% (2016:
72%). In the meantime, government subsidy and VAT tax refund
of approximately HK$29,447,000 (2016: HK$22,942,000) for
sales of CBM for the year 2016 has been received and recorded
as “other income” during the year. The Group believes that
with the concerted efforts of the team, Sanjiao CBM Project will
generate long-term and substantial returns.

During the year, the Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$159,561,000 (2016: net loss HK$94,069,000). It was
mainly attributable to the increase in the finance costs incurred
arising from the convertible notes and borrowings during the
year. The finance costs during the year were approximately
HK$322,173,000 (2016: HK$152,962,000). According to the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, part of the finance
costs were non-cash items, such as imputed interest on
convertible notes and amortization of transaction costs, and
the finance costs actually affecting the cash flow of the year
was approximately HK$128,755,000 (2016: HK$104,237,000).
Meanwhile, at the end of last year, due to the temporary
suspension of raw coal supply from the supplier of raw coal
washing project, the financial performance of the project declined,
and resulting in a recognition of an impairment loss of goodwiill
of approximately HK$46,705,000 (Please refer to note 17 to the
financial statements for details). The impairment has no impact on
the cash flow of the project.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017
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The interest income amounted to approximately HK$30,143,000
(2016: HK$49,822,000) disclosed in “other income”, mainly
derived from the refundable deposits of CAD40 million of the
Group’s possible acquisitions located in Alberta, Canada.

During the year, the Group was exposed to certain key risks
and uncertainties which have been disclosed in note 47 to the
financial statements.

Natural Gas and Oil

Coalbed Methane — Sanjiao Block in the Ordos Basin
Project Overview

Through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Orion Energy International
Inc. (“Orion”), the Group entered into a production sharing
contract (“PSC”) with China National Petroleum Corporation
(“PetroChina”), its partner in the PRC, for exploration, utilization
and production of the CBM field in the Sanjiao block, located in
the Ordos Basin in Shanxi and Shaanxi provinces. The Group has
a 70% interest in the PSC. The PSC covers a block in the Ordos
Basin in Shanxi and Shaanxi provinces, with a total site area
of 383 square kilometers. According to a competent person’s
updated report provided to the Company by the end of 2015,
the proved and probable CBM reserves of Sanjiao CBM Project
amounted to approximately 8.301 billion cubic meters and the
net present value at 10% discount of the future revenue of the
reserve was approximately HK$11.498 billion.

Following the approval of its overall development plan by the
National Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC”) in
2015, Sanjiao CBM Project was granted a mining permit by the
Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC with an approved
CBM production capacity of 500 million cubic meters per annum.
The mining permit shall be valid for 25 years from July 2017 to
July 2042. At this point, all necessary administrative approvals
under the current PRC laws and regulations have been obtained
for exploration, development, exploitation and production phases
of Sanjiao CBM Project.

sEEHRRSH )

ARBENREMBBEANNNERASTRD
30,143,000/ 7T (20164 : 49,822,000/
o) RMBRAETBEREAKEELRNMNE
AMBAFENRKBEENAIRERS
40,000,000/07T ©
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MARNAIRBZBEERETET  ZXHEER
HEZFRE (EBE+) 4 A83.018 L
FOoK - MfFEEREBAFRE (10%FR)
HE114.98B8 T ©

REEREBEISTFREMEFRER
XEBNKEZES (BRFEXE) #HEE -
RAF7TAMEBERBE L ERBE T CGRBEHF
AE) BERKNEERARASFSRYLA
KEER BB B B25F (B2017F7AH
F2042F7H) B ZREEBRBEEAH
HREBREARAE AR  £EMBR  KESP
BB T AEERMEENTRTAIHEIEERE -

2017 £, | FEHRERERAA

15



&) management Discussion and Analysis

16

Infrastructure

As at 31 December 2017, the Sanjiao CBM Project has
completed a total of 117 wells, comprising 65 multilateral
horizontal wells and 52 vertical wells. Out of the total 117 wells,
85 wells were in the normal dewatering and gas producing
stage, of which 85 wells had accessed to a gas collection
pipeline network. A ground pipeline network of approximately 18
kilometers, inter-well pipelines of approximately 58.5 kilometers,
and outbound pipelines of approximately 17 kilometers were
completed. Approximately total 68.9 kilometers of 10KV power
grid and branch power line were also completed.

During the year, the Group has completed the expansion of the
CBM processing station, its total CBM daily processing capacity
has reached 500,000 cubic meters. To cope with the increasing
production volume of Sanjiao CBM Project, the Group has
undertaken the expansion of the station. Its daily processing
capacity will reach 750,000 cubic meters upon completion.

Sales

During the year, Sanjiao CBM Project recorded EBITDA of
approximately HK$66,460,000 (2016: HK$47,806,000), which
has increased by 39% as compared with that of last year. CBM
sales amounted to HK$76,663,000 (2016: HK$57,467,000),
which has increased by 33% as compared with that of last
year. During the year, the production and sales of CBM were
approximately 81.22 million cubic meters (2016: 69.5 million
cubic meters) and 72.62 million cubic meters (2016: 50.02 million
cubic meters) respectively, resulting in a gas sale-to-production
rate of approximately 90% for the year (2016: 72%). In terms of
the composition of gas sales throughout the period, industrial
piped CBM sales accounted for approximately 90% of total sales
(2016: 83.7%), while residential piped CBM sales contributed
approximately 10% (2016: 15%). During the year, there was no
compressed natural gas sales (2016: 1.3%).
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Raw Coal Washing Project Located in Shanxi Province
The Group acquired a 75% equity interest of a raw coal washing
project company located in Qinshui Basin, Shanxi Province in
mid-2015. With the deepening of China’s supply-side reforms,
the de-capacity of coal industry has achieved remarkable results
and the coal market sustains a good momentum in 2017. The
price of refined coal increased as compared with that of last
year, thus, the turnover of the project has grown substantially.
During the year, the coal washing operation recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$417,637,000 (2016: HK$276,086,000)
which has increased by approximately 51% as compared with
that of last year. The total sale of refined coal of the project was
approximately 340,000 tonnes (2016: 325,000 tonnes). However,
at the end of last year, due to its internal factors, the project
supplier has temporarily suspended the supply of raw coal,
resulting a decline in the financial performance and recognized
an impairment loss of goodwill amounted to approximately
HK$46,705,000.

China’s coal industry is gradually recovering, and the Group
expects that the project operation will fully return to normal within
the second quarter of 2018. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement entered into by both parties, the vendor will provide
the Group with profit guarantee for six consecutive years. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has received
in full the shortfall of the Guaranteed Profit of approximately
RMB14,811,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
project has already contributed stable income and cash flow to
the Group.

Others

At the end of 2016, the Group set up a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Shaanxi Zhao Yin Finance Leasing Company Limited (“Zhao Yin
Finance Leasing “) in Shaanxi Province. The major purpose of the
establishment of this finance leasing company is to strengthen
the Group’s bank-enterprise relations so as to create cooperation
channels; as well as to seek for the suitable financing channels
and sources for the Group’s upcoming possible mergers and
acquisitions (“M&A”) and development. Further it also provides
short-term investment opportunities for the Group’s capital.
During the year, Zhao Yin Finance Leasing granted a total of
RMB60 million short-term loans with the annual interest rate
of 10% to two independent third parties. During the year, the
business has recorded an income of approximately HK$3,635,000
(2016: HK$866,000).
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Possible Acquisition — Oilfield in Alberta, Canada

With the purpose of further enriching the Group’s resources
reserves, apart from actively seeking suitable oil and gas blocks
in China, the Group is also exploring investment opportunities in
overseas upstream businesses. The Group hence entered into
two non-legally-binding memorandums of understanding (“MOUSs”)
in June and September 2014. The acquisition targets are oil and
gas fields located in Alberta Province, Canada.

Related due diligence review on the resources and financial
aspect is being conducted. The Company expects that overseas
acquisition activities can expand the Group’s business portfolio
of natural gas and oil which will contribute profit and cash flow.
Further, this can augment the Group’s overall risk resistance
capacity when facing unstable external factors.

In December 2017, the Group and the vendor have agreed to
further extend the time limit for entering into formal agreements
in respect of the terms in the MOUs to 30 September 2018, and
both parties are confident that the transaction can be finalized
within the year. Otherwise, the Group will advise the vendor to
return the relevant deposits.

Summary of Resources
The Group’s oil and gas reserves, as at 31 December 2017, are
summarized as follows:

BRI FEIE B — (152 02 X FT F 1615 & 59
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Category Coalbed Methane
Reserve

=5l RERMHE
Billion cubic feet (Gross)

TIET 5 HE R (HEEE)

Proved (1P) EE(P) 134.9 (Note a)
Proved and Probable (2P) BE R (2P) 431.4 (M 5Ea)

(@) The Company has made an estimation on the reserve as at
31 December 2017 on the basis of a competent person’s
report prepared in accordance with the standards for
“Petroleum Resources Management System” recognized
under Chapter 18 of the Listing Rules on the Sanjiao CBM
Field reserves as of 30 September 2015, adjusted and
updated based on CBM production volume.
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(b) Reserve translation reference: one cubic meter of natural
gas is equivalent to approximately 35.2 cubic feet.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the total expenditure
capitalised for the Sanjiao CBM Project was approximately
HK$129 million (2016: HK$377 million), which mainly comprises
of (i) construction works in progress of oil and gas fields, (ii) direct
expenses and (i) finance expenses, The breakdown of which is
as follows:

(i) Construction works in progress of oil and gas field mainly
representing drilling expenses approximately HK$61 million
(2016: HK$234 million), dewatering expenses amounted
to approximately HK$9 million (2016: HK$26 million) and
ground facility expenditure amounted to approximately
HK$20 million (2016: HK$26 million).

(i)  Direct expenses mainly represent direct labour cost
(included, but not limit to, petroleum engineers and
geologists etc.) amounted to approximately HK$24 million
(2016: HK$20 million) and other direct cost incidental to the
exploration and development of the Sanjiao CBM Project
amounted to approximately HK$9 million (2016: HK$40
million); and

(i)  The total finance expenses capitalised during the year was
approximately HK$6 million (2016: HK$31 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group incurred
approximately HK$11 million (2016: HK$41 million) drilling costs
for the farm-in project in Canada as disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements.

sEEHRRSH )

b) HMEBREZ2E: RAABILHTKHNER
3523 FHER o
EXZH

B E2017F12A31BIEFAR - BRAZRKEE
RIE B MBEERNLr 4 A129,000,000%
7T (20164F @ 377,000,000/ 7C) * ER T E A

(VRREBZERTIE

(i) B % X R (i) B 7% 2

Ho AT

(i)

BMRBAZEEIRBRIEAEHRHTIR
% Hh #61,000,000/ 7T (20164 :
234,000,000 7T) * HEER TR X 2 4
9,000,000/ 7t (20164 : 26,000,00078
7T) K E I A2 32 $ £920,000,0007%8
7T (20164F : 26,000,000/ 7T) °

BEREIHTIZRERTIE (BEET
R AR IRMMENSE) L&
24,000,000/ Jt (20164 : 20,000,000
B REMBEER=ZXEEREE #
RRMBEEOEZE I L - £49,000,0007%
JC (20164 : 40,000,000/ 7T) + &

FNE AL 48 8 75 37 49 56,000,000
77T (20164 : 31,000,000/ 7T)

HE2017F12A318  AEBERUANE
X Byfarm-inIE B & 4 # X 5 3 £911,000,000
7 7T (20164F : 41,000,0007% 7T ) (B 7 B 75 3k
=HIzE18) o

2017 £, | FEHRERERAA

19



&) management Discussion and Analysis

20

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$3,164,000,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$3,091,000,000) while its total assets were approximately
HK$5,410,000,000 (31 December 2016: HK$5,245,000,000).
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had external borrowings
including the liability component of convertible notes of
approximately HK$1,772,000,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$1,553,000,000), and the gearing ratio based on total assets
was approximately 32.75% (31 December 2016: 29.61%).
Information on the Group’s collateral assets and repayment of
the Group’s borrowings is set out in notes 33 and 34 to the
financial statements as disclosed in this annual report. By the end
of December 2017, the current ratio was approximately 0.75 (31
December 2016: 1.32).

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio was still at an
acceptable level. However, during the year, in addition to the
large capital needs for the development of Sanjiao CBM Project,
redemption of certain convertible notes matured during the year
has led to a relatively low current ratio in short-term.

The current liabilities of the Group were principally attributable
to the trade, other payables and accruals, convertible notes and
borrowings, which may have impact on the Group’s liquidity
position and the ability to meet short-term financial obligations.

Subsequent to year end, the Company issued a total of
3,380,000,000 Subscription Shares at a price of HK$0.053 per
Subscription Share to an independent investor in March 2018
(“Subscriptions”). The net proceeds from the Subscriptions
of approximately HK$178,000,000 are mainly used for the
repayment of certain financial obligations.

Notwithstanding the net proceeds of approximately HK$178
million from the placing, the Group would still remain in net
current liabilities comparing to the net current liabilities of the
Company of approximately HK$204 million as at 31 December
2017.
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In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will be able to repay the outstanding debts
and be able to finance its future working capital and other
financial requirements. The directors have considered all possible
financial alternatives to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to
improve the financial position of the Group, which include, but
are not limited to, issuance of new shares, debt financing, right
issue, open offer or internal cash resources to meet the financial
requirements of the Group. Further, three major shareholders of
the Company have confirmed that they will provide continuing
and sufficient support to the Group when the Group face
difficulties in settlement of financial obligations in relation to
the above-mentioned borrowings and convertible notes and
finance its operation for at least twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. Despite auditor is unable to ascertain their
financial position as individuals to have sufficient resources to
meet the Group’s operating and financing needs within this year
(please refer to the Independent Auditor’s Report), the Company
is confident that that the above three shareholders have sufficient
financial capacity to provide necessary support to the Group.

The directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group would have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet
its upcoming financial obligations. With the growth of the CBM
operation, the Group’s overall financial position will improve
gradually, and accordingly the going concern issue should be
resolved in next financial year.

During the year, the Company did not conduct any fund raising
activities.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales
and purchase transactions and recognized liabilities of assets that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which they relate. As at 31 December 2017,
no related hedges were made by the Group. In respect to trade
and other receivables and payables held in currencies other than
the functional currency of the operations to which they relate,
the Group ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed approximately 315
employees. The remuneration policy of the Group is based on the
prevailing remuneration level in the market and the performance
of respective companies and individual employees.

Environmental Protection

The Group is responsible for its impact to the environmental
arising from its business operations. During the year, the Group
strictly complied with the local environmental regulation of
the PRC. Details are disclosed in the Environmental, Social,
Governance Report 2017 to be issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

PROSPECTS

To reduce air pollution and get rid of the dependence to coal,
China has accelerated the pace of “coal to gas”. Although this
move has brought new challenges to the balance between
natural gas supply and demand, it has also brought tremendous
opportunities for the natural gas market in China. At the end
of 2017, 10 government departments including the NDRC, the
Ministry of Finance, and the National Energy Administration
jointly issued the “2017-2021 Plan for Clean Heating in Winter in
Northern Regions” (“Heating Plan”). The Heating Plan proposed
to focus on “2+26” cities, with efforts to promote natural gas as a
substitute for coal-fired heating. It is estimated that in 2017-2021,
an accumulated new area of 1.8 billion square meters will be
covered by natural gas heating in the “2+26” cities with additional
23 billion cubic meters of gas to be used.

As a vital strategic complement to natural gas, CBM has
become the important carrier to promote energy production
and consumption revolution. With the realization of large-scale
development of CBM, the economic benefits of CBM exploitation
will become increasingly apparent. During the “13th Five-Year
Plan”, CBM is expected to usher the peak of investment and
development. In December 2016, National Energy Administration
published ¢(CBM development and utilization of the “13th Five
Year Planning”) which has reflected the acceleration of the pace
of CBM exploration and development; the optimization of the
industry structure and key technology breakthrough, production
of CBM will increase significantly. In recent years, Shanxi Province
has been eager to speed up the promotion of the strategic target
of the “Gasification for Shanxi”, and the introduction of a series of
industrial policies to promote the development of CBM, such as,
the access relaxation of CBM exploration, the promotion of the
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fair access of pipeline network facilities, rationalizing the pricing
mechanism and exploring the marketization of the transfer of
mining rights, and therefore to encourage a healthy and orderly
development of the CBM industry. The strong support from the
national and regional governments to the CBM industry have
created a favorable environment for the growth of the sector.
The Group believes that the CBM industry is having a flourishing
development prospect and a huge market potential.

Under the optimistic atmosphere of the extension of the
production cut agreement by the Organization of Petroleum
Exporting Countries (“OPEC”) and the oil supply affected by the
Middle East geopolitics, oil prices rebounded from low levels
in 2017, and the international oil prices rose by 12.5% for the
full year. According to the Global Economic Prospects released
by the World Bank Group in January 2018, attributable to the
a pickup in manufacturing and trade, rising market confidence,
and stabilizing commodity prices, it is expected that the global
economic growth to edge up to 3.1% in 2018. Thanks to the
steady growth of the global economy and the determination of
OPEC and non-OPEC to maintain a balanced supply, the Group
is optimistic about the international oil prices performance in
medium to long-term. The Group is taking the initiative to seize
the opportunity to accelerate the pace of overseas merger
and acquisition (M&A) and extend the industrial chain so as to
establish the most competitive business portfolio.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to promote the
development of Sanjiao, formulate a clear plan, aim for a more
challenging production capacity and production target, and
make every effort to build the Group’s first benchmark project.
At the same time, the Group will continue to actively look for
M&A opportunities that have reasonable and potential returns in
order to hasten the Group’s business development and strive to
achieve a better performance while maintaining long-term growth
momentum and creating substantial returns for the shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. Dai Xiaobing, aged 50, was appointed as Executive Director
of the Company in May 2010 and Chairman of the Board of the
Company in September 2011. Dr. Dai is in charge of the overall
affairs of the Group. He is also responsible for the Group’s human
resources management (including human resources planning,
personnel deployment, remuneration scheme and staff training),
capital operation (including financing, investment and merger and
acquisition of projects) and technology management (including
introduction and application of technology), etc. Dr. Dai was
awarded a PhD in Econometrics by the School of Economics,
Jilin University, the PRC. Dr. Dai is experienced in the corporate
finance sector as well as merger and acquisitions and corporate
restructuring of companies in the PRC. He is also familiar with
the capital market in the PRC. Dr. Dai had been one of the co-
founder of China Securities Journal organized by Xinhua News
Agency and was a journalist, department head and deputy
general manager of the agency, through which he has extensive
experience in government public relations and investor relations.
He was also an independent director of Jiangxi Ganneng Co.,
Ltd. (TFZERE B BR AR A)), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange.

Mr. King Hap Lee, aged 55, was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in November 2010 and Executive
Director of the Company in September 2011. Currently, Mr.
King serves as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
(and Deputy Chairman of the Board). Mr. King is responsible
for the Group’s strategic planning, operation planning, external
relationship and organizational management (including rules and
systems, organizational structure and corporate culture). Mr.
King graduated from Xian Jiaotong University in 1983. He worked
for various central government departments and state-owned
enterprises for a considerable period of time and has more than
20 years’ experience in government organizations and enterprises
management. He was the deputy director and chairman of
Workers Union of Mechanic and Electronic Products Importation
and Exportation Office of the State Council, the deputy general
manager of B T M5 XYII&E A7 (China Machinery
Industry Marketing & Supply Shenzhen Group Corporation*) and
managing director of F#ZEFE AT (China National Machinery
Hong Kong Company?*).
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Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence, aged 53, was appointed as
Executive Director of the Company in March 2009. He is also the
chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Wan is responsible for
the Group’s financial management (including investment budget,
allocation of funding, control on sales as well as inspection
and audit of financial matters), legal matters (including tracking
on legal matters, risk control and compliance monitoring) and
internal affairs of the headquarter of the Group. Mr. Wan holds a
bachelor degree of commerce and a master degree of business
administration. He has years of experience in accounting and
financial management and has worked for international accounting
firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. He is a fellow member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia. He is also an
independent non-executive director of China Primary Energy
Holdings Limited and Eagle Legend Asia Limited, both of which
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Hua, aged 52, was appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2014. Mr. Chen holds a bachelor
degree and founded the Kingkey Group Limited (“Kingkey Group”)
in 1994. He is the founder, chairman and chief executive officer
of Kingkey Group. Kingkey Group is a Chinese well-known brand
with an integrated business comprising property development,
hotel, property management, financial investment, golf club and
beverage operations. Kingkey Group has invested and developed
total construction area of over 5 million square metres and its
constructions have been awarded various prizes by different
cities, provinces and the state. It is one of the Top 50 Property
Enterprises in China and renowned in the property sector across
the nation. Kingkey Group took four years to complete the
‘KK100” Complex which has become the landmark of Shenzhen
and one of the tallest complex building in the world. Mr. Chen
also actively involves in various community charities and has
accumulated hundreds of millions RMB charitable donations over
the years.
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Mr. Huang Shaowu, aged 47, was appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company in June 2014. Mr. Huang was the main
founder for Shenzhen Aisidi Co., Ltd. (“Aisidi”) (shares of which
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) in 1998 and it is
the “Fortune” 500 enterprises in China. Mr. Huang is currently
a director of Aisidi, the chairman of Shenzhen Sinomaster
Investment Group Co., Ltd. (FRIITHNBIREEEBFR AR,
“SMT”) which is the controlling shareholder of Aisidi, the chairman
and general manager of RINTTEHEREERHR AR which is
major shareholder of Aisidi and a director of Yuanjing International
Limited which is substantial shareholder of the Company. SMT
is a large investment conglomerate with investments in mobile
internet and related businesses, energy, optical communication,
ecological agriculture, supply chain and real estate businesses.

Mr. He Lin Feng, aged 48, was appointed as Non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2014. Mr. He holds a bachelor
degree in Economics from Renmin University of China. Mr. He has
been an executive director of /&R IERHE AR AT since 2006.
He was a director of ZREM &R E B A A from 1996 to 2005
and the business manager of ZKEMEFEZEAE from 1991 to
1995. Mr. He has extensive experience in financial management
and project investment businesses.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter, aged 58, was appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in April
2006. Mr. Wong is currently a practising barrister-at-law of the
High Court of the Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Wong holds a master
degree of commerce in marketing from University of Strathclyde,
UK and a post-graduate certificate in laws from University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong has more than 20 years of extensive
experience in legal practice.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017
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Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick, BBS, JP, aged 69, was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company in August 2010. Professor Wong is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and Managing Practicing
Director of Patrick Wong CPA Limited. He is also a Chartered
Secretary and a Certified Tax Advisor. He has over 40 years’
experience in the accountancy profession. Professor Wong was
accorded Doctor of Philosophy in Business, was awarded a
Badge of Honour by the Queen of England, was appointed a
Justice of the Peace and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) by the Hong Kong Government of SAR. He was appointed
Adjunct Professor, School of Accounting and Finance, The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University from 2002 to 2013. Professor Wong
is currently an independent non-executive director of Galaxy
Entertainment Group Limited, CC Land Holdings Limited, Water
Oasis Group Limited, National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited, Winox Holdings Limited, Li Bao Ge Group
Limited and BAIC Motor Corporation Limited and he resigned as
independent non-executive director of Bisu Technology Group
International Limited (formerly known as Excel Development
(Holdings) Limited), Munsun Capital Group Limited (formerly
known as China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd.),
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Company
Limited and Real Nutriceutical Group Limited on 10 August
2015, 3 October 2016, 23 June 2017 and 12 October 2017
respectively, all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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Dr. Wang Yanbin, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in September 2011.
Dr. Wang is a professor and tutor for doctoral candidates of
China University of Mining & Technology (Beijing), and head
of the Scientific Research Office of China University of Mining
& Technology (Beijing). Dr. Wang holds a bachelor degree in
coalfield geology from the faculty of geology of Huainan Mining
Institute in China. He also holds a master degree in coal petrology
and coalfield geology and a doctor degree in coalfield, oil and
gas geology and organic geochemistry from China University of
Mining & Technology (Beijing). Prior to 1993, Dr. Wang mainly
engaged in teaching and scientific research on coalfield geology
and coalbed methane geology. Since 1993, he has focused on
geological research on coalfield geology, oil, natural gas and
coalbed methane. He has led the development of a project
for the National Natural Science Foundation of China, and few
scientific projects for China National Petroleum Corporation and
China Petrochemical Corporation. Dr. Wang has also participated
in more than 30 scientific projects in cooperation with various oil
fields and Mining Bureaus nationwide. He was granted the State
Scientific and Technological Progress Award for several times and
has published 3 books and more than 70 academic papers.

Dr. Dang Weihua, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 2013. Dr. Dang
currently works for Jb R 1E1E(FE) R EHFT as a lawyer. Prior
to this, he served as the General Manager of Shenzhen Branch of
Changjiang Securities Company Limited (“Changjiang Securities”)
and the Chief Representative of Shenzhen Representative Office
of Changjiang Securities, Deputy General Manager of Asset
Preservation Department and Legal & Compliance Department
of Changjiang Securities. Dr. Dang had worked in Changjiang
Securities (formerly known as Hubei Securities Company Limited)
for 23 years and served in different departments and positions.
He has extensive experience in securities industry. Dr. Dang
holds a master degree of business administration at Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law. He was awarded a PhD in
Econometrics by the School of Economics, Jilin University. Dr.
Dang holds Chinese lawyer qualification as well as securities
practice qualification.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

EEFEL 6155 R2011FOAEZE AR
RAIZBUFNTES -THLRATRHE
EXRB(LER)HE -BLEEM UEFEH
BERZ (LR BMMERR - TETFAEF
Bl EMBEXZERMEREAME S+ B4 -
UEPBEBEAZLEREES2MERMLE
BELTEMEER HRME 2R A KR
b BB LB - P93 F AT TERFHE
HinEMEERMEEBAORBRMIE-
1993F A - T ERFHEHMWE - AAX
ARMEBRBEBANMERRT TR ETER
XEAREBESER ULKPBEAHRXAR
EEB E - PEALERBARAAZEZIEAR
RBE B2BESHENESBE EREE
H30%IE TR Z XESERBFEESE -
bR B ESES - BRBW R ILTOBE -

HEEEEL 525 R2013F7AEZEAR
RAIZBYFPTES - EFTHARNILERE
B(RZ) ZMEBAMEEEMIE EHL
Bl - B EREARIZESFRHDARAR (K
TIEFD RN ArBEEFFINRRES
FEREBE RIBHFNEERDI A2
AHEBRBEE  BBRITEBRRETIES (A
GAMIEBFLFERETRR) Z+=F ' FE
TRMBARBALL REANREBELELR - E
IR EFEYEEEREBNTIHEEEL
B LURREMRAEFEREH S LES
B2 -BETRHEBEREZEREER
INRBEHNEERE o



zxpeEeEASEs )

Senior Management

Ms. Yim Siu Hung was appointed as the Company Secretary
of the Company in December 2011 mainly responsible for the
Group’s legal compliance work. Ms. Yim has joined the Company
since August 2005 and holds a bachelor degree in law from
Nottingham Trent University, UK and a bachelor degree in
accountancy from City University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow
member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
She has years of extensive experience in the company secretarial
sector and has worked for international accounting and law firms
and listed companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Rao Mengyu has been working for Orion Energy International
Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since November
2010) since December 2007 and now serves as the Chief
Geologist of the Group, mainly responsible for geology research
and exploration work of the Company’s Sanjiao coalbed
methane project. Dr. Rao graduated from the Department of
Geology of Anhui University of Science & Technology. In 2005,
Dr. Rao was awarded a PhD in Geology by the China University
of Petroleum (East China). He was engaged in research work
for the oil and gas geology fundamental theories and coalbed
methane (“CBM”) development technology in the post-doctoral
station of the College of Petroleum and Natural Gas Engineering,
China University of Petroleum (Beijing). He has over 20 years of
experience in the industry and has years of experience in onsite
work and indoor scientific research in respect of CBM projects.
Dr. Rao has published 24 research papers in the journals such as
Acta Petrolei Sinica, and also is one of the principal participants
in the scientific research achievement of “Research, development
and application of CBM multi-lateral horizontal well”. Such
achievement was awarded the second prize of science and
technology advancement in 2009 by the China National Coal
Association.
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Mr. Mei Ximin joined the Company in September 2015. Mr. Mei
currently serves as Executive Vice President of the Group and
Chief Supervisor of Orion Energy International Inc., responsible for
the Company’s coordination in relation to the government’s public
affairs and assisting in the production and operation of Orion
Energy International Inc. Mr. Mei obtained a bachelor degree
in economics from Jilin University in 1983. He was granted the
professional title of senior economist in 1995. Before joining the
Company, Mr. Mei had served as the Director of the Bureau of
Commodity Prices of Jilin Province and senior executive of & #k
ElEt 5= /A 5], He had served as vice president of a Hong Kong
listed company since 2008.

Mr. Dai Zhonggang joined the Company in April 2015.
Currently, Mr. Dai serves as Vice President of the Group and
General Manager of Orion Energy International Inc. Mr. Dai is
responsible for the production and operation management of the
Sanjiao coalbed methane project and the overall deployment of
the project’s large scale development. Mr. Dai holds a bachelor
degree in business administration from Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics. Mr. Dai had served as chairman
and general manager of a mining company owned by a listed
company and has accumulated extensive related management
experience.

Mr. Tan Xin joined the Company in February 2015 as Vice
President of the Group, mainly responsible for financing and
business mergers and acquisitions of the Company. Mr. Tan
graduated from the Department of World Economy of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics majoring in international
finance, and obtained his master degree from Nankai University in
Tianjin. He has extensive experience in international finance and
investment banking. Mr. Tan once worked in China Construction
Bank, Shenzhen Branch, and acted as cadre at sub-section level
and economist in the Foreign Exchange Department of China
Construction Bank and General Department of China Investment
Bank. Thereafter, he served as the deputy general manager of
FEIREERE S AR, the general manager of China Affairs
Department of BB EEHEEBAERAF and the general
manager of FEI T EREREERBR AT
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Mr. Zhuang Kemin joined the Company in 2012 and was
appointed as Vice President of the Group in January 2016, mainly
responsible for financing and mergers and acquisitions of the
Company in China. Mr. Zhuang graduated from Hubei University
of Economics and holds a college degree in foreign trade and a
master degree in finance from Zhongnan University of Economics
and Law. Previously, Mr. Zhuang worked for F#YITBEHKE
AFRAT as chief financial officer and SFLRBEE(CRINAR A
&] as chairman and general manager. He is well experienced in
corporate financing and business mergers.

Ms. Zhou Xingyu, joined the Company in November 2017 as
Vice President of the Group, mainly responsible for financing and
business mergers and acquisitions of the Company in Hong Kong
and China. Ms. Zhou is a university graduate and holds a master
degree in economics from Central China Normal University. Ms.
Zhou has extensive experience in financing and mergers and
acquisitions. Ms. Zhou had been the president of the second sub-
branch of Kunming Branch of Guangdong Development Bank.
She was later employed by Kunming Branch of China Minsheng
Bank and worked as the general manager of the institutional
customer department, responsible for inter-bank business with
various respective departments of Yunnan Provincial Government.
Thereafter, Ms. Zhou served as the chairman of EFEARE
EREREM LA where she coordinated and set up business
cooperation with various banks and established good cooperative
relationships.

Mr. Zhou Suolin joined the Company in 2007 and now serves
as Deputy Chief Accountant of the Group, responsible for the
financial management of the Group. Mr. Zhou graduated from
Changchun College of Geology majoring in Geology and holds
a college degree in statistics, and obtained his master degree
in accounting from Business School of Jilin University. Mr. Zhou
was once Head of the Accounting and Finance Division of Jilin
Petroleum Survey and Exploration Command Office of the Ministry
of Geology and Mineral Resources, Director of the Finance
Department of Northeast Petroleum Bureau of the Ministry of
Geology and Mineral Resources (Shihai Bureau) and Director
of the Finance Department of Northeast Petroleum Bureau of
Sinopec Star Petroleum Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhou has extensive financial
management experience in the oil and natural gas sectors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
and develop high standards of corporate governance practices
for the purpose of providing a framework and solid foundation
for its business operation and development. Effective corporate
governance provides probity, transparency and accountability
which contributes to the corporate success and enhancement of
shareholder value.

The Company complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY

DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”)
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code
of conduct and rules governing dealing by all directors in the
securities of the Company.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard regarding directors’ securities dealings set out
in the Model Code during the year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2017, the Board comprises three executive
Directors, namely Dr. Dai Xiaobing (Chairman), Mr. King Hap
Lee (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence;
three Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Hua, Mr. Huang
Shaowu and Mr. He Lin Feng; and four Independent Non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”), namely Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen
Peter, Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick, Dr. Wang Yanbin and
Dr. Dang Weihua.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017
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The individual attendance records of each Director at the SEERNEST BERZEY FTWHZEE-
meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration REZEE @Q;%&HX$K§Z{I B A2 8%
Committee, Nomination Committee and general meeting during sHHWT :
the year are set out below:
Number of meetings attended/held during term of R2017E AR HE BITHEE A
office in 2017
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
4 ENEEE HWEEE RZZEE RFEEXE
Number of meetings held AEERBETERR
during the year 6 3 1 1 1
Executive Directors BiTEE
Dai Xiaobing (Chairman) HNE(ZE) 6/6 - il il 11
King Hap Lee (Chief Executive Officer) S 7l (7744 3) 4/6 - - _ 0/
Wan Tze Fan Terence BTE 6/6 - - - 17
Non-executive Directors EHITEE
Chen Hua B 0/6 - - - 01
Huang Shaowu BHE 6/6 - = = 0/1
He Lin Feng BN 6/6 = = = 0/1
Chen Chun Tung Jason RIRE (R20175
(resigned on 15 November 2017) 11 B15AEHE) 2/5 = = = 0/
Independent Non-executive BUFRITES
Directors
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter "2HZ 5/6 3/3 11 11 11
Wong Lung Tak Patrick L 5/6 3/3 il 11 17
Wang Yanbin TIE 6/6 3/3 - - 0/1
Dang Weihua BERE 3/6 = = = 0/1
Notes: M 5

1.  The Audit Committee comprises Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick,
Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter and Dr. Wang Yanbin.

2. Dr. Dai Xiaobing, Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter and Professor Wong
Lung Tak Patrick are members of the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee.

1.

2.
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Apart from the fiduciary duty and statutory responsibility towards
the Company and the Group, the Board is responsible for the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing the Company and shareholder value.
Key responsibilities include formulation of the Group’s overall
strategies, setting of corporate and management targets,
monitoring of operational and financial matters, approval of major
capital expenditures, material acquisitions and disposal of assets,
corporate or financial restructuring, material borrowings and any
issuing, or buying back, of equity securities. Responsibility for
delivering Company’s objectives and running the business on a
day-to-day basis is delegated to divisional management who have
been given clear guidelines and directions as to their authority.
The Board also delegates certain specific responsibilities to three
committees (Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee). The composition and functions of each
committee are described below.

The Board includes four INEDs representing not less than
one-third of the Board which is in compliance with under Rule
3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Professor Wong Lung
Tak Patrick has appropriate qualifications and accounting related
financial expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All the
four INEDs are independent under these independence criteria,
and with their wide range of skills and experience to the Group,
they are capable to effectively exercise independent judgment
on issues of strategy, performance, risk and people through their
contribution at Board and committee meetings.

The Board has extensive corporate and strategic planning and
industry experience for discharging their duties as Directors in
the best interest of the Company and that the current board
size is adequate for its present operations. Each of the Directors
keeps abreast of his responsibilities as a Director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship between the Directors.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017
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On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering the general, statutory
and regulatory obligations of being a Director to ensure that he
is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors and
senior management are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Directors are regularly briefed on the business
operations and policies of the Company and from time to time
provided with written training materials to develop and refresh
their professional skills.

All the Directors, namely Dr. Dai Xiaobing, Mr. King Hap Lee, and
Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence, Mr. Chen Hua, Mr. Huang Shaowu,
Mr. He Lin Feng, Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter, Professor Wong
Lung Tak Patrick, Dr. Wang Yanbin and Dr. Dang Weihua,
participated in continuous professional development by reading
materials and attending seminars on corporate governance,
regulatory development and other relevant topics with an
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a director of a
listed company in compliance with the CG Code during the year.

The Company updates the Directors from time to time with
development in the laws and regulations relevant to their role as
director of the Company. Directors are also encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group through
initial induction, ongoing participation at Board and committee
meetings.

The Company’s senior management regularly supplies the Board
and its committees with adequate information in a timely manner
to enable them to make informed decisions. Monthly updates
as required in C.1.2 of the CG Code are provided by the senior
management to all Directors to enable them to be apprised of the
circumstances of the Company and to discharge their duties. All
Directors have access to Board papers and related materials that
will assist them for decision making. Any Director, wishing to do
so in the furtherance of his duties, may take professional advice
at the Company’s expense as arranged by the Company.
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The biographical details of the Directors are listed in the section of
“Directors and Senior Management Profiles” in this annual report
and the INEDs are expressly identified in all of the Company’s
publication such as circular, announcement or relevant corporate
communications in which the names of Directors of the Company
are disclosed. The Company maintains on its website and on the
Stock Exchange’s website a list of its directors with their role and
function.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE
The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to
indemnify the Directors and senior executives of the Group from
any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses, including
without limitation, any proceedings brought against them,
arising from the performance of their duties pursuant to their
appointment under their respective service agreements entered
into with the Company. The current policy shall be under constant
review to ensure that the insurance cover is appropriate.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are segregated
and performed by two separate individuals, Dr. Dai Xiaobing and
Mr. King Hap Lee respectively, to ensure a balance of power
and authority. Dr. Dai Xiaobing as the Chairman of the Company
provides leadership to the Board and ensures that the Board
discharges its responsibilities effectively and the Directors receive
complete, accurate and timely information and are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. He also holds
annually meeting with the non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the presence of
other executive directors. Dr. Dai Xiaobing is in charge of the
overall affairs of the Group. He is also responsible for the Group’s
human resources management (including human resources
planning, personnel deployment, remuneration scheme and staff
training), capital operation (including financing, investment and
merger and acquisition of projects) and technology management
(including introduction and application of technology). The
Chief Executive Officer, Mr. King Hap Lee, is responsible for
the Group’s strategic planning, operation planning, external
relationship and organizational management (including rules and
systems, organizational structure and corporate culture).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of Mr. Chen Hua, Mr. Huang Shaowu, Mr. He Lin Feng,
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter, Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick,
Dr. Wang Yanbin and Dr. Dang Weihua, being non-executive
Directors and INEDs of the Company, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of two years. In accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws, at each AGM of the Company,
one third (or the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. As such, all the non-executive Directors and INEDs
are also regarded as appointed for a specific term. Furthermore,
the Company’s Bye-laws provide that any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board or as an additional
member of the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election
at such meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees delegated with
various responsibilities, including Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. All the Board committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference which are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The meetings and
proceedings of the committees are governed by the provisions
contained in the Bye-laws of the Company for regulating
the meetings and proceedings of Directors unless otherwise
stipulated in their respective terms of reference.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for financial reporting and corporate control. The
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Wong Kwok
Chuen Peter, Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick and Dr. Wang
Yanbin, and is chaired by Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick.
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The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
which requires that the audit committee has a minimum of three
non-executive directors, must be chaired by an INED, at least
one of the audit committee member is an INED who possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise, and a majority of the audit
committee are INEDs.

None of the Audit Committee members are members of the
former or existing auditors of the Company. Three meetings of the
Audit Committee were held during the year. The Audit Committee
discharges its duties which include to review the completeness,
accuracy and fairness of the Company’s financial statements,
evaluating the Company’s auditing scope and procedures as well
as its risk management and internal control systems, to review
the interim and final financial statements before their submission
to the Board and the annual general meeting for approval, and
to make recommendation on the appointment of external auditor
and approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including independent access to and advice from
external auditors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee which set out
the Audit Committee’s authority and duties are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements
and industry practice. The Remuneration Committee comprises
three members including one Executive Director and two INEDs,
namely Dr. Dai Xiaobing, Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter and
Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick. The committee is chaired by
an INED, Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick. The Company has
complied with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules which requires that
the remuneration committee has a majority of the member being
INEDs and must be chaired by an INED.
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With reference to business needs and company development,
individual performance and contribution, changes in relevant
markets and general economic situation, the Remuneration
Committee has adopted the model set out in B.1.2(c)(ii) of the
CG Code where the Committee reviews and recommends to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of
the Directors and senior management. During the review process,
no individual director is involved in decisions relating to his own

remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee setting
out the Remuneration Committee’s authority and duties are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which aims to
set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board to ensure
that the Board has the balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, knowledge
and skills. In identifying suitable candidates, the Nomination
Committee will consider candidates with the objective criteria with

due regard of the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee currently has three members
including one Executive Director and two INEDs, namely Dr.
Dai Xiaobing, Mr.
Wong Lung Tak Patrick. Dr. Dai Xiaobing acts as Chairman of

Wong Kwok Chuen Peter and Professor

the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee bases
on the aforesaid criteria when making recommendations to
the Board on the nomination and appointment of directors,
assesses the independence of INEDs, review the structure,
size and composition of the Board at least annually and makes
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are made available on the

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions within its terms of reference. Its duties include to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and directors; and review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report as required under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

External Auditor

BDO Limited was re-appointed as external auditor of the
Company by shareholders at the 2017 Annual General Meeting
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting.

During the year, the fees paid or payable to the external auditor
of the Company, BDO Limited were approximately HK$1,700,000
and HK$98,800 for audit service and non-audit service rendered
(excluding disbursement fees) to the Group respectively. The
reporting responsibilities of BDO Limited are stated in the
Independent Auditor’s Report contained in this Annual Report.

Financial Reporting

The Board is accountable for proper stewardship of the
Company’s affairs, and is responsible for ensuring that the
Group keeps fair and accurate accounting records which
disclose its financial position. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibility to prepare the financial statements of the
Group in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. This responsibility extends to both interim
and annual reports.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain
and review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems to ensure that shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets are safeguarded. The
Group’s systems of risk management and internal control include
the setting up of a management structure with limits of authority
and are designed to help the Group to identify and manage the
significant risks amid achieving its business objectives, protect
its assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
financial information for internal use or for publication and ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The systems are
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate the risks of failure to achieve the Group’s business
objectives.

During the year, the nature of the Group’s operation remained
unchanged comparing with that of last year. In order to maintain
effective and efficient risk management and internal control
systems, the Group performs review for the risk management and
internal control systems systematically on a regular basis which
covers financial, operational, and compliance controls.

On behalf of the Board, the Audit Committee reviews at least
annually results of the internal audit work performed by the
Group’s internal audit function covering the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
regarding financial management and reporting, the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations and compliance with laws and
regulations. Where areas for improvement in respect of the design
and implementation of risk management and internal control
systems are identified, actions will be taken as recommended to
refine the systems. Significant internal control issues are reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure
prompt and appropriate actions are taken. During the year,
no significant control failures or weaknesses have been noted.
The Board considers that these systems of risk management
and internal control are effective and sufficient to guarantee
the Group in achieving its business objectives and there are
adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes in respect of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.
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The Company strictly complies with the requirements of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules,
particularly, in the disclosure of inside information and financial
reporting. The Company discloses inside information to the public
as soon as reasonably practicable unless the information falls
within any of the safe harbours as set out in the SFO. Before the
information is fully disclosed to the public, the Company ensures
the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Company
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or confidentiality may not be preserved, the Company
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The
Company is committed to ensure that information contained in
announcements or circulars are not false or misleading as to a
material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact. The Company discloses its information in an open,
fair and just manner by disseminating information to the public
through publication of corporate information on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company, Ms. Yim Siu Hung,
is a full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Directors have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary regarding
board procedures, and relevant laws, rules and regulations. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, Ms. Yim has complied with
paragraph 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(the “Act”) and Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
shareholders holding in aggregate not less than 10% of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
request a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If the directors do not within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed to convene
such meeting, any of the requisitionists representing more than
one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting to be held within three months from the said
date.
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Any number of shareholders representing not less than 5% of the
total voting rights of the Company at the date of the requisition
or not less than 100 shareholders of the Company are entitled
to put forward a proposal for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company. Shareholders should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in Section 79 of the Act for putting
forward such proposal at a general meeting. The procedures for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a director are
made available on our website as required by the Listing Rules.
The requisition of the proposals made by shareholders may be
addressed to the Company Secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Annual general meetings and special general meetings provide
a useful forum for shareholders to share views with the Board.
Members of the Board (also including members of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees) attend shareholders’
meetings and make themselves available to answer shareholders’
questions. Enquiries of shareholders may also be put to the
Board by contacting the Company Secretary by phone or email,
as stated in our website, www.sino-oilgas.hk.

COMMUNICATION WITH INVESTORS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with shareholders as well as investors. During the year, analysts’
conferences were held regarding the Group’s operational and
financial performances. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to shareholders and investors in a timely manner
through a number of channels include interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars and press releases. Electronic copies
of these documents and general information of the Group’s
operation can be obtained through the Company’s website.
Throughout 2017, the Company also avails itself of opportunities
to communicate and explain its strategies to shareholders and
the investor community, through active participation in investors’
conferences and regular meetings with financial analysts, fund
managers and potential investors. The Company will continue
to promote and enhance investor relations and communication
with its investors. During the year, no change was made to the
Company’s Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws.

B
"
i
i
#
I

RIRHEXREBETNPRARBRIREES%
Z R (A A ABO AP R1008 2 A
RERR  EERARFBRRAEG LR E
BAREZE BRERBKRRAGLIEHZAH
EFRARBRARDEFRTIRFAE N Z R E K E
FiEH BREZ-RBALTZ2EEZTNREF
ERBLEHRUNARBBuETE - BRRA
BNARABFEEMERNEBELRIMAMA
ExgnERLER -

BRRAEFAgEREFNIRGTARTNESE
ERXRBEREHT —EERTR -EF®
KE(LBEEZZES FWEEERRES
ZEgKB)HERERE  TRgELEE
AR R o IR IR A] i i S A AR A &) 4k
www.sino-oilgas.hk#) & &5 5% i A1 E 6 b bt B
BARFRINESSNENERNERSIELEH -

HgFENRE
EFeRBNERREBREERFRIBE
MEEL -FR ARAAREELEERES
LRMBRABITTONMESEH - FHEAKHE
MERDEBZREEEERAKRRLIRES
Bz REENBRETHRRERFR 2
B ARHER HFENETREEH
AREELEN—REMAIRAR B MG o
R2017% - A AR B BEBEIBE2TREERD
REhEMESITE EKEREBERE
EeHICERSERRLREERBLERE
ARBEERE  ARAFSEERERIRTE
REENBEEBEE -FA  NAFNAEB
BRRAMNARY EEE

2017 £, | FEHRERERAA

43



(‘l‘ Report of the Directors

44

The directors submit their annual report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017, which
are set out on pages 64 to 200.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in (i) exploration, development and
production of coalbed methane, (ii) raw coal washing and sale of
raw and cleaned coal, (iii) exploitation and sale of crude oil and
natural gas and (iv) provision for financial services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14 to 23 of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 40
to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 38 to the financial
statements and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
respectively.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

BEECENEEMNFEREANENRFC4E
ZEE200BE 2B E2017E12A3IBLEE 2
ERIZIEHREK -

FEES
ARRZTBEXRBRREER MAKEE
ERENHFR FAZEREERER  ()FREX
& LB E R BB B ()P R R 35 B R Om K
RAR M (V)R & B AR

¥FOEE
AEBEEE2017F12831B I FEHEFE
BEEHNANFERE14E23E [ BIEBE T mED
—ff o

it [ 23 5]
AR FMB A R 2 BB R RR M40 -

% B
EZEEREITEEZ I MEE2017F12A8
S1HIEFE 2K B (20164 : £) o

W% - BERHR
FEBENNE  BERRHEZEHFEDR
B BRI T -

i1 N
ARARRERNBAES 2 FBHRYERE
Mf7E38 ©

e
ARARFTEERFENREBZEDHFED
WA B SRR M ISR G A B BEK -



FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest customers
took up 88% and the largest customer accounted for 25% of
the Group’s revenue for the year. The aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
78% and the largest supplier accounted for 75% of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Dai Xiaobing (Chairman)

Mr. King Hap Lee (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Hua

Mr. Huang Shaowu

Mr. He Lin Feng

Mr. Chen Chun Tung Jason (resigned on 15 November 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter

Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick

Dr. Wang Yanbin

Dr. Dang Weihua

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 87(1), Dr. Dai Xiaobing, Mr.
Chen Hua, Professor Wong Lung Tak Patrick, Dr. Wang Yanbin
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election. All other remaining directors continue in office.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
directors (the “Directors”) or chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as

EEZRBEH

REREREAFTAS LREETZEFH
AR R AT AR —F N AR AR THE
R 0 CASE RS IR SN T AR AL 2 RIS B 40

EFRERGRERKRG P ZER

R2017F12A318 KRR EZB([EF]) &
THRBERAARKEEAEEREZE(ABE
HREE GO ([7%F K EE G EXVERET
By oRE) 2RO - HEROKESTH#ES
BIARBIRIEFS M E RO EIL26TFE
ZERMATE KR T E AR RIM S - FrEk £
MBETAZESETESXHNRESTA ([1E
EFR)MAMNEARARR KRB 2R R
KA

follows:
Number of shares/
Interests in shares/ underlying shares of Percentage of
Name of Director Long/short position  underlying shares  Nature of interest the Company held issued shares
N VL] Fid ARG/ e

4.2 B/ %8 ks RatE HERGEE RiER
Dai Xiaobing Long position Shares Beneficial owner/Interest of controlled corporation 1,766,705,000 10.68%
Bl e i ERBEN/RBHNARES

Short position Shares Beneficial owner/Interest of controlled corporation 1,375,245,000 8.31%

KA & EREEA/REHRAER

Long position Underlying shares Interest of controlled corporation 4,879,710,144 29.50%

55} BERH XEHA RS

Long position Share options Beneficial owner/Family interest (Note 2) 96,000,000 0.58%

e B BalAA/FkiER (i)
King Hap Lee Long position Shares Interest of controlled corporation (Note 3) 100,000,000 0.60%
U fe i RS AR (Ks)

Long position Share options Beneficial owner 66,000,000 0.40%

e Ele ERBAA
Wan Tze Fan Terence Long position Shares Beneficial owner 33,660,000 0.20%
RTH e i) BREAA

Long position Share options Beneficial owner 66,000,000 0.40%

78 B EREHAA
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E= =
EREHREE
Number of shares/
Interests in shares/ underlying shares of Percentage of
Name of Director Long/short position  underlying shares ~ Nature of interest the Company held issued shares
Rt RABH Fid ARG/ e
£4:2 8/ %R s BanE BERGEE RRED
Chen Hua Long position Underlying shares Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4) 768,971,796 4.65%
Fz e RERD REH D AESR (Hia)
Long position Shares Beneficial owner 88,000,000 0.53%
e & ERBEAA
Long position Share options Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.18%
78 BiE ERBEBA
Huang Shaowu Long position Shares Interest of controlled corporation/Beneficial owner 1,983,730,000 11.99%
(Note 5)
AR e i REHREES/ BHEA A (H55)
Long position Share options Beneficial owner 17,000,000 0.10%
e BhE ERBEAA
He Lin Feng Long position Shares Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 9.07%
e #e B ERAAA
Long position Share options Beneficial owner 30,000,000 0.18%
e Bhe ERBAA
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter  Long position Share options Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.04%
LS e BhiE EREBA
Wong Lung Tak Patrick  Long position Share options Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.04%
HEE #e Bk ERHAA
Wang Yanbin Long position Share options Beneficial owner 6,000,000 0.04%
313 e Bhe EREAA
Dang Weihua Long position Share options Beneficial owner 3,000,000 0.02%
ERE 78 B ERBEEA
Notes: (TE
(1) Particulars of directors’ interests in the share options of the (1) EFRARABERENEZFBEHNER
Company are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme”. WEETEI ] —&T o
(2)  Sino Oil and Gas Resources Investments Limited (“SOGRI”) owns (2 HEHRBERKEARRAR (SOGRI)HHE

1,065,760,000 shares and has short position of 708,000,000
shares. SOGRI is wholly owned by Dr. Dai Xiaobing. Pursuant to the
SFO, Dr. Dai is taken to have interests and short position in such
shares. In addition, Dr. Dai beneficially owns 700,945,000 shares
and short position of 667,245,000 shares of the Company.
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Unless the context requires otherwise, capitalized terms used
in this paragraph shall have the same meanings as defined in
the announcement issued by the Company on 31 May 2016.
On 31 May 2016, the Company entered into the Subscription
Agreement with Crescent Spring Investment Holdings Limited
(the “Bondholder”) pursuant to which the Company issued to
the Bondholder the Convertible Bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of US$130,000,000 due 2019 on 29 September 2016, and
Sino Oil and Gas Resources Limited (“SOGR”), a company wholly
owned by Dr. Dai Xiaobing, entered into a Put and Call Option
Deed with the Bondholder pursuant to which the Bondholder
grants to SOGR an irrevocable and unconditional right (but without
obligation) to purchase some or all of the Convertible Bonds at
the Call Option Purchase Price during the Call Option Period, and
SOGR grants to the Bondholder an irrevocable and unconditional
right (but without obligation) to require SOGR to purchase some
or all of the Convertible Bonds at the Put Option Purchase Price
during the Put Option Period. Based on the conversion price of
HK$0.207 per share, a maximum of 4,879,710,144 shares may
be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights
attaching to the Convertible Bonds in full. Further details are set
out in the announcements and circular issued by the Company on
31 May 2016, 30 September 2016 and 12 July 2016 respectively.
Pursuant to the SFO, the Convertible Bonds give rise to an interest
in 4,879,710,144 underlying shares of the Bondholder and the Put
and Call Option Deed gives rise to an interest in 4,879,710,144
underlying shares of the Company of SOGR and Dr. Dai Xiaobing
and short position of 4,879,710,144 underlying shares of the
Bondholder.

Dr. Dai Xiaobing and his spouse, Ms. Xu Ning, hold 66,000,000
options and 30,000,000 options respectively.

Wai Tech Limited owns 100,000,000 shares of the Company. Wai
Tech Limited is wholly owned by Petromic Corporation which in turn
is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. King Hap Lee. Pursuant to

the SFO, Mr. King is taken to have interests in such shares.

768,971,796 underlying shares are owned by X ZZREFEEERE A
7], a wholly owned subsidiary of RE%EE AR /AF] which is owned
as to 90% by Mr. Chen Hua. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Chen is
taken to be interested in such underlying shares.
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(5) 1,8883,730,000 shares are owned by Yuanjing International Limited,
a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Huang Shaowu.
Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Huang is taken to be interested in such

In addition, Mr. Huang beneficially owns 100,000,000

shares of the Company.

shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive had any interests or short
positions in the securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company currently has a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted by way of an ordinary resolution
passed by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 28 May 2010.

The Scheme are in full compliance with the relevant requirements
of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purpose of the Scheme
is to enable the Company to recognise the contributions of the
participants to the Group and to motivate the participants to
continuously work to the benefit of the Group by offering to the
participants an opportunity to have personal interest in the share
capital of the Company.

The eligible participants includes any full-time and part-time
employee (including Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries,
any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers. The Scheme
became effective on 28 May 2010 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
date of coming into effect.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of approval of the limit and such limit may be
refreshed by shareholders in general meeting. However, the total
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Scheme and any other share option schemes must not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. As at 31
December 2017, there are outstanding options for subscription of
1,438,000,000 shares under the Scheme, representing 8.69% of
the issued shares of the Company.
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Under the Scheme, the maximum entitlement for any eligible
person (other than a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates) is that the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of the
latest grant does not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the relevant time. Any further grant of share options
in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. Share options to be granted to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates are subject to approval by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company. In
addition, any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company or any
of their respective associates, when aggregated with all share
options (whether exercised, cancelled or outstanding) already
granted to any of them during the 12-month period up to the date
of grant, in excess of 0.1 percent of the shares of the Company
in issue and with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000
(based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
grant of the options), is subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting of the Company.

The period within which an option may be exercised under
the Scheme will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion. Under the Scheme, an option may not be exercised
after the expiration of 10 years from the date of grant of the
option.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the exercise price in relation to each
option shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
but in any event shall not be less than the higher of: (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of such option; and
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of such option.

Some further disclosures relating to the Scheme are set out in
note 37 to the financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2017, the directors and employees of the
Group had the following personal interests in options to subscribe
for shares of the Company granted at nominal consideration
under the Scheme. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one share. Details of share options held by the
Directors and employees of the Group and movements in such
holdings during the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Number of options

MR2017F12H31R - A& B EEREBRNR
B ENEE LHORERDATREARRD AR
MZEREFHEBEUT ZEAAEZ  FHE
PR T B ARBIRBMD ZEF - AEH
EEREENEE2017FE12A31B L EFEEFT
HERERZEFRECEHFBHENTE

FERERE
Outstanding Exercise
Outstanding Lapsed at 31 Date of Exercise price per
at 1 January during the December grant period share
2017 year 2017 (D.M.Y) (D.M.Y) HK$
20174 20174 R skt
1A18 12A31H B 1TERABR ZiTEE
HERTE REAKH i) RATIE (B.B.%) (B.R.%F) BT
Directors
Bx
Dai Xiaobing 36,000,000 - 36,000,000  06.12.2011  06.12.2011-05.12.2021 0.276
E1y] =S 30,000,000 - 30,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
King Hap Lee 36,000,000 - 36,000,000  06.12.2011  06.12.2011-05.12.2021 0.276
SIEF 30,000,000 - 30,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
Wan Tze Fan Terence 36,000,000 - 36,000,000 06.12.2011  06.12.2011-05.12.2021 0.276
BTFE 30,000,000 - 30,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
Chen Hua 30,000,000 - 30,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
B
Huang Shaowu 17,000,000 - 17,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
He Lin Feng 30,000,000 - 30,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
fa[#ki&
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter 3,000,000 - 3,000,000  06.12.2011  06.12.2011-05.12.2021 0.276
EEZ 3,000,000 = 3,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
Wong Lung Tak Patrick 3,000,000 - 3,000,000  06.12.2011  06.12.2011-05.12.2021 0.276
=R 3,000,000 - 3,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
Wang Yanbin 3,000,000 - 3,000,000  06.12.2011  06.12.2011-05.12.2021 0.276
TR 3,000,000 = 3,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
Dang Weihua 3,000,000 = 3,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
ERE
Employees 305,000,000 7,000,000 298,000,000  06.12.2011  06.12.2011-05.12.2021 0.276
ES 878,000,000 34,000,000 844,000,000  23.11.2015  23.11.2015-22.11.2018 0.222
Total 1,479,000,000 41,000,000 1,438,000,000
L\é«‘»
=N
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Notes:

M

@

On 23 November 2015, the Company granted 1,058,000,000
options to eligible persons at an exercise price of HK$0.222 per
share exercisable for three years from 23 November 2015, being
the date of grant. Out of these options, 30,000,000 options and
10,000,000 options were granted (and remained outstanding as
at 31 December 2017) to Ms. Xu Ning (being Dr. Dai Xiaobing’s
spouse and she had previously provided personal guarantee to a
loan facility to Orion Energy International Inc. (“Orion”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Ms. Dai Qing Fang (Dr. Dai
Xiaobing’s sister and she is the deputy general manager of Orion)

respectively.

No option was granted or exercised during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections “Directors’ Interests
in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme”,

at no time during the year was the Company or any of its

associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable

the directors of the Company or any of their spouses or children

under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of the

acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons, not being a

Director or chief executive of the Company, had an interest or

short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336

FERREREMATZHER

2017128318 * M FA L (WIEAREE
ERITHREE) RIBIEEF R E K5 5336
BEE2ERMAFEN AR T 2 Kk i8kE
BOPERERIOXE -

of the SFO:
Number of
Interests in shares/
Long/short shares/underlying underlying Percentage of
Name position shares Nature of interest shares held issued shares
B R PR3,/ EE#T
& BE/ KA HE R 5 R 351371 HERHHE B E G
Substantial shareholders
TERRE
Yuanjing International Limited (Note 1) Long position Shares Beneficial owner 1,883,730,000 11.39%
BRBRERRF (M) A ) EREAA
Other persons
HitAt
Crescent Spring Investment Holdings Long position Underlying shares  Beneficial owner 4,879,710,144 29.50%
Limited (Note 2)
Crescent Spring Investment Holdings He =LA ERBEAA
Limited (P 7¥2)
Short position Underlying shares  Beneficial owner 4,879,710,144 29.50%
KE el g ERBEAA
Long position Shares Security interest 1,375,245,000 8.31%
HE 4% REE R
Sino Oil and Gas Resources Limited Long position Underlying shares  Beneficial owner 4,879,710,144 29.50%
(Note 2)
hEHRERARAA (F5E2) He el ) ERBEEA
Sino Oil and Gas Resources Long position Shares Beneficial owner 1,065,760,000 6.44%
Investments Limited (Note 3)
hEARERREFRAA (FEE3) HeE :§7) BEaEEA
Short position Shares Beneficial owner 708,000,000 4.28%
KA 40 ERBEBA
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Number of
Interests in shares/
Long/short shares/underlying underlying Percentage of
Name position shares Nature of interest shares held issued shares
RikH R Fifshg 3,/ HEETT
& BE/ KA HE R G R 34431 HEkHHE RizEHRL
CITIC Securities Company Limited Long position Shares Interest of controlled 768,971,796 4.65%
(Note 4) corporation
CITIC Securities Company Limited e o) S UNGIE- 2
GELY
Long position Underlying shares  Interest of controlled 461,383,078 2.79%
corporation
A HERH REE AR ER
Short position Underlying shares  Interest of controlled ~ 1,999,326,669 12.09%
corporation
KA WBER 5 S UNGIEE £
Notes: B

1. 1,883,730,000 shares are owned by Yuanjing International Limited,
a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Huang Shaowu (a

non-executive director of the Company).

2. Crescent Spring Investment Holdings Limited (“Crescent”) owns
convertible bonds in the principal amount of US$130,000,000 due
2019 carrying the right to convert into shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.207 per share. Based on the conversion
price of HK$0.207 per share, a maximum of 4,879,710,144 shares
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights
attaching to the convertible bonds in full. The convertible bonds
give rise to an interest in 4,879,710,144 underlying shares of

Crescent.
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1,883,730,0000% f% 15 A [El &= BB B IR A 7435
£ HAEHBAEAREE(KRQRIZERITE
B)EEREXRBEANRA -

Crescent Spring Investment Holdings Limited
([Crescent ) BREXRRAI XS BFEAR
130,000,0003 7T FA20194F 5 Hi 2 7] #2 f% (&
% BRENBBREZRO207TETHBBAR
A AR o RIBMREER0.207H T * RE
BATE AR E F P 2 3R AR R 12 18 T BE %
REITHR %4,879,710,144 BR 17 IR ¥R AT 34
& {8 75 - Crescent# A & A 7)4,879,710,144
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Unless the context requires otherwise, capitalized terms used in
this paragraph shall have the same meanings as defined in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 May 2016. Pursuant to the
Put and Call Option Deed entered into between Crescent and Sino
QOil and Gas Resources Limited (“SOGR”), a company wholly owned
by Dr. Dai Xiaobing, Crescent grants to SOGR an irrevocable and
unconditional right (but without obligation) to purchase some or all
of the Convertible Bonds at the Call Option Purchase Price during
the Call Option Period, and SOGR grants to Crescent an irrevocable
and unconditional right (without obligation) to require SOGR to
purchase some or all of the Convertible Bonds at the Put Option
Purchase Price during the Put Option Period. The Put and Call
Option Deed gives rise to an interest in 4,879,710,144 underlying
shares of each of SOGR and Dr. Dai Xiaobing, and short position of
4,879,710,144 underlying shares of Crescent.

Crescent also holds security interest in 1,375,245,000 shares of the

Company.

Crescent is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong
International Holdings Limited (4 Bl % g B R 122 f% 5 fR 2 &) which in
turn is owned as to 88.1% by Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Z= &k
EEABRETAA) (“Huarong Real Estate”) and 11.9% by Huarong
Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. GERBURIEEEE
AREMEAF) (“Huarong Zhiyuan”). Both Huarong Real Estate
and Huarong Zhiyuan are wholly owned by China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (I EIZEF & & & AR5 B R 2 7)) which is in
turn owned as to 77.49 % by Ministry of Finance of the People’s
Republic of China (2 A RILFIE T EER). Pursuant to the SFO,
China Huarong International Holdings Limited, Huarong Real
Estate, China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. and Ministry of
Finance of the People’s Republic of China are deemed to have the

aforesaid interests and short position held by Crescent.

Sino Oil and Gas Resources Investments Limited (“SOGRI”) owns
1,065,760,000 shares and has short position of 708,000,000
shares. SOGRI is wholly and beneficially owned by Dr. Dai Xiaobing

(Chairman of the Board and an executive director of the Company).

BRXBSAREIN AREMRABZAZ
BZK A R 7201655310 F % 2 R AT R
EEABHERARE - BIECrescentd | &
NEBEL2EEANGPEHERERERA
8] ([SOGRJ) FT M M R Jh MR B HARE 22 4% -
Crescent® TSOGR— I8 1~ A] # [a] K f% {5 1
EAMBETESE)  AARREHESRRBA
RABHERBREEB ABOI 2B RK
&% - MSOGR#E FCrescent— & T o] # [2]
REGE#EN (B &EE) - 7] Z5KSOGR
RABEARAEARZOBEEEEREA
BHXTHAIRRES - HBRERRE
BRI SOCREE /NEH I REARRA A
4,879,710,144 % 48 B8 A 17 # %5 M Crescent$F
64,879,710, 1448 B 2 A& -

Crescent/i 5 H &R A 71,375,245,0000% i% 15
REEREZ -

Crescent2 F B ZE R EEIZERER A AN E
BEMBAR  ERMBEXEAREELAR ([ER
BEEDRERNERETEARERAR ([
BMBERD OB EREERBRZERBERA
A16988.1% o R 11.9% s - ERE ¥ R E
MBEHRTREREEEEROER AR
2EHE  #ENAPEAR LR B
FET7.49% % - BIEZFHF RBE KA -+
BHERBEERERAR  EREE T E
EMEEEERNMARATRFEARKM
BF BB b, 45 4R /3 5 B Lt Crescent ) #E &

NORA °

PEBERERBEERAARFAE
1,065,760,000/% A% 17 &Y # % % 708,000,000
Blkin KR HA—MAEEHNEEL (KA
RAEEEFRRATESR) 2EAREREA
SN
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4. These interests and short position are owned by CSI Capital
Management Limited which is wholly owned by CITIC CLSA Global
Markets Holdings Limited which in turn is wholly owned by CLSA
B.V. CITIC Securities Company Limited wholly owns CLSA B.V.
through its wholly owned subsidiary, CITIC Securities International
Company Limited. Pursuant to SFO, CITIC Securities Company
Limited, CITIC Securities International Company Limited, CLSA B.V.
and CITIC CLSA Global Markets Holdings Limited are deemed to
be interested in the interests and short position held by CSI Capital
Management Limited.

Saved as disclosed above in this section, as at 31 December
2017, the Company has not been notified of any other persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement schemes operated by local authorities in
the PRC. The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme
covering full time employees in Hong Kong. Details of employee
retirement benefits are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration and highest paid
individuals’ emoluments are set out in note 12 and note 13 to the
financial statements respectively.
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4. EEHERKRAEEZHCSI Capital
Management Limited#7% * EHCITIC CLSA
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CITIC Securities Company Limited » CITIC
Securities International Company Limited *
CLSA B.V.: CITIC CLSA Global Markets
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Management Limitedff #5550 4f & &k & #
HP AR -
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BT E
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, the directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of their duty in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the year and is
still in force. In addition, the Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and senior executives of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Save as disclosed in note 50 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance subsisted at any time during the year to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had material interest, whether
directly or indirectly.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its directors, as of the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of the shares with not less
than 25% of the total issued shares of the Company as required
under the Listing Rules.

gxgpsz )

vl ol R

REARBDNERMA I FERERE MR
AR EFRBREEREBUETHER
BMELAXERIWMARL ER WE -
B BERAX HABARANEER
HANESHE BREAMEIE - -ZFEE
HAHNBERXREFARBEEREDRABR
BE ARFERAKEEZTESRITHA
ERBECENESTMTBRABRREIRR

EENEHPZER
BEBRRMACOFRBEES  AAAEE
198 4 7 AR 20 ) AT A B R F
BTS2 BEABNRAERZANTEES
RO (E M EA S -

ARFRE
BEAARTRENENRFESHM - R
AREBH ARALHREARRAMEES
TR T 125% « & EPRBIMNRE -
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF

LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
repurchased a total of 554,865,000 shares on the Stock
Exchange for enhancing its per share’s net asset value and

earnings, of which 552,565,000 shares were cancelled during
the year and 2,300,000 shares were cancelled in January 2018.

Details of the repurchase of shares are as follows:

BH BOxXHELHES

B E2017F12A31B EFE - AR® AR A
WEREEFERAN  KQBLHZATE
21 §% 19 #£554,865,0008% + H #552,565,0008%
12,300,000/% % Bl A G A 2201841 A 744 o
BRIRMDOFBLT

Price per share

BRERGER

Month of Total
repurchase during Number of consideration
the year ended shares (excluding
31 December 2017 repurchased Highest Lowest expenses)

HK$ HK$ HK$’ 000
HE20174
12A318ILEE BRE
ZEERAH BERGEE =®E ®RE (FEEER)

BT BT FHET
January 1H 64,745,000 0.190 0.189 12,280
March 3H 16,965,000 0.190 0.183 3,164
April 44 41,355,000 0.190 0.185 7,815
May 5H 70,245,000 0.190 0.185 13,247
June 6 H 67,335,000 0.190 0.179 12,484
July 7H 198,380,000 0.186 0.160 34,881
October 104 93,540,000 0.155 0.145 13,966
November 11 8 1,000,000 0.138 0.138 138
December 12H 1,300,000 0.145 0.144 188
Total: ast 98,163

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

| Annual Report 2017
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Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of Br E AT TR E AN - BUE2017412H31H 1k
its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the listed FE ARASEAMNHNBRARMERE -
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 December BRFHERNAREMLETMES -

2017.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BciEhiE

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s  RBIEAR AT 2 ERMAIk B2 E X0 - W &
bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda which would oblige the EHELAEREZMTURKRD AR LIE
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing LRI AR IR HETRK -
shareholders.

AUDITOR 2 B BT
The financial statements for the year have been audited by BDO AREENERREEAN EEZTCHMEL
Limited who retires and, being eligible, offers for re-appointment. FTERAFI =X  ZAHEMRIKEHE -

REXEEE-

By order of the Board AEEGM

Dai Xiaobing *E

Chairman B/NE

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018 &% - 201853 A29H
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Tel : +852 2541 5041
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
A

EEE - +852 2541 5041
{85 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SINO OIL AND GAS HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 200,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company. Because of the significance of
the matter described in the “Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”
section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects,
in our opinion the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

Scope Limitation Relating to the Going Concern Basis of
Preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements

As set out in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had net current liabilities of HK$204,291,000 as at 31
December 2017. As at that date, the Group had total borrowings
amounting of HK$533,888,000, trade, other payables and
accruals of HK$407,832,000 and total convertible notes with
principal amount of HK$1,310,000,000. Out of which borrowings
of HK$77,437,000, trade, other payables and accruals of
HK$407,832,000 and convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$296,000,000 would be due for repayment within 12
months from the date of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the repayment dates of the respective
agreements, while the Group only maintained its cash and cash
equivalents of HK$21,766,000.

The above conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

As detailed in Note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements,
in view of the above circumstances, the directors have prepared
a cash flow forecast of the Group covering a period up to
31 December 2018 which takes into account of the major
assumption that three major shareholders would be able to
provide continuing and sufficient support to the Group to meet
its financial obligations. The directors consider the Group will
have sufficient working capital to meet its operating and financing
needs as and when they fall due within the twelve months from
31 December 2017. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis.

The appropriateness of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on the going concern basis largely depends
on whether the above-mentioned major assumption taken into
account by the directors in the going concern assessment
are achievable and the other plans and measures can be
implemented successfully.

wuznmuss )

FHASGESMBRRZ2EBZRE (§)

FRRERER
R IFEE SR EGRG AN EHRE
ER )

AN ER A B TS 3R 3% MY sE3(b)FT #k - 72017
F12A31H E5EARDEBEFE
204,291,000 L - RNz H - BESEEBEHEE
E533,888,000/8 T * o BR 5%~ £ Ath FE {5 3K
18 & FE 1 & F5407,832,0008 T R A & 58 A
1,310,000,0008 7T 2 AJ AR F IR - HAF - &
B77,437,000/8 7T * FE T BR 3k - H M & 5K
18 & 8 te B F407,832,0008 T R A& X8 A&
296,000,000/ JT 2 A] #2 ix 5 45 15 4% 48 @ 175 =%
ZEFBHENBHRE M BHREK B HREE12
BMAREIEESZ T E£EEFRe LR
& F B A21,766,0008 T °

PRBERBTREFEEERTHEERE @ AJfE
B EEEUEBRSERKEEEZSE RS
BREKRRE °

AN AR A B 75 R 3% MO RS (o) P RF Al - B A0 bt
B EFERRVEEHE2018512H31
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RE=%FZRFERN EEEHEHFER
ATRHUMEEBEANETERR -ES
R BESEBAEERANLEEESUEN
HEB2017F12A31B BT+ M AANEER
BHRETZE - Al EEENERBELE
AERGRGEVBmMKRIIEE R -
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (Continued)

However, we were unable to verify the financial position of the
three major shareholders who are individuals and providing
financial support to the Group to enable us assess whether they
have sufficient financial capability to provide their aforementioned
financial support to the Group. There were no other satisfactory
audit procedures that we could adopt to assess whether the
Group had sufficient resources to meet its operating and financing
needs for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, we were unable to
satisfy ourselves regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that may be necessary should the going concern
basis of preparation be determined to be inappropriate. These
would include any adjustments to write down the Group’s assets
to their net realisable amounts, to provide for any liabilities which
may arise and to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Qur responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue an
auditor’s report. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

However, because of the matter described in the “Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion” section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for
an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping

Practising Certificate Number P05412

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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VJ ¥/ Gonsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 THET FHET
Continuing operations HIEEEETR
Revenue S 6 & 16 497,935 8133),60:3
Direct cost HEKA (487,540) (323,439)
Gross profit E A 10,395 10,114
Other income H Ao Y A 7 60,878 73,161
Other gains, net H b x5 F 58 8 181,371 58,352
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (3,833) =
Administrative expenses THER (84,246) (86,338)
Profit from operations £ Al 164,565 55,289
Finance costs B & AR 9(a) (322,173) (152,962)
Share of loss of an associate 5 — KBt E A a &R 23 (418) (662)
Loss before income tax expense B P 1S B S ) AT RS 18 9 (158,026) (98,335)
Income tax expense Fris &l i 11 (1,535) (1,243)
Loss for the year from continuing REERELEER 2 BB
operations (159,561) (99,578)
Discontinued operations ERIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued REEFEKRIELCEET 10
operations 2k A - 5,509
Loss for the year AEEHE (159,561) (94,069)
Other comprehensive income, after tax HE 2 mE e @ BrREEE
ltem that may be reclassified to AgEEN S HEER 2B
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BREBINEBCERZR
foreign operations 332,498 (222,943)
Changes in fair value of AHEESHEEZ
available-for-sale investments RNEEES (1,928) (260)
Other comprehensive income for the AEFEHMPEUE -
year, after tax TRES 330,570 (223,203)
Total comprehensive income for the year 784 [& 2 [ Uk o5 42 58 171,009 (817,272)
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2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 THET FHET
Loss attributable to: AT AT ELERS :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEITEF =N
Loss for the year from continuing REERFELEER
operations Z B8 (160,367) (102,495)
Profit for the year from discontinued REFEKRIEEEER
operations 2 ) - 5,509
(160,367) (96,986)
Non-controlling interests FE 20 A 1 2
Profit for the year from continuing REEFECEERS
operations 2 g M 806 2,917
(159,561) (94,069)
Total comprehensive income AR AT LB 2EKE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PiN/NETEF =N
Profit/(loss) for the year from NEERHELEEL
continuing operations swmF, (E518) 169,866 (323,625)
Profit for the year from discontinued AEEFERIEREET
operations 2 A - 5,509
169,866 (318,116)
Non-controlling interests FE 2 A A o
Profit for the year from continuing REEFEEEETR
operations g M 1,143 844
171,009 (317,272)
Loss per share from continuing and RBEFBEEZEFERELKXIE
discontinued operations KEEBHNBRERE
- Basic and diluted - ERKR#EE 15 (0.955) HK centsi&fll  (0.556) HK centsiZ 1l
Loss per share from continuing REFESEERNEREE
operations
— Basic and diluted  VINSE: D 15 (0.955) HK centsi#fll  (0.588) HK centsi&ll
Earning per share from discontinued RBEB&RILEESEFEM
operations BEEF
— Basic and diluted - EARREE 15 TEB 0032 HK centsi
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As at 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHET F& T
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M W KR EE 17 2,110,392 1,878,250
Oil and gas exploration and evaluation — SHRENIE L FHEEE
assets 18 57,255 41,307
Payment for leasehold land held for BAMEE TR
own use 19 4,356 4,277
Intangible assets BREE 20 2,353,579 2,207,202
Goodwill Bk 21 51,877 93,483
Interest in a joint venture R—REEDE e 22 - -
Interest in an associate R—FKEtE R a2 #Em 23 59,137 58,010
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEEBRERIED
profit or loss B s & E 24 30,077 4,487
Available-for-sale investments AMHESmEE 25 5,409 4,592
Deposits and prepayments e RIBFIA 28 95,777 44,045
Loan receivables JE U E 3k 26 19,211 =
Total non-current assets EMEEEBRT 4,787,070 4,335,653
Current assets RENEE
Inventories rE 27 15,070 10,591
Financial assets at fair value through BEATEERIBERY R
profit or loss MIEEE 24 21,529 18,134
Trade, notes and other receivables, FEUWERSK - IEE R « Efth
deposits and prepayments FEUERR - 2 & R RIA 28 438,570 534,315
Short-term investment SRR g 29 77,205 71,804
Loan receivables FE U E K 26 48,029 22,334
Amount due from a joint venture Bl —RE&EDFERIE 22 320 320
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 30 21,766 251,530
Total current assets MENEEREE 622,489 909,028
Total assets BEE 5,409,559 5,244,681
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade, other payables and accruals FERTBR IR « H b B 5B R
TEiRE M 31 (407,832) (349,603)
Borrowings BE 33 (77,437) =
Convertible notes MR ER 34 (297,142) (105,112)
Financial liabilities at fair value through & A FEFBE BIEZFYIEER
profit or loss BixaE 34 (37,895) (224,937)
Taxation Ti1g (6,474) (8,472)
Total current liabilities nEBEERE (826,780) (688,124)
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE(BfE) EEFE (204,291) 220,904
Total assets less current liabilities #EEFHAHERE 4,582,779 4,556,557

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited
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R2017F12831H

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Bt 5% THER FET
Non-current liabilities EREBER
Provisions B 32 (6,709) (4,810)
Borrowings BE 33 (456,451) (322,109)
Convertible notes AT R IR 34 (940,889) (1,125,300)
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIEE E 35 (14,235) (12,699)
Total non-current liabilities ERE B EBRTE (1,418,284) (1,464,914)
NET ASSETS HAEFE 3,164,495 3,091,643
Capital and reserves attributable EATHEANEEEERRHEE
to owners of the Company
Share capital % 7 38(a) 165,388 170,937
Reserves & 2,982,452 2,905,194
Equity attributable to owners of the RAGER AEIGER
Company 3,147,840 3,076,131
Non-controlling interests PR i = 41 16,655 15,512
TOTAL EQUITY WS 3,164,495 3,091,643
On behalf of the directors
REEFE
Dai Xiaobing Wan Tze Fan Terence
HhE mFE
Director Director
EE EE
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) consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FERABES

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12A31AILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FATREAREER
Available-
for-sale  Convertible
Share  Contributed ~ Share option investments  noteequity  Exchange Accumulated Non-
Share capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses controlling
(note 38(a))  (note 38(c)(i) (note 38(c](il) (note 38(c)(i)) (note 38(c)iv)) (note 38c](v)) (note 38(c)(vil) (note 38(c)(vi) Total interests Total
TiHE

SHEE  THREH
Bd  h#AE 48R  ERESE B BABE  EREE  BdER
(atosa)  (MaEss(c)i)) (Makaslc)i) (Wakas(c)ii) (W&tse(cliv)  (aEas(c))  (aEasc) (M&kasic)ii) B HERES 3t
HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSOO0  HKG00  HKS000  HKS'00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKBODO  HKSOOD  HKSOWD
T Tin Tin Tin Tin Thn Tin Thn Thn Thn Thn

At 1 January 2016 R2016E1R18 176,036 4,302,009 81,043 111,794 - 26,322 (106,285 (1,102,262 3,488,637 14,668 3,603,305
(Loss)/proft or the year KER(BR)/ & - - - - - - - (96,986) (96,986) 2017 (04,069)
Other comprehensive income LUETD G - - - - (260) - (ogn) - ) ROy (223209
Total comprehensive income KERRENREE

for the year - - - - 260) - (220870 96,986) (318,116) 844 (817212
Released upon expiry of convertile B ke el

nolss (nofe 34 (iad) - - - - - (15919 - 15,918 - - -
Released! upon lapse of share REREXHFER

options [note 38/ GRREI - - - (1.450) - - - 1450 - - -
Repurchase of shares (note 38(a(i) R (H38a0) (5,099 89,291) - - - - - - 94,390) - 94,390)
At 31 December 2016 120165128318 170,037 412,118 81,043 110,344 (260) 10,409 (327,155 (1,181,005 3,076,131 15,512 3,091,643
(ossrct for e ear REE(EE)/4H - - - - - - - R (180) 06 (1595)
Other comprehensive income Efp2Aks - - - - (1,928) - 332,161 - 330,83 337 330,570
Total comprehensive income TER2ENREE

for the year - - - - (1,928) - 332,161 (160367) 169,866 1143 171,009
Released upon expiy of RTAREESREE

convertile notes (note 32) (Hiik4) - - - - - (10,409) - 10409 - - -
Released! upon lapse of share HEREXIERE

opton (note 38/a/i) (i zEa8(a)in) - - - .49 - - - 2,91 - - -
Repurchase of shares IR )

ote 8 G5 @Y 9 3 - = - b ] S mE
At 31 December 2017 R017E12R31R 165,368 4,120,104 81,043 107,853 (2,188) - 5006  (1,329,066) 3,147,840 16,655 3,164,495
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows @)

= A, s B

FeHaERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F12A31B LFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5 FHET FE T
Operating activities BB
Loss before income tax expense BrET1S B SZ BT ES 18
From continuing operations RERFELEE (158,026) (98,335)
From discontinued operations REERIELEER - 5,509
(158,026) (92,826)
Adjustments for: FHEIEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZETE
equipment 17 53,188 41,552
Amortisation of intangible assets M EE CH#E 20 20,251 19,688
Amortisation of payment for leasehold 8 A E T 52 # 8
land held for own use 19 233 237
Interest expense FEFZH 9(a) 322,173 152,962
Interest income M2 WA 7 (30,143) (49,865)
Change in fair value of financial assets XA F(EBEBEFIIERN
through profit or loss PBEERATEED 8 (43,275) (2,705)
Change in fair value of financial RATFEERE=RIED
liabilities through profit or loss FEaEAFEES 8 (187,042) (52,089)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and  HEW¥ - BE K&K
equipment el & 8 (28) =
Written off of property, plant and EHEHYE  BEREE
equipment 8 35 =
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEES/mEE
investments ) SFi=! 8 1,606 =
Reclassification from equity to profit or ~ HE R HHEE L R EER
loss on disposal of available-for-sale BREESTOBE=ES
investments 8 260 -
Share of loss of an associate FEME — KBt E AR EE 23 418 662
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB AR 2 W 42 - (11,647)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREEE 21 46,705 =
Impairment loss on trade and other JE LS AR 3R B L A JE Ui BR 5K
receivables VERIEN SR 8 4,989 =
Operating profit before changes in BESSEIFEEERN
working capital 31,344 5,969
(Increase)/decrease in inventories F& g m) " (3,535) 390
Decrease/(increase) in trade, notes and ~ FEURBR X - fEUN = 4% -
other receivables, deposits and Hh KRR e Kk
prepayments B RBER D) 70,580 (211,496)
Increase in trade, other payables and FETRR SR - E M8 3R
accruals RIBIRE A M 26,371 119,068
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & EKELE (FTA) 2R & 124,760 (86,069)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BN RECEMEH (4,428) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) maEmELY (A2
operating activities REFE 120,332 (86,069)
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¥ consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
ﬁ = IE ﬁ /)18 E §

For the year ended 31 December 2017
B ZE2017F12A31B L FE

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’ 000
M =E FHET FH T
Investing activities BEEY
Payment of purchase of property, plant B AWM % - B KR &R
and equipment 17 (132,999) (8316,090)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - f%&%&ﬁ
plant and equipment PR e! 215 =
Payment of purchase of oil and gas E%)\/Eﬁﬁﬂ M HEEMNK
exploration and evaluation assets 18 (10,554) (41,031)
Payment of acquisition of WEAHEESMEEMNK
available-for-sale investments (12,616) (4,852)
Settlement of financial assets at fair value #&&iZ A FEFE BB TR
through profit or loss BB E 17,000 4,235
Increase in loan receivables JE U E SR N 26 (69,180) (22,412)
Proceeds from repayment of loan I EIE 32 e W E RTS8 5RIE
receivables 26 23,060 -
Acquisition of assets through acquisition % i@ Y B — It B 2 &
of a subsidiary, net of cash WEEE (HKREL) 43 (2,031) =
Interest received B FI 2 5,096 20,200
Proceeds from disposal of HERHEESCHEE
available-for-sale investments Fr 1S K18 8,005 =
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash HEMRBA
disposed of ($0BR Fﬁﬂj%ﬁi) 42 - (396)
Net cash used in investing activities 12 &FEFAZIRERE (174,004) (360,346)
Financing activities MEEY
Payment for repurchase of shares E%@Hﬂ (NE:N 38(a)(ii) (98,157) (94,390)
Proceeds from borrowings & & PSR A 33 75,156 394,026
Repayment of borrowings f,aﬁa{a =i 33 - (763,129)
Proceeds from convertible notes BAT AR R IR P15 SRIEF R
issued, net 34 - 1,336,310
Proceeds from corporate bonds, net BT EEAFMERIEFRE 33 134,342 112,028
Repayment of convertible notes upon RE AR EE AT R E &
expiry 34 (167,064) (192,760)
Repayment of a loan from a shareholder (Ei& —ZEE X 31 (79,659) =
Proceeds from a loan from a shareholder — &R E 7 Fﬁ?:E'r FRIE 31 84,821 1,550
Interest paid B FE (128,755) (104,237)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RUEES) (FTH) E&EZ
financing activities IRER%E (179,316) 689,398
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBEEZEEY
cash equivalents GiBL) tEniEE (232,988) 242,983
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1B1HZIRERRNSZEEY 251,530 35,564
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EZ# 28 E 3,224 (27,017)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 P12A31BZHRE R &
December, representing cash and ZEY - MR RRITEER
bank balances 30 21,766 251,530
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Notes to the Financial Statements (‘

GENERAL

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in Bermuda on 2 November 1999 under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“The Stock Exchange”) on 9 February 2000. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company was Suite 3707-
3708, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong, and subsequently in December,
changed to Suite 1201-1202, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 40.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective
1 January 2017

Amendments to HKAS 7

BB G ERETIR 2 ER]

Amendments to HKAS 12

ERGFHERIFE1298 2 EF]

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

BB TSRS 2ER2014-201 658 Hi 2 F B ButE

KBTS

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

2.

Disclosure Initiative

B4 %5 ¥ 3% P 5

31 December 2017
2017F12H31H
—R&EHE
REDREIZERBER AR ([RAGE])RE
BRE1981F R ADE (BIEFT) 19995
MMA2BEBREAMRLARBRE
PR~ A - H AR5 7200062 A9H KR & &
BMeRXZMBRAE (B R E
M o AR &)z 58 E E A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda > NA &) 2 £ B & E i
2 REE T B P 168-2005% 5 2
£ 78 BE3707-3708% * & M12A B X
REBEHEPIBIRTEBRANEI2E
1201-1202%F

ARRAA—RREBRARF  EWEA
Az EBEHHAN U0 -
FRANEEY B &R EEA

(a) REEET EETEEUBER
HEA| - 2017F1A1HRER

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
MABEEEEDEERAEE
Amendments to HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests

in Other Entities
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Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

31 December 2017

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BN EBUBEBREEN(E)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) EEMEBHMKRETZHT &

but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

BB MR EERI2014-20163BH 2
FE U

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

BEBMBwEER2014-2016 B8 2
FEBE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

BB E%ERI2015-2017EH 2
FEB#

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

BB R EERI2015-2017BH 2
FE U

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

BEMB®EER2015-2017A 2
FEBE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

BBMBRELER2015-2017AH 2
FREB#

Amendments to HKFRS 2

BB B HRERRB25 2 1EFT
HKFRS 9

BB B HREERILH
HKFRS 15
BAMBEHREEAFE155

| Annual Report 2017

1EET & &M 4R & 2 A
ARG B A EARATER A T 5 2 8 M B R
HER AT/ EIERI B AN RE LR -
BEMEAAEEREE RS MR
RIER -

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards'
EEVBRELRNE1R ZEFT - BREBE BV BIRELR

Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'
BB ITERFE8R 2 EF] REEE AR REEREZIRE

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business Combinations?

BBV B wEERNEIR NEF] - FEE P2

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements?

BBV BMELERF 115 21ER] © B ELHE?

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes?

BB ST ERIFE1298 2 1E5] + FTiSHi2

Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs?

BRI ERIFE23R 2 ER] - fEEKA?

Classification and Measurement of Share-Based
Payment Transactions'’

AR BEBNRRZ S 2B RFE

Financial Instruments’

BT A

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'’
EPEH W



EEEYTES O

2017%12H31H

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BN EBUBEBREEN(E)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 15

BB B EERFE155 2 EF]
Amendments to HKFRS 40
BRI RELERF405 2 EF]
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22
EE(ARVBHREREZE®)
- REE225%
Amendments to HKFRS 9
RV REERIEOW 2 EFT
HKFRS 16
BB EERF165%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
EE(ERVBREREERZE
- REF235%
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

i3

)

BBMBHEEAF 0N RE B

AR FE 2857 2B F]
Amendments to HKAS 19

(b) ESEHE MK ERZHET 6@
1EET B BT 5 2 A ()

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)!
BEPEAKRE (BEB AU BREERE155%)"

Transfers of Investment Properties!

ERREYE

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’

SN R 5 R FAR BT

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation?
Bt 7% B 16 15 B T8 FRIE2

Leases?

HE?

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

FT 15 75 B2 F2 2 N i 7E 12
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

REFERHEBERNAREGLELE LRz EEHERTE®

Employee Benefits®

BB G ERFE199E 2 EF] & 8 1& 73

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ! 201841 A1H sk 2 1% i 18 &) F & &
January 2018 & 3

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 R2019F1 A1 A sk 2 B 18 00 5F 5 HA
January 2019 S

g The amendments were originally intended to be 2 ZE BT A Z I #R201691 18 3%

effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The effective date has now been deferred/

ZERFABZBRER - AR BAMBRE
B BUE - REEAZSETAD

removed. Early application of the amendments AR ©

continue to be permitted.
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31 December 2017

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Except as explained below, the adoption of these new/

revised HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, removing transition provision
exemptions relating to accounting periods that had already
passed and were therefore no longer applicable.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle —
Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures,
clarifying that a Venture Capital organisation’s permissible
election to measure its associates or joint ventures at fair
value is made separately for each associate or joint venture.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 — Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments;
share-based payment transactions with a net settlement
feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash-
settled to equity-settled.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

2.

RMEBUBREER(8)

(b) EMEMERKEHRZHT &
BT EEMBREER (8)
BT X AR E SN - R Z S AT
CHESCE Ry =R RN S by et

RIBEATE -

&R B & ER2014-201618 # 2
B#E - BEEHEEREIR &
il - BREREER TR & B R
REFESEBERM BT HREL
THEZZHEANEL AR T2 Z
Bk BRUFBMBRELRFENR
BREMEBMBREER BT &
FHETHEERAMABERR S5
HHEBBZBERXHR

BB B 5 3 & 2ERI2014-20161 81,2 F
B # - BEEEERFE28% 2 55T
RBERNFIREELEZRE
BIEFEICERBBRM ZIETEHREL
THRE ZHEEAMEEBART2Y 2
B BIEHE B ST ERFE285H - N
HERNRIRAEELEZREZEE &
REFEREREARBAEER AT ER

~.

EMERRRAECLER 7Y EHE
EBRBEIKNAECENAEFHARERE -

BB &R E25 2 1EFT - KR
DRERNAXRZ A ERGTE
SEBARERERIEFBEFRITH AR
SHREUNBRNDIN 2 EZEFTRE
BHRETAEFREEERB AN
XNZRZ: UERRFERHRASHEE
BE DS AR 2 AR ST IR R R
2 B5T »



ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)
if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election
at initial recognition to measure equity instruments that are
not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

2.

FETEY TN )

2017%12HA31H

RMEBUBREER(8)

(b) EHEMHEEKRERZHTE
BT EAMBREEL (B)
BB HEIREEREIN - HHETA
BB RS AR Eo5 5l B B M K
BESPBERAEZHER - REBEN
BEMEBEMNABRRANRERZERT
B(EBEXIR) AREELER SR
ENGFREERINAERABEER
SHBEZEBIAE (BHNRSREEA
) MBIREIERATE o MZER
EBEXNZENABERENEG AR
MAREEMBEE  AIFEEHNRS
MEBARZERTANKEATFERE
fth 2 E U255 BR ([FVTOCI) 5t 8 - B a2
AT A Y] 2 TR B N Al S 2 12 12
LAFVTOCIFF E W/ EEBE 2R AL
B -FIBEHMESERRATARATE
RiE# 58 ([FVTPL]) °

B 7 B 7% R 5 2 B S5 99 B I 3E LARVTPL
AENMEMBEEMATNIEREE
BEER (BRR T FE S5 ERF395%
MEEEBEBER) AR —REH
BEHAE UBREEBRMBHREANEL
HRBEREREEES -

ERMIEMELENFRERB S AT
HAFEIRE 2 BEBERER - H ARG
EHT  MHIETEUFVIPLAIEZ KB
BRI ZEABEEERREBELEZA
FTEEBcBEREMEZENREER B
FTEEMEARZENZEBEZEFEER
B H B £ e BB B g 5T 88 AL RIE
BlER o LEoN - BB RS E R FHR
BESGHERFEIRE MR BRI
BEERVBABZHRTE -
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31 December 2017

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s

financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently

measured at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with

their respective classification and measurements upon the

adoption of HKFRS 9. The Group also expects to continue

measuring available-for-sale investments at fair value and

there would be no change to the accounting for these

assets.

Under HKFRS 9, there is no change on financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group has financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and
expects that the change in financial liability’s credit risk to
be recognised in other comprehensive income would not
have material impact on financial performance and financial
position of the Group.

The Group expects that the application of the expected
credit loss model will result in earlier recognition of credit
losses. Based on a preliminary assessment, this new
requirement will not have any material impact on the Group
upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS
15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.
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RMEBUBREER(8)

(b) EHEMHEEKRERZHTE
BT EAMBREEL (B)
BB SR EEREIY - BT A (48)
RAAREFCEHNAEER2017F12A
SIAZHBEERAE AEEETH
MR A RFVIPLAt E 2 BB &
EREMB BV B RS ER SR L%
BLHRABRESBZERGFE - A&E
MEHEELE N FEFEATHREERE -
BREEEZ SRS TS A M E

@J o

BIBEEBM RS ERFOF - 1R#H
KA EZVBEAERET@HES - R
2017 12A818 A& BE#E B EE A
FVTPLATEZ WK AE  WEHKNE
ek ERER M FEaEEERRK
ST eHANEENBERER KM BN
TEKERNTE -

AEEFEHEARREEBREEAKSE
BRREHERBEEEE - REVHFME
HEHFBKRNEAE M B RS ERNE
IRBE T EHAREBERTMEATE

BB B HEERE155 - EPEAIHK
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ERNZOLRAUNSEBEREREA - A
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BRENSERNTFEEMAHBE MK
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with customers

(Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to

revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The directors of the Company anticipated that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future will not have a
material impact on the amount reported to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in the future, based on
a preliminary assessment of the new requirements on the
existing business model of the Group as at 31 December
2017.
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31 December 2017

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on

identification of performance obligations; application of

principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and

transition requirements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining the
date of the transaction for determining an exchange rate
to use for transactions that involve advance consideration
paid or received in a foreign currency and the recognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability. The
Interpretation specifies that the date of the transaction for
the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part thereof) is the date on which the entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
if specified conditions are met — instead of at fair value
through profit or loss.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 — Leases
HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of use asset
and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease.
This accounting treatment is significantly different from the
lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

At 31 December 2017, the Group, as lessee, has non-
controllable operating lease commitment of HK$10,388,000.
A preliminary assessment indicated that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and
hence the Group will recognize a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they quality for low value assets or short-term leases upon
the adoption of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of
new requirements may result in changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
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31 December 2017

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12,
Income Taxes, by providing guidance over how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.
Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether
to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together based on which approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume
the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a right to
examine and have full knowledge of all related information
when making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain
tax treatment, then the entity should measure current and
deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity determines
it is not probable, then the uncertainty in the determination
of tax is reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange.

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

(i)  Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared

under the historical cost basis except for certain financial

instruments, which are measured at fair values as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

(i) Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$204,291,000. As at that date, the Group
had total borrowings amounting to HK$533,888,000,
trade, other payables and accruals of HK$407,832,000
and total convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$1,310,000,000. Out of which, borrowings of
HK$77,437,000, trade, other payables and accruals of
HK$407,832,000 and convertible notes with principal
amount of HK$296,000,000 would be due for repayment
within 12 months from the date of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the repayment dates of the
respective agreements, while the Group only maintained its
cash and cash equivalents of HK$21,766,000.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity of the
Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will be able to repay the outstanding
debts and be able to finance its future working capital and
other financial requirements.
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31 December 2017

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(i) Going concern basis (Continued)

Certain measures have been and are being taken to mitigate

the liquidity pressure and to improve the financial position

of the Group, which include, but are not limited to, the

following:

(@) Three major shareholders of the Company have
confirmed that they will provide continuing and
sufficient support to the Group when the Group
face difficulties in repaying the overdue principal and
interests in relation to the above-mentioned borrowings
and convertible notes and finance its operation for
at least twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

(b) The Group is actively identifying any other possible
financing options to strengthen the liquidity of the
Group.

The directors have prepared a cash flow forecast of the
Group covering a period up to 31 December 2018. The
directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group would
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
and to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due within the next twelve months from the date of the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the directors
are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017
on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainty exist
as to whether management of the Company will be able
to achieve its plans and measures as described above.
Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern would depend upon the continuing and sufficient
support from the three major shareholders of the Company
to the Group to meet its operating and financing needs in
foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

(i) Going concern basis (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements do not include

any adjustments that may be necessary should the

going concern basis of preparation be determined to be

inappropriate. These would include any adjustments to write

down the Group’s assets to their net realisable amounts, to

provide for any liabilities which may arise and to reclassify

non-current assets and liabilities as current.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HKD”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of
consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised profits
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.
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31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(a) Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)
Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(a) Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(i) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even if
this results in those non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date, after re-
assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount with
its recoverable amount (see note 4(s)), and whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However, the loss
allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal
(if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable), whichever
is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the
associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to
make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.
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31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Joint arrangements

The group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the
relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and at
least one other party. Joint control is assessed under the
same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as
either:

° Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only the
net assets of the joint arrangement; or

o Joint operations: where the group has both the rights
to assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint
arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

o The structure of the joint arrangement;

° The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

o The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances (including any other
contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures in the
same manner as investments in associates (i.e. using the
equity method — see note 4(d)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Joint arrangements (Continued)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the investment in
joint venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the
same way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint operations by
recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

The property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion
of infrastructure facilities such as platforms, pipelines and
the drilling of development wells is capitalised as oil and gas
properties under property, plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis except
for oil and gas properties which are depreciated by the
units of production method. The useful lives, residual value
and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The useful
lives are as follows:

= Building 20 years
- Leasehold The shorter of their
improvements estimated useful lives or

the lease term
- Compressed natural gas 20 years
(“CNG”) station, building
and ancillary facilities
- Oil and gas properties Unit-of-production method
utilising only proved and
probable oil and gas

reserve as the depletion

base
- Furniture, fixtures and 3 - 10 years
office equipment
- Motor vehicles 4 - 5 years

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalized during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
assets for their intended use are completed. No depreciation
is provided for in respect of construction in progress until it
is completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

4.

E5TBR (&)

() Y% BERREE)

ME- -BELZEGBRHEREENEE
BAOAEN) RAFARFRARE
AREESTE - UG E R TR R R (E
BRZMA - RERERRERE -5
g AFR  RREERFTEE
WRFBRELFR - AABFRAT

- EF 204
- HEWMEEE T AERIEES
B AREEAE)

- EBXAR 205
(TCNGJ) ¥ - 18

FREERE
- HRAE ERLEBE  ER
EEE+ AR
HERRRER

- WA . I**‘*“” 32105

= ﬁ$ VL

ERrTREERARERERBEAR- X
AERERBEERAES  UREERTE
HEZERLEERAN - EEER AR
EREMBECERBTHERREAE - &
ERAEGELENe - MAERTRET
CEANEERR 2= - BB MERER -
ERIREXTIYABRRARERSE
BTN EHRE A 37 E 45 o

BEZEEENSREHIKRE SR
A& 37 BN OB E AT Ye B S5 o

HEWE  BEREREHEE Z W E
B DHEMGSRBAFRELREELZ
ZH - BgRNHERNERPER -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their
useful lives as follows:

- QOil and gas operation rights Unit-of-production
method utilising
only proved and
probable oil and
gas reserve as the
depletion base

- Favourable supplier agreement 10 years

Motor vehicle registration licenses with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in direct costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

(i) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment

when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible

assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment

annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication

that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for

impairment by comparing their carrying amounts with their

recoverable amounts (see note 4(s)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount; however, the carrying
amount should not be increased above the lower of its
recoverable amount and the carrying amount that would
have resulted had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. All reversals are recognised in the
income statement immediately.

(h) Oil and gas exploration and evaluation
assets

Oil and gas exploration and evaluation activity involves the

search for mineral resources, the determination of technical

feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of an

identified resource.

The licence costs paid in connection with a right to explore
are capitalised as oil and gas exploration and evaluation
asset. Once the legal right to explore has been acquired,
costs directly associated with an exploration well are
capitalised as gas exploration and evaluation assets until
the drilling of the well is complete and the results have
been evaluated. These costs include directly attributable
employee remuneration, materials and fuel used, rig costs
and payments made to contractors.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Oil and gas exploration and evaluation
assets (Continued)

Geological and geophysical costs are also capitalised as oil

and gas exploration and evaluation asset.

If extractable coalbed methane or oil are found and, subject
to further appraisal activity (e.g. the drilling of additional
wells), are likely to be capable of being commercially
developed, the costs continue to be carried as an intangible
assets while sufficient/continued progress is made in
assessing the commerciality of the coalbed methane or oil.
Costs directly associated with appraisal activity undertaken
to determine the size, characteristics and commercial
potential of a reservoir following the initial discovery of
coalbed methane, including the costs of appraisal wells
where coalbed methane or oil were not found, are initially
capitalised as an intangible asset.

All such capitalised costs are subject to technical,
commercial and management review as well as review for
indicators of impairment at least once a year. This is to
confirm the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract
value from the discovery. When this is no longer the case,
the costs are written off to profit or loss.

When proved reserves of coalbed methane or oil are
identified, development is sanctioned by management and
approved by relevant government bodies, the relevant
capitalised expenditure is first assessed for impairment and
(if required) any impairment loss is recognised, then the
remaining balance is reclassified to intangible assets and oil
and gas properties under property, plant and equipment.
After reclassification, amortisation or depreciation will be
provided for the respective assets consistent with the
relevant accounting policy. No amortisation or depreciation
is charged during the exploration and evaluation phase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
() Payments for leasehold land held for own
use

Payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases represent up-front payments to acquire
long-term interests in lessee-occupied properties. These
payments are stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on a straight-line basis as an expense.

() Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.

(k) Financial instruments

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to customers (trade debtors), and
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary
asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not included in
other categories of financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.
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31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that financial asset
is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
and that event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

o granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; or

° it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When any part of financial
asset is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is removed
from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

(iii)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)  Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria
are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part
of a group of financial liabilities which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings and the debt element of
convertible loan note issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit
or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)  Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain both the
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into their respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of
similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the convertible
notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible notes
equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes equity reserve until the embedded option
is exercised when the balance stated in convertible notes
equity reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where
the option remains unexercised at the expiry dates, the
balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve will
be released to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible loan notes using the effective interest method.
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Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)  Convertible notes (Continued)

Convertible notes with conversion options which are not
settled by exchanging a fixed amount of cash for a fixed
number of the Company’s own shares comprise a derivative
component and a liability component.

At initial recognition the derivative component of the
convertible notes is measured at fair value. Any excess
of the proceeds over the amount initially recognised as
the derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs relating to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and derivative
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability
component. The portion relating to the derivative component
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised immediately
in profit or loss. The liability component is subsequently
measured at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability component is
calculated using the effective interest method. The liability
component is classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the end of the

reporting period.

(v)  Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(vi)  Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

| Annual Report 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

(vii)  Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not designated
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.

(viii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If
the fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are measured to
reflect the fair value of the financial liability extinguished.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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31 December 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated by using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

(n) Provision and contingent liabilities

(i) Provisions

General

Provision are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(n) Provision and contingent liabilities
(Continued)
(i) Provisions (Continued)
Decommissioning liability
Decommissioning liability is recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
of the amount of obligation can be made. A corresponding
amount equivalent to the provision is recognised as part of
the cost of the related oil and gas properties. The amount
recognised is the estimated cost of decommissioning,
discounted to its present value. Changes in the estimated
timing of decommissioning or decommissioning cost
estimates are dealt with prospectively by recording
an adjustment to the provision, and a corresponding
adjustment to oil and gas properties.

(i)~ Contingent liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then
be recognised as a provision.
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Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Foreign currencies (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the exchange
reserve.

() Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the
year when the employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The
assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
contributions as employer vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the Scheme.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)  Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)

The Group has joined a mandatory central pension
scheme organised by the PRC government for certain of
its employees, the assets of which are held separately
from those of the Group. Contributions made are based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they became payable, in
accordance with the rules of the scheme. The employer’s
contributions vest fully once they are made.

(r) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
other parties are measured at the fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot be
estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at
the date the Group obtains the goods or the counterparty
renders the service.

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability equal to
the portion of the goods or services received is recognised
at the current fair value determined at the end of each
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(s) Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment under cost model;

° intangible assets; and

o investments in subsidiaries, joint venture and associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset or cash generating
unit (see note 4(c)), discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets
is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

(u) Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(v) Related parties

(i) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(v) Related parties (Continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(@) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(b) One entity is joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(e) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(f)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

() A person identified in (i)(a) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(h)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances and
excluded value added tax or other sales related taxes.

(i) Sale of crude oil

Revenue is recognised when crude oil is delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the crude oil delivered
and the related risks and rewards of ownership.

(i) Sale of coalbed methane

Revenue from sale of coalbed methane is recognised when
the coalbed methane is siphoned to the customers’ tankers
which is taken to be the point in time when the customer
has accepted the coalbed methane delivered and the
related risks and rewards of ownership.

Revenue from sales of natural gas through pipeline is
recognised when the natural gas passes through the gas
reader built in CNG station which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the natural gas
delivered and the related risks and rewards of ownership.

(iii) ~ Sale of raw and cleaned coal

Revenue from sale of raw and cleaned coal is recognised
when the raw and/or cleaned coal is loaded to the
customers’ truck which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the raw and/or cleaned coal
delivered and the related risks and rewards of ownership.

(iv)  Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the principal outstanding using the effective
interest method.
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Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
It also occurs if the

classified as held for sale, if earlier.

operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the statement of
comprehensive income, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal groups constituting
the discontinued operation.

| Annual Report 2017
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

(@) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(i) Units of production for depreciation and amortisation
Oil and gas properties are depreciated and intangible assets
are amortised using the units of production method over
total proved and probable oil and gas reserves. This results
in depreciation and amortisation charge proportional to the
depletion of the anticipated remaining production from the
field. Each item’s life, which is assessed annually, having
regard to both its physical life limitations and to present
assessments of economically recoverable reserves of the
field at which the asset is located. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions, including
the amount of recoverable reserves. The calculation of the
units of production rate of depreciation and amortisation
could be affected by actual future production which may
differ from current forecast production based on total
proved and probable reserves. Changes to proved and
probable reserves could arise due to changes in the factors
or assumptions used in estimating reserves, including price
assumptions. If there is any changes in the assumptions
used, the calculation will be changed prospectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
which are described in note 4, management has made
certain key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimated uncertainty at the end of reporting
period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, as discussed below.

(i) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset, which
requires significant judgment relating to level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or reversal of impairment in
future periods.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group performs impairment review for doubtful
accounts based upon evaluation of the recoverability of the
trade receivables and other receivables, where applicable,
at each the end of reporting period. The estimates are
based on the ageing of the trade receivable and other
receivables balances and the historical write-off experience,
net of recoveries. If the financial condition of the debtors
were to deteriorate, additional impairment allowance may be
required.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iii)  Income tax and deferred tax
The Group is subject to income tax in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. Transactions
and calculations may exist for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised to the extent
that management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and tax in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

(iv)  Contingencies

Periodically, the Group assesses potential liabilities related
to any lawsuits or claims brought against the Group or
any asserted claims. Although it is typically very difficult
to determine the timing and ultimate outcome of such
actions, the Group uses its best judgement to determine
if it is probable that it will incur an expense related to the
settlement or final adjudication of such matters and whether
a reasonable estimation of such probable loss, if any,
can be made. In accordance with HKAS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, the Group
accrues a liability when it believes a loss is probable and
the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. Due to
the inherent uncertainties related to the eventual outcome
of litigation, although the Group believes that the estimates
and judgement are reasonable, it is possible that certain
matters may be resolved for amounts materially different
from any estimated provisions or previous disclosures.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(v)  Estimation of assets retirement obligations
Provision is recognised for the future decommissioning
and restoration of oil and gas properties. The amount of
provision recognised is the present value of the estimate
future expenditure. The estimation of the future expenditure
is based on current local conditions and requirements,
including legal requirements, technology, price level, etc.
In addition to these factors, the present value of these
estimated future expenditure is also impacted by the
estimation of the economic lives of oil and gas properties.
Changes in any of these estimates will impact the operating
results and the financial position of the Group over the
remaining economic lives of the oil and gas properties.

(vi)  Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

(vii)  Fair value measurements

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used
in determining fair value measurements are categorised
into different levels based on how observable the inputs
used in the valuation technique utilised are (the ‘fair value
hierarchy’):
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. EXEHHETR&EFTFAHBAERE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EZ2EEEE(8)
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) EFHFABHABERZEEEE
(Continued) (4&)
(vii)  Fair value measurements (Continued) (i) RFEFE (&)
e Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical o FH1: EBRMBHMERIEBRZ
items (unadjusted) ; B (REFHE)
e Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other o E2f: FIKBHEUIIZAER
than Level 1 inputs; B HEL28
e Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from o E3: EABEESLE(ANILIER
market data). BHSEIE) o
The classification of an item into the above levels is based BRE—IEEFEREAE EMEFTIERTEK
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant BEBEAEZATEdFEAEATENS
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers o mBEER BHERSER 2 BEEE
of items between levels are recognised in the period they TR EHAR AR -
oceur.
The Group measures a number of items at fair value: AEEEAFEFEZEER:
o Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note o BAFEEBERINENTEEE
24); (KFsE 24)
e Available-for-sale investments (note 25); and e TAtHESHEE (MHFE25): &
o Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss o BATEBBERIENIMKARE
(note 34) (Pt 5% 34)
For more detailed information in relation to the fair value ELEMEE ATEAECE—FER -
measurement of the items above, please refer to the EARFEERNEE -

applicable notes.
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6. REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are operations of
(i) exploration, development and production of coalbed
methane, (ii) raw coal washing and sale of raw and cleaned
coal, (iii) exploitation and sale of crude oil and natural gas,
and (iv) provision for financial services.

The amount of revenue recognised in turnover during the

year was as follows:

6. EEH

(VIR & B AR TS o

AEBZIZXRBREE
REERER  ()REEEMHEERK
RAERE ~ ()RR R E R B R RXRRAK

(Eh & - 7 %

FARAEEXERR I WAKBELT :

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TFAIT
Continuing operations HEEEER
Sale of coalbed methane HERESR 76,663 57,467
Sale of raw and cleaned coal HE RE MK 417,637 276,086
Interest income on loan receivables e E KA B U A
- note — B 5E 3,635 =
497,935 S8, 558
Discontinued operations BRIEEESEE
Sale of crude oil SHE R A - 5,058
497,935 338,611

Note:

Interest income on loan receivables of approximately HK$866,000
for the year ended 31 December 2016 has been recognised in

“Other income” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

B 2 -

U A J R o
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OTHER INCOME 7. HuaugA
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FABT
Continuing operations FEEEER
Interest income A B WA
- bank deposits - RITTFK 81 134
— short-term investment - HIRE 9,638 9,772
— others (note (i) — H 4t (BT 3E (i) 20,424 39,916
Total interest income on financial WIELE R FEREBREIIERZ
assets that are not at fair value B EE B ABE
through profit or loss 30,143 49,822
Government subsidies and grants BT 478 B R e Bl (BT (i)
(note (i) 20,447 22,042
Others Eb 1,288 397
60,878 73,161
Notes: P E -
(i) It represents the interest income from the refundable deposits () UWhFeElRENERBEEZE RN

paid for possible acquisitions of Canada oil fields. Details

please refer to note 28(iii).

(i) It represents the regular subsidies received during the year (ii)

from relevant government authority on the sales of coalbed
methane for the year of 2016 (2016: from year of 2015) and

VAT refund on the sales of coalbed methane from local tax

bureau. Both of them were generated from the Sanjiao CBM

Project.

RERESHNFBEWA - FEBLHEMH
#E28(iii) °

1tk 75 48 B8 B S &R P9 4 1020164 (2016
F: RBE016F) EXZRERHEEL
A P UCE) 1B T A B e B R 7 AP
FIMEEREERD 2IBENR -ME
HeRE=XKEREAR -
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31 December 2017

OTHER GAINS, NET

8. HiblrzziFaH

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Continuing operations PFEEELER
Change in fair value of financial assets  E A F{EFEBIEZF R
at fair value through profit or loss I EEAFTEES 43,275 2,705
Change in fair value of financial liabilities 1% A (B & BB 5 R A
at fair value through profit or loss VBBEATEE
(note 34) (Fff 5E34) 187,042 52,809
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 21) B E 1A (KT RE 21) (46,705) =
Impairment loss on trade and JE LS B SR T L Ath JE K BR 5K
other receivables BB R 1B (4,989) =
Written off of property, plant and FHEYE - BENREE
equipment (35) =
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  WMERKEMNS KRS
plant and equipment 28 -
Loss on disposal of HERHRNECHEENEE
available-for-sale investments (1,606) -
Reclassification from equity to profit or ~ HE At H & & & ER
loss on disposal of available-for-sale BREENSEEER
investments (260) =
Exchange gains, net PE 5 Uk &5 )5 58 1,556 1,933
Others H A 3,065 905
181,371 58,352
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LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. KEBEEEERNKRAEH

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS T HEiE5E
Loss before income tax expense from continuing operations KEFEEKREEBSHBRNERH X HAE
is arrived at after charging: BEHR :
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
Continuing operations FEEEET
(a) Finance costs (a) RBIERE
Amortisation of convertible notes AR ERNRZ 5 KA
transaction costs (note 34) 2 (M s 34) 14,872 8,539
Amortisation of corporate bonds TEBEHFNRZHEA
transaction costs 2B 10,822 7,730
Interest on borrowings & FH B 3,582 28,207
Imputed interest on convertible AR =I5 2 FE & T B
notes (note 34) (Fff 3% 34) 264,658 111,756
Interest on corporate bonds TEEHFZH 31,123 21,735
Interest on promissory note bE 5 =4 2 F - 728
Others H b 5,077 4,900
330,134 183,595
Less: interest capitalised in W EBARKREEZ
qualifying assets* &AL F B> (7,961) (30,633)
322,173 152,962

* RFEAEGREBEEZBERAZIER

RREER —RIEBELA17.7% (2016
capitalisation rate of 17.7% (2016: 14.6%) to expenditure on F: 14.6%) FEFLAEARL ©
qualifying assets.

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the

general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
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9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. REFEEEXZHHRMENR
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS T HEEE (8)
(Continued)
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH T
(b) Employee costs (including (b) BEIRZXK
directors’ remuneration in (BiEKME12Z2EEmME)
note 12)
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe - TERHMET 41,122 35,043
Contributions to defined contribution TE 8t SR R ET Bl 2 5K
retirement plan 770 493
41,892 35,536
(c) Other items (c) H#IEH
Auditor’s remuneration 1ZELED B 1,700 1,700
Cost of inventories sold recognised EEGFTERAERSE R
as expenses’ 375,368 243,805
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BERKEITE
equipment 53,188 41,552
Amortisation of payments for B A E T #5285
leasehold land held for own use 233 237
Amortisation of intangible assets* A B 2 i (M EE20)
(note 20) 20,251 19,688
Minimum lease payments under KEHE v REBEERIE
operating lease — property rentals -MEHES 12,257 9,898

& Included in “direct costs” in the consolidated statement of *‘

comprehensive income.
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 10. BRILESET

On 1 September 2016, the Group entered into a sale and M2016F9H1H ' A&EEF Y —HEE
purchase agreement to dispose of Key Wisdom Investments RN EREREERARARERBA
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively known as “Key A (ABIBREEE)) - BESERFPE
Wisdom Group”), which was engaged in the exploitation and ARZLFIEE ([HE])EERAEREER
sale of crude oil and natural gas in the People’s Republic of R A R ETS o HER2016F9A1H
China (“PRC”). The disposal was completed on 1 September TR CBRIEKEERZEENRER
2016. The results and cash flows of the discontinued =R (N

operations were as follows:

1 January 2016
to 1 September

2016

20164

1A18ZE

201698 1H

HK$’000

FA&T

Revenue S 5,058
Direct cost BEKA (7,638)
Gross loss E#E (2,580)
Other income E g A 43
Administrative expenses THER (3,601)
Loss from operations L E R (6,138)
Finance costs B & A AN -
Loss before income tax expense BRAETISFZ LRI E 1B (6,138)
Gain on disposal of Key Wisdom Group (note 42) & B R & B A ek (P 5T 42) 11,647
Income tax expense s i =
Profit for the period from discontinued operations KE B EE TR B A m 5,509
Net cash used in operating activities BEEFFTRA 2R E 558 (6,416)
Net cash used in investing activities KREEEFA RS 558 -
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHTACIRE F5E (17,535)

Net cash outflows IR F R (23,951)
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

11.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Key
Wisdom Group at the date of disposal are disclosed in note
42 to the financial statements.

A profit of HK$11,647,000 arose on the disposal of Key
Wisdom Group, being the proceeds of disposal less the
carrying amount of Key Wisdom Group’s net assets. Neither
tax charge nor credit arose from the disposal.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda, Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group
is not subject to any income tax under such jurisdictions for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the group companies which have estimated assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax had estimated tax
losses available to offset against the estimated assessable
profits for both years. During the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016, the subsidiaries in the PRC were subject to
statutory tax rate of 25%.

Profits of the subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject
to the Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”). Under the Law of the
People’s Republic of China and Implementation Regulation
on EIT, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.

| Annual Report 2017
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11.

ERILESEE (&)

BESEZEENBERHERRZER
EER M B MR M 42N B EE -

& BR K & B B A i M11,647,00008
T BB ERSHRERBREREEZEE
FEZKREE - BEXEELEEANE
xR -

FrigHi % i

BEERE FEHEREBEHERRE
SRAUEHRL  NREBHZE2017F &
201612 H31 8 L FE B AT HE 7 7
ERER 2 EAFTEE

BB RSB T AR F E 2 (f 51 B R B R
F4£216.5% (2016%F : 16.5% ) 5T & - M
REBRF (BEBEEBNEBRNEH 2
5T FE SR B 0% A1) B 16 5t 30 18 B 18 7T 1R
SHP 5% R 8 2 2 et AR Bl & A1l - i
WRERIREBNGHEMR - B ZE2017F
N2016F12H31BIEFE  URFE 2
Bt /&8 A B4R V5 FE B SR 25 % AN T 1B o

TR BB S 2 Y B & B 2 i A 2B B b
EMEH(TEEMER]) - REHEA
RAMBIERMEEAGHRE M IED
TEMBARRZMEFEZHESR
25% °



11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(@ The amount of income tax expense, charged to the

P FY S @)

2017%12HA31H

1. IR#HX W ()
@ BEAXEAKIROFAERIHE

consolidated statement of comprehensive income o
represents:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Continuing operations HEEEER
Current income tax BNVEA BT 15 B¢
- PRC enterprise income tax - R ERER
- Tax for the year - RFEHIA (2,330) (2,975)
— Under-provision in respect - HEFHNRETRE
of prior years (914) _
(3,244) (2,975)
Deferred tax for the year (note 35) FRNZEEFIE (K1 5E35) 1,709 1,732
Income tax expense FTiS R 2 i (1,535) (1,243)
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(b)  The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the Group’s loss before income tax expense per the

1. FiRBiZ (&)

b)) AFRZAGHILEGEZEK
TR AR FTF S BB R

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as HERA TN ¢
follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Continuing operations BHECEER
Loss before income tax expense B P13 B 2 Al A5 18 158,026 98,335
Tax credit on loss before income tax Fr{SfiZ H AT & 18 - 1225%
expense, calculated at 25% (2016: 25%) (20164 : 25%) 5T & 39,506 24,584
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries A £ {th 517517 & & & 2 B A 7
operating in other jurisdiction TRME HE (5,188) (8,359)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A1k 5% H & B 78 2R 5 W A
and non-taxable income 2GR (31,729) (15,839)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERZHIEEBE 2R E (3,210) (1,629)
Under-provision in respect of prior years %} {F < H # & 1T & (914) =
Income tax expense FriS 8 sz i (1,535) (1,249)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$19,455,000 (2016:
HK$9,973,000) available for offset against future profits.
The tax losses are subject to the final assessment by the
tax authorities in the respective jurisdictions where the
tax losses arising from. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$16,410,000 (2016: HK$6,345,000) that may be carried
forward for a period of five years from their respective year
of origination. The remaining unrecognised tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

In respect of deferred tax liabilities, details set out in note
35,
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. EEME
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: EEMeHELOT :
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B E20175F12A31B L FEE

Salaries, Retirement

Directors’ allowances scheme
fees and benefits contributions Total
Fig BB BIRETEl
Exng R H® @zt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TER TERT
Executive directors WITES
Dai Xiaobing E1 9= - 2,514 18 2,532
King Hap Lee RA - 2,000 18 2,018
Wan Tze Fan Terence BT E - 2,000 18 2,018
- 6,514 54 6,568
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter HEZ2 200 - - 200
Wong Lung Tak Patrick = 200 - - 200
Wang Yanbin FiEH 200 - - 200
Dang Weihua HEE 200 - - 200
800 - - 800
Non-executive directors FRITES
Chen Hua R 200 - - 200
Huang Shaowu AR 200 - - 200
He Lin Feng I A& 200 - - 200
Chen Chun Tung Jason' RIRE 150 - - 150
750 - - 750
1,550 6,514 54 8,118
Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the ENENRTESZ2HE 2 AE
executive directors are generally emoluments in respect HEMNBESREEZEALTHEARRR
of those persons’ other services in connection with the HEWBAREEESHATRME 2 Mk
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries. %2 o
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12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. EENE& (8)
(Continued)
Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows: (Continued) EEMaomEBENOT : (8)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE2016F12A31B ILEE
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances scheme
fees  and benefits  contributions Total
E2 =3 RIRGTE
Yok KR 5% @Et
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTAEL FTAEL AT BT
Executive directors HITES
Dai Xiaobing /N = 2,497 18 2,515
King Hap Lee =7 - 2,000 18 2,018
Wan Tze Fan Terence BTE - 2,000 18 2,018
- 6,497 54 6,551
Independent non-executive directors BIUFHTES
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter HEZ 200 - - 200
Wong Lung Tak Patrick =EE 200 - - 200
Wang Yanbin B30 200 - - 200
Dang Weihua ERE 200 - - 200
800 - - 800
Non-executive directors EHTEE
Chen Hua PR 200 - - 200
Huang Shaowu AR 200 - - 200
He Lin Feng RN 200 - - 200
Chen Chun Tung Jason! RHRE 51 - - 51
651 - - 651
1,451 6,497 54 8,002
Notes: B &
1. Appointed in September 2016 and resigned in November i R20165F9 A & T X R20174511 A &
2017 e
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 12. EEME (8)
(Continued)
During the year, no emoluments (2016: HK$Nil) were paid FR AEEBVERAEIANESEIAHME
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to (20165 : A TT) ERBFMA RN
join or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss AREB R BEISIEABRB 2 @E -
of office. None of the directors waived or agreed to waive HE20174F K2016%F12A31H I FE -
any remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2017 BMEEEHRENXREREEABHE -
and 2016.
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 13. ZEE#HAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBRAUZSHALTH =z (2016
Group, three (2016: three) were directors of the Company F =) BARAZES EMEE
whose emoluments are disclosed in note 12. The emolument EMFE12%: 58 - Hermifiz (20164 : M
of the remaining two (2016: two) individuals is as follows: ) &EEmHFALTZHST -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Salaries and other emoluments Fe hEMmie 3,725 3,351
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior EXfHENTaREEREKE GEE
management (non-director individual) were within the BEAD)ZBENFTHEHE
following bands:
2017 2016
Number Number
of individuals of individuals
A& A
Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/%8 7T A T 5 5
HK$1,000,000 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 2 6

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the above
highest paid non-director individual as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of
office.

AEEYERN EARSHFHFEFTALX
N ERBEMAIRIMAREERZ
REIERBRZAE -
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14.

15.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNING PER SHARE

For continuing operations

a)  Basic loss per share from continuing operations

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing
operations is based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company from continuing operations of HK$160,367,000
(2016: loss of HK$102,495,000) and the weighted
average number of 16,794,881,000 ordinary shares (2016:
17,443,525,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

b)  Diluted loss per share from continuing operations
Diluted loss per share from continuing operations for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is the same
as the basic loss per share from continuing operations as
the Company’s outstanding share options and convertible
notes, where applicable, had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share from continuing operations for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

For discontinued operations
a)  Basic earning per share from discontinued operations

The calculation of basic earning per share from discontinued
operations is based on the profit attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$5,509,000 and the weighted average
number of 17,443,525,000 ordinary shares in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

b)  Diluted loss per share from discontinued operations

Diluted loss per share from discontinued operations for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is the same as the
basic earnings per share from discontinued operations as
the Company’s outstanding share options and convertible
notes, where applicable, had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share from discontinued operations for the
year ended 31 December 2016.
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FEAEMEE (20164 : £) -

Sk (&E) B
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(@) KEFRELEREES FRENER
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BARNREBARBRELEES 2 E
1f7 E518160,367,000/8 7T (20164 : /&
$#8102,495,000% 7T) * A R F RN B 817
T A% 2 b0 #E - 5 £016,794,881,000%
(20164 : 17,443,525,000/%) & 8 f% 51

b

5_0

(b) KEFRFECEERBZ FRBGEE
HZE2017F K2016F12A31H L F[E -
REFBEEEB 2 RESEIBER
BERECEEBZERENEBEBER -
AARRRIEARITEZBERERTRRKRE
B (MEA) - §E E2017F R20164F
12A31MBEFERN  REKELEER
CEREXNEBEEREEVE -

ERILEZBERE
(a) KEEKIIKEREFEFRELRE
7

REERIELEER 2 BRERRR T
BB A A% A A K& (& 315,509,000
Bt A RE £2016F12A31H8 1
FERNEETEBR ZMEFHH
17,443,525,000/0% L@ AT & -

(b) KEERIAEE XS C FREEE
bl

HZE2016F12A31HILFE - REABER
IEREXB 2 ERBEEBRERGER
IEREEE 2 BREABFER @ BA
NEEARITEE 2 AR R AT R EE (A
W) HE E2016F12A318 IEF E
N REERIECEEBZERERE
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that
are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has four (2016: three) operating and reportable
segments. The segments are managed separately as each
business offers different products and services and requires
different business strategies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:
Coalbed methane: Exploration, development and
production of coalbed methane
Raw and cleaned coal: Raw coal washing and sale of
raw and cleaned coal
Oil and gas exploitation:  Exploitation and sale of crude oil
and natural gas

Financial services: Provision for financial services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had a
new business unit, Financial services, which was engaged in
the provision of financial services in the PRC. The directors
believe that the information about this segment is useful
to the users of the consolidated financial statements and
separately disclosed.

There are no sales or trading transactions between the
business segments. Corporate revenue and expenses are
not allocated to the operating segments as they are not
included in the measurement of the segments’ results used
by the chief operating decision-maker in the assessment of
segment performance.

As disclosed in note 10, the Group disposed the Key
Wisdom Group on 1 September 2016, which led to
discontinue part of the operations of oil and gas exploitation
segment. In accordance with HKFRS 5, part of the segment
of oil and gas exploitation for the year ended 31 December
2016 was classified as discontinued operations in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Oil and gas exploitation segment in continuing operations
for the years ended 2016 and 2017 represented the Canada
Farm-in Project (note 18) and possible acquisition for
Canada oil fields (note 28(iii)).

pmmEmE )
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16. D EBHE

AEBERTIBLEAREZMLAAE
HEREE MR R c MEBEELEDE -

REEERMME (20165 : =f) 2&E K
ARENHM - -ARNZTEEBRHTIRAE
m MR T ENREBRE - R #BEA
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BEIHE

KER : BiK - FEM
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REERAERE - R TEM
HERKRIBR

BMMRARFR : BERIEERAMN
RAAR

& B AR - RHTBRE

HE2017F12A31BILFEE AEEH
— B EBEMN - SRS RPBER
ERHEHRBE -EZTRAE ZHIBZ
EMEDRPTHREGAMBHRE  WiE
B HEE o

EBoEYLBELHEREERS - ¥
WARBRXTIHIEZEEEEDH  RA
REEERERRENADBRIAEODH
XEAEYEBREARERFASER -

A0 B SE10FT 3 B - A & B R20164F9
A1AHEREERE  SEHKIEABM
RKARFHE S A X - BEBEY
% E =R FE55% - RNELE20165F12A4
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

(a) Business segments

16. ST EB3R & (48)

(a) EF5HE

Segment information about these businesses is set out as BRAZETEGB 2O EREIMAT
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE2017F12A31HILFEE
Continuing operations
REEEER
Coalbed Rawand Ol and gas Financial
methane cleaned coal exploitation services  Unallocated Total
Rt
KER FREREE XARRE  2RRE OB &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TiER TER TER TER
Results E3
Revenug from extenal customers RENRERZUA 76663 417,697 - 3,635 - 497935
Segment results'® DHFER 1,324 9,050 17317 1,588 (41,791) (12,452)
Change in fair value of financial iabilties BATEERBR]ENHRAR
at fair value through profit or loss LATEEY - - - - 187,042 187,042
Change in fair value of financial assets BATHEERERIIRNAEEE
at fair value through proft or loss LATEED - 43,275 = = = 43,215
Impaiment loss on goodwill BERERE - (46,705) - - - (46,705)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables ~ EMEZ R At BUGUERESE - - - (4612) (317) (4,989)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HENHENESREENER
investments - - - - (1,606) (1,606)
Finance costs BERA - (4,255) - - (7918 (322,179
Share of loss of an associate EE-FHenREE (419) - = = = (418)
(Loss)/proft before income tax expense BEER X LA (BIE) /% 906 1,365 17,317 (3,024)  (174,650)  (158,026)
Income tax expense FIER M - (1,535) - - - (1,535)
(Loss)/proft for the year KEE (B8)/ %) 906 (170 1737 (3024 (1746500  (159,561)
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Reportable segment assets® FEET 2 4,605,341 260,378 345,831 74,089 128,920 5,409,559
Reportable segment liabilties® THEAPERE 320,346 88,080 16 531 1,836,091 2,245,064
Other segment information Ay iEs
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 65,554 7,125 - 9 895 73,672
Capital expenditure incurred during FREEZERTH
the year 129,116 11,270 15,948 - 375 156,709
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Business segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is set out as

follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016

PEEET RN @)

16. &P & ()
(a) EIBHE (&)
EERSEB 2 S BARBAMT

2017%12H31H

HE2016FE12A31H ILEE

Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
B
Coalbed Rawand  Qiland gas Oil and gas
methane  cleaned coal  exploitation  Unallocated Subtotal  exploitation Total
RmAl RiAl
RER FREREE XARRR AR Mt RARRR it
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR Thn TR TR Thn TR TR
Results E3
Revenue from exteral customers RENREEZBA 57,467 276,086 - - 333,553 5,058 338,611
Segment results'®? NHFER (5,934) 11,706 35,134 (38,426) 2,480 6,138) (3,658)
Change in fair value of financial BATHEERBHIIRY
liabilties at fair value through HHaELATEED
profit or loss - - - 52,809 52,809 - 52,809
Finance costs BERE - (1,782) - (151,180 (152,962) - (152,96
Share of loss of an associate EE—FHRERAER (662) - - - (662) - (662)
Gain on disposal of subsidlaries HENBAR 2 W - - - - - 11,647 11,647
(Loss)/profit before income tax expense  BRFR/ER X AT (BR) /&7 (6,59) 9,924 3,134 (136797)  (98,339) 5,509 (92,826)
Income tax expense FEfx - (1,161) - 82) (1,243 - (1,249)
(Loss)/profit for the year AERE(BR)/ & (6,59) 8,763 35,13 (136879  (99,578) 5,509 (94,069)
Assets and liabilities BERERE
Reportable segment assets® AREDPEE 4341068 374,132 303238 225348 5,244,681 - 5,244,681
Reportable segment liabilities® TRESHEE 259,243 89,982 15 1,803,798 2,153,038 - 2153038
Other segment information HhpHEs
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH 53,740 7,018 - 674 61,432 45 61,477
Capital expenditure incurred during FREEZERRH
the year 347,998 " 41,307 288 390,310 - 390,310
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 16. P EPEE (8)

(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) EBHE(E)

Notes: PR EE

1. Unallocated results mainly include salaries, rental expense 1. ROBELEZTEPEIRA HE& Rk
and professional fees for Hong Kong head office. BEEREAARBMERAS -

2. The 2017 segment result of coalbed methane included 2. 2017TFRERZDANEEBCEBITMH
government subsidies and grants of HK$29,447,000 (2016: BY X 6 B129,447,0007% T (20164 :
HK$22,942,000). 22,942,000/8 7T) °

3. Unallocated assets mainly include cash and cash equivalents, 3. APMREETBREREMBE L ERE
short term investment, and available-for-sale investments Y RHRERAIHEEESREE K
and unallocated liabilities mainly include short-term loans, SPHEEETITEQREESHER B
convertible notes, corporate bonds and financial liabilities at ER CEBELEMEBEAFEBRBIBE
fair value through profit or loss. HI| R &) B 75 B 1R o

(b) Geographical information and major (b) MEEHEREFEEFR

customers
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue from external customers and non-current assets
other than financial instruments (“specified non-current
assets”).

(i)  Revenue from external customers
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
geographical location of the customers:

TRUAEE KB INRETF 2 Wat KB
ERITANIINZFERBEE ([F5EFFR
BEE])ETON -

()

K EINRE P Z W as

AEEEEFPEE| D 2 MmN T

2017 2016

Continuing Continuing  Discontinued
operations operations operations Total

HE & BE&IE
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
FERT FHAT FAT FHAT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (Fitth) - - - -
The PRC H 497,935 238,668 5,058 338,611
497,935 333,553 5,058 338,611
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16. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Geographical information and major
customers (Continued)
(i) Specified non-current assets
The information of the Group’s non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets is detailed below:

msmzmE
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16. P EPEE (8)
(b) WMESHEETEEFR(E)

() HEEIERBEE
ARAREREEBEYS HRDE
B2 AHFRMT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH#ET FE&IT

Continuing operations HEEEER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (FrEH) 3,972 4,274
The PRC s 4,577,515 4,281,114
Canada mEx 55,109 41,186
4,636,596 4,326,574

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
were five customers contributed to 10% or more revenue to
the Group’s total revenue.

FEEXFREH

HE20174F F2016F12 A31H IEFfE -
FREFEMASEEZ RKAEI0%RK
ZM10% °

2017 2016
Segment HK$’000 HK$’000
5EB TFHET FHAT
Customer A Raw and cleaned coal 124,108 78,296
BEFA JRBE R R
Customer B Raw and cleaned coal 96,232 53,283
EFB JRBE T A B
Customer C Raw and cleaned coal 78,496 51,916
EFC JRBE B K B
Customer D Coalbed methane 76,663 57,456
%FD HKER
Customer E Raw and cleaned coal 60,604 33,381
®PE JR B R R
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% BERRE

CNG Furniture,
station and Oil fixtures
Leasehold ancillary  Construction andgas  and office Motor
Building improvements facilites  in progress  properties  equipment  vehicles Total
fif B
CNGIER RER
B7 HEWREE EERE ERIE  hREE MOZER bl | Eh
(note (i) (note (if)
(ake)  (Bsg)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR AL AL iR Tir  TEr  TEn
Costs: R :
At 1 January 2016 2016451 A1 1,515 982 334,088 143331 1,476,382 4410 13162 1,973,870
Additions HE - 455 16,362 243,31 86,808 1,278 729 349,008
Transfer S - - 1925 (73,379) 71,454 - - =
Disposal of subsidaries HERBAF
(note 42) (Rt 42) - (932) - (21,205 (244,950 - (549) (267,658
Exchange adjustments EiA% (92) (37) (19,855) (15,706) (86,299) (308) (684)  (122,881)
At 31 December 2016 R2016412A318 1,423 468 332,520 216,392 1,303,398 5380 12,758 1,932,334
Additions HE 197 216 11,487 50,511 77,021 337 858 140,627
Transfer 25 = = 6,952 (234,888) 227,936 - - -
Acquired through acquistion ~ EBUE-R
of a subsidiary EGEFN - 1 - - - 133 - 134
Written off fisH = = = = = - (128) (128)
Disposal for the year EntE - - - - - - (837) (837)
Exchange adjustments EiA% 10 26 23,168 12,608 108,565 379 639 145490
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12A318 1,730 11 3ra 21 104,618 1,716,915 6,229 13,290 2,217,620
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERRE (&)

(Continued)
CNG Furniture,
station and Oil fixtures
Leasehold ancillary  Construction andgas  and office Motor
Building improvements facilities  in progress  properties  equipment  vehicles Total
fif B
CNGIER RER
By HEWERE EERE ERIE  hREE MOZER RE Eh
(note (i) (note (if)
(Mske)  (Bs)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TERL TR AL TR TR Tér  TEn  TEn
Accumulated depreciation Bt TERA{E
and impairment
At 1 January 2016 20165141 6 923 1,720 21,718 239,829 2,613 7381 274,140
Charge for the year (note 9(c) A it (M E9(c) 71 47 19,712 = 19,483 800 1439 41562
Written back on disposal BEHENBAR
of subsidiaries (note 42) (Rtit42) - (884) - (21,005 (229,405) - (510)  (252,024)
Exchange adjustments EiA% = (22) - (499) (8,514) 200) (355 (9,584)
At 31 December 2016 R2016412A31H m 64 21,432 - 21,393 3,213 7906 54,084
Charge for the year (note 9(c) ~ F M it (H5E9(c)) 82 9 22,559 - 28,049 794 1610 53188
Written off i - - - - - - (93) 93
Written back on disposal BELE - - - - - - (650) (650)
Exchange adjustments BiAE - 5 29 - - 252 43 699
At 31 December 2017 R2017612A31H 159 163 44,020 - 49,442 4259 9185 107,28
Carrying amount: fREE:
At 31 December 2017 Ro017E12A318 1,571 548 330,107 104,618 1,667,473 1,970 4106 2,110,392
At 31 December 2016 20165124318 1,346 404 311,088 216,392 1,282,000 2,167 4853 1,878,250

2017 & %R
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Impairment assessment

For the purpose of impairment testing, CNG station and
ancillary facilities, oil and gas properties, construction in
progress and certain furniture, fixtures and office equipment,
motor vehicles and intangible asset (note 20) are allocated
to the Sanjiao CBM Project, representing an individual cash
generating unit (“CGU”"). As at the end of the year ended
31 December 2017 and 2016, the directors of the Group
did not identify any impairment indicators in Sanjiao CBM
Project. Nevertheless, the recoverable amount of Sanjiao
CBM Project as at the end of these reporting periods were
estimated, based on value in use calculations (“VIU”) using
cash flow projections from formally approved budgets and
capital expenditure which reflects the development and
production plan of this CGU. The recoverable amounts
were estimated to be higher than the carrying amounts of
the non-financial assets of Sanjiao CBM Project. As such,
no impairment loss was recognised. The pre-tax discount
rate used in the VIU calculations at 31 December 2017 was
17.5%.

For the purpose of impairment testing, certain leasehold
improvements, furniture, fixtures and office equipment,
motor vehicles and intangible asset (note 20) are allocated
to the raw and cleaned coal CGU. The recoverable amount
of the raw and cleaned coal CGU is determined based on
either fair value less costs to disposal or VIU whichever is
higher. The recoverable amount of the raw and cleaned coal
CGU has been determined from VIU based on cash flow
projections from formally approved budgets covering an
eight-year period, which is the remaining contractual period
of the coal washing leased factory. Management considered
that the budgets should cover the remaining contractual
period of the coal washing leased factory as it reflects the
development and production plan of this CGU.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

17. Y% - BERRE (&)

BT

FRERSME - ONGUM REEEFR M
BREE HEIEERETERM BE
RKERPAERE REREFEE
(F20) P EE=RXEERIBE KX
—EABLRcELEN ((REELE
fir]) - REE20174 201612 A31H
EFE AEEESTER=IEER
BHHEFNETMABRETRR REWMOL =
REEBRBERZEREH 2T KE &
HERBREAEE(FEREERD HKABE
AEBEREAT S (RBEARSE
EBEN REREERS) CRERE
TERIEF o T Bl @ BB R R =R E
EREEECHREECEAMEB AL
I f% 1 SRR (B B 18 o ;2017412 A 31
H SHEFREEMAZRAITERR
17.5% °

SRBEANRME  ETHEMERE
G BEERERBAERE RER
BREE (MiE20) D RERK BRI
TEAEM FRRMERASELSEN
ZAE e R T AR FER B A
EREETIESEETE - REMBK
REELBEN A NESEE EA#ME
BENFH(AAREERZIHTED
HEECHeRERRNCEREERE
E-ERERR HEERBEAKES
BHETEOH RRAERERRARS
EEBU s RABREEES -
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18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Impairment assessment (Continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities belonging to the raw and
cleaned coal CGU were amounting to RMB164,507,000
while the recoverable amount of the raw and cleaned
coal CGU, as determined by an independent professional
firm of valuers, based on VIU using cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets and capital expenditure
was approximately RMB124,000,000, which was
RMB40,507,000 less than the respective carrying
amounts. As such, the directors of the Group determined
an impairment loss of RMB40,507,000 (equivalent to
HK$46,705,000), which was fully allocated to goodwill
and was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. No impairment loss was allocated
to other assets mentioned above. Details of the key
assumptions used in VIU are set out in note 21.

Notes:

(i) It represents oil and gas properties under construction as at
the end of the reporting period.

(i) It represents gas wells located in Sanjiao block as at the end
of the reporting period.

OIL AND GAS EXPLORATION AND
EVALUATION ASSETS

msmzmE

2017%12HA31H

17. Y% - BERRE (&)

BIEET L (48)

RBEHRERE  BBRRERBE
ReErBUzEERABBEREEAA
R #164,507,0007T + i R & & 15 K35
CELBUZAIREBSENBARE
124,000,0007T (Jh 48 — R B 3L B ¥ 4
BMTIRBEREBERAE EXA L ETE
BEREATHZREREEAETE) -
R HBR®E A A K #40,507,0007T °
f AEEEFETREBEAAR
#40,507,0007T (18 % 146,705,000/
) VW EHIRERE  REEE2E
Wk ANER -BEREBEIRE £
mEMmEE FRAFREEMKAZE
ERBHAM 21 -

()  ERRRHE AR 2 2R

(i) HERFINBEPHERBLR=E
Bz RH;t -

18. MR BN R RF L EE

HK$'000
FAT
Cost: R :

At 1 January 2016 201651 H41H -
Additions NE 41,031
Interest capitalised (note 9(a)) & AREF B (M EE9(a) 276
At 31 December 2016 201612 A431H 41,307
Additions NE 10,554
Interest capitalised B A S 1,870
Exchange adjustment [ 5 38 & 3,524
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12H31H 57,255
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18. OIL AND GAS EXPLORATION AND

EVALUATION ASSETS (Continued)

Canada Farm-in Project

In October 2015, the Company’s subsidiary, SOG
Energy Inc., entered into a farm-in agreement (“farm-
in arrangement”) with a Canadian company (“Farmor”).
Pursuant to the farm-in arrangement, the Company became
as a Farmee shall drill the test well within an area (“farm-
out Land”) agreed between the Farmor and Farmee. When
the Farmee has drilled the test well to an agreed depth and
if the anticipated output from any zone in the farm-out Land
are reasonably anticipated to be covered the cost of drilling,
equipping and operating of the wells, Farmee shall case the
well and conduct production test. Once the Farmee caps
the test well with the obligation to conduct production test
and has performed all related obligations under farm-in
arrangement to Farmor’s reasonable satisfaction, Farmee
shall earn the interests in the farm-out Land, subject to
the reservation to Farmor therefrom the agreed royalty.
No consideration is paid by the Group to the Farmor, but
the Group needs to be responsible for all the costs of the
drilling. Under this farm-in arrangement, the Farmor giving
up future economic benefits, in the form of its oil reserves, in
exchange for a reduction in future funding obligations. The
Group recognises its expenditure under the arrangement in
respect of its own interest and that retained by the Farmor,
as and when the costs are incurred. The Group accounts
for its expenditure under this farm-in arrangement in the
same way as directly incurred exploration and evaluation
expenditure. Up to 31 December 2017, the Company
incurred around HK$57,255,000 drilling costs for this farm-
in project (2016: HK$41,307,000).

The Group classified this farm-in project as oil exploration
and evaluation assets under HKFRS 6. The directors
have assessed the impairment of this oil exploration
and evaluation assets in accordance with the criteria
under HKFRS 6 and by reference to the progress in the
implementation of this farm-in project during the year.
The directors concluded that there are neither facts nor
circumstances which may indicate that the carrying amount
of this oil exploration and evaluation assets has exceeded
the recoverable amount as at the end of reporting period.
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18. MR EN R RFHEE (&)

MMZE XFarm-inlg B

R2016F 108 » A2 A B A A
SOG Energy Inc.B2 —R £ KA &
([Farmor ) 8T 3Zfarm-int% 3% ([farm-in%&
D) o B#Efarm-inZ Bk - A2\ (1EA
Farmee) # FAFarmorf2Farmeel# & &) E
& ([farm-outt i ]) P& R B & - R
FarmeeE S RAI G H Z W ERE R - i
& T 4 78 Bl 2 & farm-outt A {E fa] [&
BHEAESREEER REREE
SH A B AR R - Farmee i N2 i 30 1T
A EBH o — BFarmeefE i 174 E B
BEE TR FHHTE - W EFarmors 12
SHHB B Tfarm-inZ BEE T~ Fr A 4878
& © Farmee#% & Blfarm-out 1 b A9 ##
= B RFarmor M4 E MBS o
7N &= E Y & [\ Farmorss £ [ K -
MAEEFTAEMBERKAR - BB
farm-in%Z B © Farmorf ZE B 18 &% 7 &
(WEARMESR)  UWBEBRBREBEES
REZEFT -REAELER AEEE
FEH B &z & BFarmorfR B ) # 25 1
RENEBALHBETHRE - A5EE
AR ASE R Farm-inZ HE T8 T 8953
XHEAREEEEMBERTHIE -
EZE20175F12A318 - AR A B & it
farm-inJ& B 2 4 # R ;X 74 4957,255,000
770 (20164 : 41,307,000/ 7T) °

BEEBMBEREERFCH  ~&EH
1% #Zfarm-inT8 B 9 %8 & A\ 8 IR & 51
BE -RBREABUBHREEDF6HIE
TR RE L2 ZEF AT #%farm-inJ8 B
MEE  BEFCTEZAHDEETE
BEMBRE -ZBEZHTE  HRNBEHHELE
REF - A =B XIFN O] LR T %
EHOEERTHEENEEOEDBBAE
A E S 58 ©
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19. PAYMENT FOR LEASEHOLD LAND HELD 19. B ST
FOR OWN USE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FHET

At 1 January M1 A1R8 4,277 4,812
Amortisation for the year AN S G (233) (237)
Exchange adjustments bE 5 B 312 (298)

At 31 December M®12A31H 4,356 4277
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. B EE

Motor vehicle Favourable
registration Operation supplier
license rights agreement Total
RERTHE ZEE REUEGHR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
Costs: B :
At 1 January 2016 ®2016F1 18 2,272 2,503,328 70,734 2,576,334
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAR
(note 42) (Ktit42) - (236,325) - (236,325)
Exchange adjustments B AR = (102,674) (4,541) (107,215)
At 31 December 2016 R20164612H31H 2,272 2,164,329 66,193 2,232,794
Exchange adjustments B A% - 162,803 4,980 167,783
At 31 December 2017 RK2017F12H31H 2,272 2,327,132 71,173 2,400,577
Accumulated amortisation: Ezti# :
At 1 January 2016 ©2016F1A18 - 229,625 5,305 234,930
Amortisation for the year AEFEHH
(note 9(c)) (P #F9(c)) - 12,759 6,929 19,688
Written back on disposal BEHERBAR
of subsidiaries (note 42) (Ff =E42) = (223,488) = (223,488)
Exchange adjustments BE 7, 3 2 - (4,887) (651) (5,538)
At 31 December 2016 R2016412A31H - 14,009 11,583 25,592
Amortisation for the year REFHH
(note 9(c)) (P #F9(c)) - 13,416 6,835 20,251
Exchange adjustments B 5 - - 1,155 1,155
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12H31H - 27,425 19,573 46,998
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 2,272 2,299,707 51,600 2,353,579
At 31 December 2016 R2016612H31H 2,272 2,150,320 54,610 2,207,202
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20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Operation right

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s operation right
represent the right under one (2016: one) production sharing
contract which gives the Group the right to participate in the
production of coalbed methane with details as follows:

FETEY TN )

2017%12HA31H

0. BLEE (&)

BiEE

MR2017F128318 ' AEB 2 L EH#ES
E—1 (20165 : —) E@mA KA RN
IR BAEEAESEEEREE
BT

Gas fields Location Expiry date
= H i B FIEAE
Sanjiao CBM Project Shanxi Province, the PRC 2036
=REERIER RELFEE

The operation right is initially recognised at its fair value
on the date of acquisition by reference to a professional
valuation prepared by Asset Appraisal Limited. Subsequent
to the reporting period, the operation right is measured
using the cost mode.

Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the
operation right using the units of production method based
on the amount of proved and probable oil and gas reserves.
Amortisation is charged to “direct costs” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the development
contracts of Liuluoyu QOil Field and Yanjiawan Qil Field and
a production sharing contract of Jinzhuang Oil Field were
disposed (note 42).

For the purpose of impairment testing, the operation right
was allocated to the Sanjiao CBM Project. During the year
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the directors of the
Group did not identify any impairment indicators in Sanjiao
CBM Project. Details of the estimation of the recoverable
amount of this CGU are set out in note 17.

LERVNSREBEBZATFERLSZ2E
THEEEFTEBRRARABARREZE
XEERER RNmEHREEK  S8#%
RAKAENGE -

i 3H S B AN TD IR R B e S O R
BNEESMBETHEE BHEERS
EERERZ [EERA] A -

HE2016F12A31HIEFEAN B HE
MR HERERERAZHAESRR
SHRBAZEMDKRAER (ME42) o

HRENRNES  SEREIRE=RKE
EBRIEE - RE E20174F £2016FE12 A
BIBLFE AEEEETER =K
EBREB#HNEAREDIR - ABREE
A BAL 2 AR B & B8 (G AT A B S MY A
17 o
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21.

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 20. BILEE(8)
Favourable supplier agreement BEZHERRGES
Favourable supplier agreement represents the coal supplier BREZHEEHRRIEAEE —RKHMNBA
agreement with one of the Group’s subsidiaries. According RlZ Rt EE G - BB HE
to the agreement, the supplier will provide raw coal at 3% IR IERMES% ERERERE - 4
lower than the market price. The supplier agreement has FEEtEAstrIRESRAE 5 -
estimated useful lives of ten years.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the favourable BmRENRAME  BEZEHERHZED
supplier agreement was allocated to the raw and cleaned RERKERBERSEESN - BER
coal CGU. Details of the impairment testing and key BAANRERABEMAZ EE2/KED A
assumptions used in VIU are set out in note 17 and note 21 A M FE17 B B 5E21 o
respectively.
GOODWILL 21. B8
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
At 1 January ®1A1H 93,483 99,896
Exchange adjustment e A& 7,032 (6,413)
At 31 December M12A31H 100,515 93,483
Accumulated impairment loss: ZEPREBE
At 1 January M1H18 - -
Impairment loss recognised in the year FANERREEE
(note 8) (Mfsx8) 46,705 -
Exchange adjustment PE & 1,933 =
48,638 -
Carrying amount SREE
At 31 December M®12H31H 51,877 93,483

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited
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21. GOODWILL (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
acquired 75% equity interest of Golden Glow Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively known as “Golden
Glow Group”) for a consideration of RMB135,000,000
(equivalent to HK$168,656,000). The excess of the cost of
purchase over the net fair value of the identifiable net assets
of Golden Glow Group of RMB83,713,000 (equivalent to
HK$104,583,000) was recorded as goodwill and allocated
to the CGU in the raw and cleaned coal CGU.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue
stream of the raw and cleaned coal CGU was slower than
expected and it was expected that the Guaranteed Profit
(see note 24) would not be met. Hence, the directors of
the Group considered that these circumstances led to
recognition of impairment loss of the CGU. Details of the
impairment testing are set out in note 17.

The following are key assumptions on which management
has based its cash flow projections for the period covered
by the most recent budgets:

FETEY TN )

2017%12HA31H

ﬁ@ (:“E
HZE2015F12A31BLFERN ' AEE
U BEGolden Glow Holdings Limited 5
B8 A (5558 [ Golden GlowsE]) 2
75% 0 B - (KB = A K 1135,000,0007T
(#8 % 168,656,000/ 7T ) ° U8 B8 K AN
8 [ Golden Glowk B 7] % 5l & E &
FRFE D ARES3,713,0007T (47
£ 104,583,000 L) lER A E KN
RERERBERSELEMCASE
A B o

HE2017F12A31HLFE  RERE
BESELEN 2 RS RRBEHE - %ﬁ
HE T e RERRN (RME24) o

I AEBEERE  ZE/ /R%ﬁ/,\
BRRCESEMZREESE - E@R
BERIF 2 F BRI 7 -

ATREEEREBEROBRESSHHEE
RenE8RAEHZEEMRR

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FABT

Discount rate IR =E 22.36% 22.08%
Operating margin 0 ) = 8.92% 7.58%
Growth rate # R 3.00% 5.00%

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU. The operating margin and
growth rate have been based on past experience.

57 R 2 47 B T B L I R R A
REEER G2 HTAR - METRE
Nt ERIBEETFLBET -
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

22. R—REEREZHE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FAT
As at 1 January M1 H18 - =
Share of loss for the year (note (i) FRNHGEE (HFEG)) - -
As at 31 December M12H31H - -
Amount due from a joint venture (note (ii) Bl —RE &1 EFIB
(B 5 Gii)) 320 320
320 320
Notes: P EE -
(i)  Share of loss has been fully recognised up to the investment () BIE2015F12A31HILFE @ BEE
in a joint venture during the year ended 31 December 2015. RZELMEEESEIR—KREED
No further share of loss is required to be recognised for the E2RE - H E2017F K2016F12A4
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. SIALFE BEE—STHERELGES
B
(i)  The amount due from a joint venture is unsecured, interest i) ER—FRELLEREBELAEERR &
free and repayable on demand. B RBRENRAIRER -
The Group has a 50% (2016: 50%) interest in a joint venture, REBREGEELFEIERNBRER D AH
Smart Win International Limited, a company incorporated A50% (20164 : 50% ) £ » B E AR
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and operating in Hong ERERRHEESIMA IR B BLEE
Kong. The primary activity of Smart Win International Limited XB2RA - HBEBEBERAGZEE

is investment holding.
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22. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 22. R—REELEXRZHER (&

(Continued)

The contractual arrangement provides the Group with only BHZHERNAEBREHEETHE
the rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement, with EREZEN MYULLRBEE %
the rights to the assets and obligation for the liabilities FRBEZEBEZZERZRINEREEFR
of the joint arrangement resting primarily with Smart NA BIBB B HERMEERE115
Win International Limited. Under HKFRS 11 this joint ZEELHIBREELELEARER
arrangement is classified as a joint venture and has been EREEVEBRERAR - ARG EER
included in the consolidated financial statements using B HZAELEHAEBRZETKN W
the equity method. In the opinion of the directors of the BRAEGECELHBERBEZSIT

Company, this joint venture is not material to the Group,
and the summarised financial information in relation to the
joint venture is presented below:

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT T T

Loss for the year FNEE (8) (6)

Other comprehensive income Hap 2w - -

Total comprehensive income BeE W (8) (6)
23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 23. R—REIZEATIZHER

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FH T

As at 1 January ®1A1H 58,010 60,118

Share of loss for the year FARNDGEE (418) (662)

Exchange adjustment R 1,545 (1,446)

As at 31 December M12H31H 59,137 58,010
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23. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 23. N—FREIZNTIZHESS (8)

Details of the Group’s associate are as follows: BREAANEEBE AR ZFIEIHIOT :
Percentage
of ordinary
Form of business Place of share
Name of company structure incorporation indirectly held Principal activity
EEFALER
AEEH EBRERL M RS I3 B BAlE  IEER
WABZEERFAE  Sino-foreign equity The PRC 30%  Development and operation of a
BRAF joint venture liquefied natural gas plant (“LNG
Plant”) in the PRC to produce
liquefied coalbed methane
FOEERE hE R BEEEREERIERARERE
(TR RAREE ) A AEE
R E R
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, this RRAREERA  ZEGE R HASEH
associate is not material to the Group, and the financial N EBLAK  KREBBEATNEBEE
information in respect of the Group’s associate is set out 25T :
below:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Loss for the year FANEE (1,393) (2,208)
Other comprehensive income H b2 H W - -
Total comprehensive income B2 IR (1,393) (2,208)
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

FETEY TN )
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24. MAFEEBERIIRNOUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
Contingent consideration in relation to BHAWENBAR 2
acquisition of subsidiaries LB RE
— Non-current - JERE 30,077 4,487
- Current - e 21,529 18,134
51,606 22,621

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
acquired 75% equity interests of Golden Glow Group, which
the vendor irrevocably guaranteed the Group that from 1
October 2015 until 30 September 2021, six years in total,
the total net profit after income tax expense attributable
to Golden Glow Group per annum should not be less than
RMB30,000,000 (“the Guaranteed Profit”). Contingent
consideration represented the fair value of the amounts to
be received by the Group if the Golden Glow Group fails to
meet the Guaranteed Profit.

The Group has engaged an independent firm of valuers
to assess the fair value of the Guaranteed Profit as at the
end of reporting period. The fair value of the contingent
consideration arrangement was estimated by applying
the income approach at a discount rate of 22.36% (2016:
22.08%). In assessing the adjustments to reflect credit risk
in the fair value measurement process, the directors of
the Group did not consider the credit risk to be significant
as the vendor of Golden Glow Group still owns the non-
controlling interest with carrying value of HK$16,655,000
(note 41) and had good settlement record of the shortfall of
the Guaranteed Profit.

HE2015F12A31AIEFERN  AKH
I BEGolden Glows B 2 75%M#E » & &
B TAHE R AEEERE 2015
F10A1H R E2021F9A30B L2 &
H6FER - FFGolden GlowsE E fE(L 2
BRAGH P ERAFESLDRARKE
30,000,0007T ([fR & & A1) o sk ARA(E
5 fWGolden Glowss B K &% 2 1R & )&
M AREBBKIR 2 E2EHNATE-

AEEELZE—RBILGHERMT @ AT
HRF RN RS R ERE 2 AFE -
FEREZEZAFEDEARAZEIR
738 R 22 36% (20164F : 22.08% ) # 1T
HEr e RAFEEBRERTHREE
ERkE AR AEEEERAEE
[B B I~ E K - R A ZGolden Glows
& 13 # A BR M {8 416,655,000 T 2 3E
RS (WaEdl) WA RITZIRE
i A = BB E T R 8% o
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24.

25.

26.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
received in full the shortfall of the Guaranteed Profit for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The Group estimated
the shortfall of the Guaranteed Profit for the year ended
31 December 2017 attributable to the Group would be
approximately RMB17,000,000. Details of summarised
financial information of Golden Glow Group set out in Note
41.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

24. MAFEEBERIIRNOUE

&E(8)
HZE2017F12A31BLFERN A5 E
B2 HWEEE2016F12A31H IEFE
RBEBINZEZRE - AEE GG A& E
JEEE Z2017F 128318 L FE 2 RE
s Al Z= 58 40 = A R #17,000,0007T °
Golden Glowsk B 2 B E R EH RN
BfsE41 o

25. At ESRMEE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH#ERT FETT

Listed securities in Hong Kong, at fair value &8 F &S @ R A FE 5,409 4,592

As at 31 December 2017, the listed securities represented
the equity interests in companies that are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, net fair value
loss on the available-for-sale investments of the Group
amounted to HK$1,928,000 (2016: HK$260,000) was
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

MN20175128318 » E &SRB
FrER ETH 2 AT Z AR -

B E2017F12A31BEFER &AL
Bt EemEEZFATEES
1,928,000 7T (20164F : 260,000/ JT)
EREMEEKEARER -

EHRERE AT ETATISRER
Bk

6. BIkER

2017 2016

HK$’°000 HK$’000

FHT TFABIT

Current assets mENEE 48,029 22,334
Non-current assets ERBEE 19,211 =
67,240 22,334
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26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the loan receivables in
the Group’s financial services segment were as follows:

(i)

(i

(i)

(vi)

In November 2016, the Group advanced a loan to a
private company in the PRC, an independent third
party, of RMB20,000,000. The loan is secured by
certain equipment, interest bearing at 10% per annum
and fully repaid in April 2017.

In March 2017, the Group advanced a loan to a private
company in the PRC, an independent third party,
of RMB20,000,000. The loan was secured by trade
receivables, interest bearing at 10% per annum and
repayable in March 2019. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group has considered the recoverability and taken
into account of the effect of the estimated discounted
cash flow, therefore, a provision of RMB4,000,000
was made.

In April 2017, the Group advanced two loans to a
private company in the PRC, an independent third
party, of RMB40,000,000. The loans were secured by
certain equipment, interest bearing at 10% per annum
and repayable in April 2018.

Interest income of approximately HK$3,635,000 (2016:
HK$866,000) has been recognised in “Revenue”
(2016: “Other income”) in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Except for the loan disclosed in note (i) above, the
other loan receivables were neither impaired nor
overdue as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the end of
the reporting dates was the carrying value of the loan
receivables.

FETEY TN )

2017%12HA31H

Fgw‘é#(n‘ﬁ
MR2017F K2016F12A31H  RAEE
CRRB O 2 EWERNOT ¢

(i) }3’\\2016¢11ﬂ CAREBERF—-FRAF
BOE(—ZBIE=H)2B
HE FA R #20,000,0007T ° Z &

HKAHE TREEERMD  ZFMNX
10%;#% 7 B R2017F4 8 B
BE -

(i) M201763H @ A& BE [ —KHE
RECHE(—BBIE=H) BN
E AR #20,000,0007T ° 2 E R
PAPE W AR KB 1R - IR FEFIE10%
B W AMR2019F3 8 B E -
MR2017F12831H ' AEBKE=E
EAT e M A REETITERIE €
Mo 8% FTRTEBEARK
4,000,0007T °

(iii) EA2017¢4H'$%I|‘1*%¢
EhE(—BBLE=7) BN
,\TA/\E%4OOOOOOOTE ZER
LAE TRREERR  REFNE10%
B WAER2018F45EE -

vy ERGE2EKERZ K]
(20164 : [H AU A L) A #E R F
B A #93,635,00058 7t (20164F :
866,000/ 70) °

V)  BrR EXKMIFEG)TIEE ZERN R
20174 &2016F12831H » H ity
e B R R E sk mHf o

(Vi) RBEHR ZEREERBRAER

i’fﬂxzﬁéﬁ@
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27. INVENTORIES 27. 58
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAEIT
Spare parts, consumables and others w1 EM R EA 15,070 10,591
28. TRADE, NOTES AND OTHER 28. FEYSERFR « FEWN IR « HihFE
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND WERR - e RFEFRIE
PREPAYMENTS
2017 2016
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET TATT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Deposits and prepayments (note (i)) % R TE A (KT &) 95,777 44,045
Current assets MENE E
Trade receivables JE Uk BR 3k 8,367 34,669
Notes receivable FE W = 1% 18,371 48,018
Other receivables (note (ii) A i W AR SR (B (i) 54,418 53,295
81,156 135,982
Utility deposits KEZS 2,781 726
Other deposits and prepayments (note (iii) H iz & RIBT B
(B & Giii)) 354,633 397,607
357,414 398,333
438,570 534,315
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28. TRADE, NOTES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(ii

(i)

As at 31 December 2017, the balance included prepaid
exploration costs of HK$79,968,000 (2016: HK$27,965,000)
on the Group’s construction in progress and prepaid rental
of HK$15,809,000 (2016: HK$16,080,000) for coal washing
factory.

As at 31 December 2017, the balance mainly included
consideration receivable of HK$24,000,000 (2016:
HK$27,550,000) on the disposal of Key Wisdom Group
as set out in note 42, interest receivables from short-term
investment of HK$4,623,000 (2016: nil) and government
grants receivable (2017: HKS$nil; 2016: HK$12,901,000).

The balance mainly included prepayment to a raw coal
supplier of HK$50,138,000 (2016: HK$125,239,000) and
deposits of HK$248,523,000 (2016: HK$230,740,000) paid
for possible acquisition of Canada oil fields as disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 30 June 2014 and 1
September 2014 respectively and interest receivables of
HK$41,737,000 (2016: HK$28,975,000) in relation to these
deposits.

PEEET RN @)

2017%12H31H

28. FEWARSR « FEUW 4R - H thFE
WehR « e R TE A RIE (&)

BEEE

(i

(ii)

MN20174612A318 X BEB R
HAEBEMBRKRAZEREIRE
79,968,000/ 7T, (20164 : 27,965,000
BT)RERESERZENES
15,809,0007% 7T (20164 : 16,080,000
BIT) °

M2017F12A318 B REE B
M sE42fT &t E B BR R R B 2 R (B
24,000,0007% JT. (20164 : 27,550,000
D)~ FEMAE B8 & T 24,623,000
7T (20164F : #&) K J& Wik 5 #6 B (2017
F T IT 20164 1 12,901,000/
TT) e

BRAETELEBEANREHRERS
50,138,0007% 7T (20164 : 125,239,000
B or) & 1Z £248,523,0007% 7T (2016
4 : 230,740,000 7T) * BAR A D
B A2014%6 A30H &2014F9A1A A
HRBEZARERENENREZ RS
RABRIR & 2 R F 541,737,000 7T
(20164 : 28,975,000/ 7T) °
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28. TRADE, NOTES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

On 30 June 2014, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
has entered into the first non-legally binding memorandum
of understanding (“MOU 1”) with Jade Million Co Ltd,
(the “Vendor”) in relation to a possible acquisitions of the
interests of certain oil and gas blocks in Canada (“Target 1”).
According to the MOU 1, the Group paid a refundable deposit
of Canadian Dollars (“CAD”) 30 million which is interest-
free to the Vendor in July 2014. On 1 September 2014, the
Group entered into another memorandum of understanding
(“MOU 2”) with Vendor and paid a refundable deposit of CAD
10 million which is interest bearing at 4.5% per annum in
relation to a possible acquisition of the interests of certain
oil and gas blocks (other than Target 1) in Canada (“Target
2”). In both MOU 1 and MOU 2, the Vendor has pledged the
interests of Target 1 and Target 2 to the Group as return
with values higher than the deposits paid. On 30 April 2015,
31 December 2015 and 30 September 2016, 30 June 2017
and 29 December 2017, the Group and the Vendor agreed
in writing to further extend the time limit for entering into
formal agreements in respect of MOUs and the exclusive
periods as set out in the MOUs to 31 December 2015 and 30
September 2016, 30 June 2017, 31 December 2017 and 30
September 2018 respectively.

On 30 June 2016, supplemental agreements for MOU
1 and MOU 2 were signed for interest charge based on
the outstanding deposits at the rate of 8.5% per annum
commencing from 1 December 2014 and 1 May 2015

respectively.
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. FEMARER -

B ER - HbE

WehR « e R TE A RIE (&)

(ii)

()

(%)
201466 H30H AR RIZEH B R
ﬁa;ﬁiJade Million Co Ltd ([ 5 ]) &]
— D TREERNR N ZREES
ﬁ(F:?ﬂH%MﬁﬂJ) " RAE R
WENEARE T haRER ([BZ1])
2D - BERBETE AEE
ER2014F7TAXZ N E B Z AR ER
$30,000,00080 7t ([A7T]) ° A2014
F9A1H ~$’ia£@?§7§ﬂz%f
MRBE=E ((RRE=E2])
éﬁ%ﬁﬁjabuﬂzﬁﬁtuik%%mﬁlﬁﬁ
(TEZ2]  BE1IMINESR) 2 -
WX (IR T F4.5%T B2 A REBEER S
10,000,000/ 7T © Bt =7 % 8 &= 851 & 37
ESRems  EHCHEEIRE
B RERTAEEIERER &
BEmRBEfiESE - K2015F4H30H -
2015412 A31H - 20164F9 A30R -
201746 A308 %2017F12H298 @ &
SERBEFEOREE —TLERMZ
ERBERI Y EX R K
ZERBESEMBNBRE NS
M & 2 Bl & =2015%12H431H ~ 2016
F9H30H - 201746 H308 * 20174
12H31H K%2018F9H30H -

2016664308 * B 5 %IJEJEE;?\M =
81 KRR SR B B T ik
ﬁ%ﬁmﬁ\raxﬁzﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁi&s%ﬁ
B F 8 - o Bl#2014512 18 %2015
FEA1RRBEERE -



28. TRADE, NOTES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Save and except for the aforesaid extension of the time limit
for entering into formal agreements and the exclusive periods,
all other terms of the MOUs shall remain unchanged. Up to
the date of this report, the Group is still performing the due

diligence review.

As these MOUs are non-legally binding and the Group can
unconditionally withdraw from this transaction any time and
the deposits will be fully refundable by 30 September 2018
if no further renewal of the aforesaid extension. As such, the
deposits were classified as current assets as at the end of

the reporting periods.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice

mmmams O

2017%12H31H

28. FEWARSR « FEUW 4R - H thFE
WehR « e R TE A RIE (&)

M : ()

@iy (&)
B b i 3E & 5T 37 IE 3 1 a5 A9 B PR K2 5%
EBREBEIN ZEFREE S

BEMGRERTE -HEARER
H AREDEETERES -

HRZERBHETENREZRNORTS
AEBUEGHERERHEERS -
filf A — HIER PR HIR - B2 RN
2018 9HB0B AT T A2 BUR & -
- ZeREREHEEREIER
MBEE °

U BR RN S BRI AERKIRER B H

date at the end of reporting period is as follows: ZERE DM :
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FABT
30 days 30K 3,652 4,987
31 - 60 days 31260X - 4,232
61 — 90 days 61290K 3,401 3,976
Over 90 days % FR90K 1,314 21,474
8,367 34,669

The average credit period granted to customers is 0-30

days from the invoice date.

AEEREPNFHEEHNAFERRE
0-30K °
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28.

29.

TRADE, NOTES AND OTHER 28. FEUGERF: « FEUEE43 - HhFE
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND RS s IRERFAMNRIE (8)
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
All trade receivables are less than 180 days past due, not e RN AR HEISORAK » A&
impaired and related to few customers which have a good EEXFPERIFMNEELSE  BUREE
track record with the Group. Based on the past experience, WE - BEAELCR  SEEMGTHEE
management estimated that the carrying amount will be fully HE&BEEE2HUWE -
recovered.
The Group recognised impairment loss on individual AN BRI M 5E4(K) (i) PT e 2 = 5T B3R -
assessment based on the accounting policy stated in note BBE R L R EEE o
4(K)(ii).
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENT 29. HHEARE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
FHERT TAT
Short-term investment MEEE 77,205 71,804

On 10 July 2014, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with a PRC company (an independent third party)
which engaged in investment and consultancy services
(“Investee”) to acquire bonds issued by the Investee.
The bonds were extended for another 6 months from 26
October 2015 to 25 April 2016 with interest bearing at 13%
per annum. On 27 April 2016 and 28 April 2017, the bonds
were further extended for another 1 year to 28 April 2017
and 27 April 2018 respectively with other terms remain
unchanged. The bonds are guaranteed by the shares of the
Investee’s related company which is a private company in
the PRC.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

R2014F7 8108 @ AN B B —[H
AR (—RREREREBERRE 2B
F=F [HERER]D T LRE W=
AW IRE R BT Z2ES - ZEES
EIEAH R2015F10A26H ER/NE A &
2016454 250 - HAfA F B X B13% °
MR20165F4 F27H &2017F4 8288 * (&
F o Rl — PR —FE2017F4A28
H K%2018F4H27H » H M IE & HF T
2o ZEBEFHWREAZ —HBEER
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PEEET RN @)

2017%12H31H

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 30. RE&RRE&EEY
2017 2016
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Cash and bank balances, denominated in TRy EEGTE RS
KR 1T 45 64
— HKD and USD -BILTKET 913 207,938
— Renminbi (“RMB”) - AR 20,670 41,385
- CAD i 166 2,190
— Others - HAth 17 17
21,766 251,530

31.

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$20,670,000 (equivalent
to RMB17,214,000) (2016: HK$41,385,000 (equivalent to
RMB37,060,000) were denominated in RMB. RMB is not a
freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out

of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by

the PRC Government.

TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND

31.

20,670,000/ 7T (1B 7 A K #17,214,000
7T) (20164F : 41,385,000 7t (B E R A
R 37,060,0007T)) 2B & RIB & EEY
KARBEHE ARBLIFERLBRE
B R B A 2 AR A BT 2 ShNE
B HIFTARRR o

FEfHRRR « HibEHRIERTE

ACCRUALS REH
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FET
Current Liabilities mEEE
Trade payables (note (i)) FE AT BR 3R (B 2E3)) 30,662 -
Other payables and accruals (note (ii) H i IERFERE R
(PR 5EGiT)) 325,343 275,128
Receipt in advance (note (iii)) T8 Y sk IE (B (i) 34,972 62,782
Amounts due to shareholders (note (iv)) FE A5 % R SRR (B =E(v)) 16,855 11,693
407,832 349,603
2017 £ | PEEARERER2 A
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31. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The amount mainly represented raw coal costs payable to a

major raw coal supplier.

(i) The amounts mainly included exploration costs payable of
approximately HK$269,828,000 (2016: HK$249,776,000) in

respect of oil and gas properties.
(i) ~ The amounts represented receipt in advance from sales
of cleaned coal amounted to HK$34,972,000 (2016:

HK$62,782,000).

(iv)  The loans were unsecured, interest free and repayable on

demand.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date

31.

FEfHRRX « HibEHRIERTE
wRER (&)

GhE

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

ZERITBERXNTIERRAER
B R BERCAS ©

ZeHIEREERAREEZEN
EhHR A AN £9269,828,00058 7T (20164 :
249,776,000/87T) °

% R A 1B K 8 & 18 U 5X34,972,0007
7T (20164 : 62,782,000/ 7T) °

ERNBRFNBEMEERGREZEH

at the end of reporting period is as follows: ZIRB AT -
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
30 days 30K - -
31 — 60 days 31E60X - -
61 — 90 days 61290K 30,662 -
30,662 -

The average credit period granted by suppliers is 0-30 days
from the invoice date.
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32.

33.

FETEY TN )

2017%12HA31H

PROVISIONS 32. &
2017 2016
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHET TAIT
Balance at 1 January W1 A18 2 & 4,810 2,409

Provision for environmental restoration REEERELFERE

and decommissioning costs 2B 1,537 2,556
Exchange adjustment ME 5, 8 B 362 (155)
Balance at 31 December M12B8318 2 &% 6,709 4,810

The provision for environmental

decommissioning costs for 2017 and 2016 represented
directors’ estimated assets retirement obligations relating to

restoration and

the Sanjiao CBM Project as set out in note 44(i).

2017F 2016 FIRIB[IEERFIEFERE
ZEBEEE=SEEREL (ENKHE
M) ERBZEEHAEEEE RE -

BORROWINGS 33. &

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH T
Other borrowings — unsecured (note (i)) H fth KR R B (B REd) 77,437 =
Corporate bonds — unsecured (note (ii)) 4 3 4 10 2 1E 5 (BT EE (i) 456,451 322,109
533,888 322,109
On demand or within one year BERF—FAEE 77,437 =

More than one year, but not exceeding BB —F BT HBAMSE
two years 10,400 =

More than two years, but not exceeding RS ENHBARSE
five years 257,000 7,500
More than five years fiisp o akd 189,051 314,609
533,888 322,109

Amount due within one year included in A RE) B E— AR E
current liabilities | (77,437) =
Non-current portion EMENE 456,451 322,109
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33. BORROWINGS (Continued)

(i)

(ii

(i)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had outstanding
borrowings with principal amount of HK$77,437,000
advanced from several individual third parties and a financial
institution. These borrowings were unsecured, carried fixed
interest rates ranging from 15% to 30% per annum and
guaranteed by a director of the Company, Dr Dai Xiaobing,
a director of a wholly-owned subsidiary and an individual
third party. Out of HK$77,437,000, HK$67,437,000 has been
settled before 29 March 2018. On 20 March 2018, the Group
entered into a supplemental agreement with the lender to
extend the repayment of the remaining outstanding borrowing
of HK$10,000,000 to 15 June 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
issued the corporate bonds in principal amount of
HK$143,400,000 (2016: HK$115,000,000) carried fixed
interest rate ranging from 5% to 8% per annum (2016: 5% to
7%) with maturity in 2 to 8 years (2016:4 to 8 years).

The range of effective interest rates on the Group’s
borrowings for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016

are as follows:

33. EE (&)

(i)

(i

(i)

R2017F12A831H  XEBH K
S B AT7,437,0008 0 2 R EE(E
B DREBETEAZE=ZAR—R
MBEHE BN - ZEEERER
B EFE15%E30% K B AR
REZEH ) EEL —R2EW
BRAIZ —REER—RBEAE
= HER o 5377,437,000/8 o -
67,437,000/ 7T 2 7201843 H29
B B & - R201843 8208 &
SEREAHIN—HBEERE
TR T 2 RAEZEEE10,000,000
BILZERE2018F6A158 -

HZE2017F12A31BHLEFE R -
RARBETEEFES5%E8%
(20164 : 5%ZET7%) ~ FHI A2ES8
(20164 : 4E8F) 2 EES -
N4 £143,400,00058 7T (20164 :
115,000,000/ 7T) °

H E20174 K2016F12A31H 1k
FERN  AEBRABZEENER
MELSTYEHE :

2017 2016

Other borrowings — unsecured Hinmig e s
Corporate bonds — unsecured ERPLEES
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34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The convertible notes recognised in the consolidated

FETEY TN )

34. TR RR

2017%12HA31H

RiFE W HARRARER 2 A RRR B

statement of financial position are calculated as follows: o
Liability Derivative Equity
component component component Total
Ef&#HS FTEE S BB @zt
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAET FHET FHET TAET
At 1 January 2016 201651718 285,250 - 26,322 311,572
Issue of convertible notes FRET2ATRRER
during the year 1,058,564 277,746 - 1,336,310
Released upon expiry FA 1| HA 5 ¢ [B] (192,760) - (15,913) (208,673)
Amortisation of transaction R 5k 78 2 45
costs (note 9(a)) (PH3E9(a)) 8,539 - - 8,539
Imputed interest expense FE&HI S H
(note 9(a)) (B =9(a)) 111,756 - - 111,756
Interest paid BHE (40,937) - - (40,937)
Change in fair value (note 8) A& & ) (Kf:E8) - (52,089) - (52,089)
Exchange adjustments bE A - (720) - (720)
At 31 December 2016 201641278318 1,230,412 224,937 10,409 1,465,758
Released upon expiry e pilisE e (167,064) - (10,409) (177,473)
Amortisation of transaction & 5 AN 2 i 8
costs (note 9(a)) (PH5E9(a)) 14,872 - - 14,872
Imputed interest expense FES A B X i
(note 9(a) (PHEE9(a)) 264,658 - - 264,658
Interest paid BRAE (104,847) - - (104,847)
Change in fair value (note 8) A F{E & &) (ff£8) - (187,042) - (187,042)
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 1,238,031 37,895 - 1,275,926
2017 3] | HEBRERBRAA
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34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Convertible note 1

The Company issued convertible note in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$275,000,000 with a 4% discount
and a 2% coupon rate on 26 April 2013. The convertible
note was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and will
mature in three years from the issue date. The note can
be converted into ordinary shares of the Company at the
holder’s option at the rate of HK$0.167 per share. Imputed
interest expense on the convertible note was charged at
the rate of 18.67% calculated using the effective interest
method. The convertible note was fully redeemed in April
2016.

Convertible note 2

The Company issued convertible note in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$100,000,000 with a 8% coupon rate
on 19 June 2015. The convertible note was denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and will mature in two years from
the issue date. The note can be converted into ordinary
shares of the Company at the holder’s option at the rate
of HK$0.207 per share. Imputed interest expense on
the convertible note was charged at the rate of 18.96%
calculated using the effective interest method. The
convertible note was fully redeemed during the year.

Convertible note 3

The Company issued convertible note in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$200,000,000 with a 8% coupon
rate on 1 February 2016. The convertible note was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and will mature in two
years from the issue date. The note can be converted into
ordinary shares of the Company at the holder’s option at
the rate of HK$0.207 per share. Imputed interest expense
on the convertible note was charged at the rate of 18.96%
calculated using the effective interest method.
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34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Convertible note 3 (Continued)

During the year, the Company has partially redeemed it
with principal amount of HK$64 million. This convertible
note with principal amount of HK$136,000,000 as at 31
December 2017 was due on 1 February 2018. Subsequent
to year end, the Group partially settled Convertible note 3
with principal amount of HK$29,000,000 and the Group
entered into an agreement with the bondholder to extend
the maturity date of the bonds with the remaining principal
amount of HK$107,000,000 to 18 May 2018 while the
conversion right attached expired.

Convertible note 4

The Company issued convertible note in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$160,000,000 with a 8% coupon rate
on 26 May 2016. The convertible note was denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and will mature in two years from
the issue date. The note can be converted into ordinary
shares of the Company at the holders’ option at the rate
of HK$0.207 (note (i) per share. Imputed interest expense
on the convertible note was charged at the rate of 18.96%
calculated using the effective interest method.

The convertible note is personally guaranteed by two
directors of the Company, Dr Dai Xiaobing and Mr King Hap
Lee, to the bondholders.

Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible note 3 and
Convertible note 4, whenever the issuer has issued any
shares, grant of options, warrants or other rights to
subscribe for or purchase or acquires shares at a price lower
than the conversion price thereof, the conversion price would
be adjusted to a reduced price. Hence, this does not meet
the fixed for fixed criteria and the share conversion option
element of the Convertible note 3 and Convertible note
4 shall be treated as a derivative liability with subsequent
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The fair values at the date of issuance and as at 31
December 2017 and 2016, were assessed by an
independent valuer, was calculated using the binomial
options pricing model. Key input assumptions were set out
in note 52(b)(ii). As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there
was change in the fair value of derivative liability compared
to the issuance date and at the end of each reporting period
that recognised in profit or loss during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 (note 8).
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34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Convertible note 5

The Company issued convertible note in an aggregate
principal amount of US$130,000,000 with a 8% coupon
rate on 29 September 2016. The convertible note was
denominated in US dollars and will mature in three years
from the issue date. The note can be converted into
ordinary shares of the Company at the holder’s option at
the rate of HK$0.207 (note (i)) per share. Imputed interest
expense on the convertible note was charged at the rate of
22.85% calculated using the effective interest method.

The convertible note was secured by the issued shares of
two subsidiaries of the Company, Power Great Limited and
Orion Energy International Inc., by way of first fixed legal
charge to the bondholder as continuing security.

The convertible option should be separated from the liability
component and accounted for as a derivative liability with
subsequent changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
It was because the host contract (i.e. liability component)
was denominated in a currency which was not the functional
currency of the Company. Hence, this does not meet the
fixed for fixed criteria. The fair values at the date of issuance
and as at 31 December 2016 and 2017, were assessed by
an independent valuer, was calculated using the binomial
options pricing model. Details of key input assumptions
of the valuations were set out in note 52(b)(ii). As at 31
December 2017 and 2016, there were changes in the fair
value of derivative liability compared to the issuance date
and the end of reporting period that recognised in profit or
loss during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017
(note 8).

Note (i) Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible note 4 and
Convertible note 5, whenever the Company has issued
any shares at a price lower than the conversion price
thereof, the conversion price would be adjusted to the
reduced price. Upon the completion of subscription
of 3,380,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of
HK$0.053 per share on 9 March 2018 (note 53(i)), the
conversion price of the Convertible note 4 and Convertible
note 5 shall be adjusted accordingly, which is reduced to

HK$0.053 per share with effect from 9 March 2018.
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35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 35. IREHIER1E
Details of the deferred tax assets and (liabilities) recognised ENBAZEEREEER (BE) 2
and movements during the year were as follows: 15 REEMT :

Accelerated

tax Intangible
depreciation assets Tax losses Total
ERIERE BREE BIARE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT FHET THET
At 1 January 2016 R20165F1A1H (9,287) (18,514) 246 (27,555)
Disposal of subsidiaries FALENBAR

during the year (note 42) (BFsE42) 9,077 2,403 (240) 11,240
Credited to profit or loss S ABRER (BiEE11)

(note 11) — 1,732 - 1,732
Exchange adjustments bE 5, 38 & 210 1,684 (6) 1,888
At 31 December 2016 72016512 A31H - (12,695) - (12,695)
Credited to profit or loss STABER (fEE11)

(note 11) - 1,709 - 1,709
Exchange adjustments b 5 AR - (3,249) - (3,249
At 31 December 2017 2017412 831H = (14,235) = (14,235)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is BEFIEEERBEEB G AR BIFAIT
a legally enforceable right to set off when the deferred tax T I 4 8 DA R 3 FE A TE 7 [R) — R TS A
related to same fiscal authority. The following net amounts T - HeELEE U TN_RELA I
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown on the MR AR ET 2SR ISE -

consolidated statement of financial position.
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35. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 35. BEBIEEE (8)
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBA G (14,235) (12,695)
Deferred tax assets RERRIEE E - -
(14,235) (12,695)
Pursuant to the PRC Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax Is BEPEBE  RABEZIINERERR
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from IMEEETIRREEHEWI0%TENF -
the foreign investment enterprises in the PRC. A lower R B BB IR B E 2 REAERET B
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty TIGEK - B sE e A ERE 2 TR B =& -
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign R20174 K2016F12A31H » WEFLTE
investors. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, no deferred HHMERELERE  RERAEERF
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes, as there B A% 7 2 BT /&8 R B A B 4 5 R 2 g ) o
is no distributable profit for the Group’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC.
36. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 36. e SR K& F

a) The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, both
the employer and each employee are required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000 (2016: HK$30,000) by each
party. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

@ AKEREBSAHERAES
EEH - RBREBEBEERBEOZIE
ZREFZR LA MEATESE ([
Beardll) -ELTE T AB
VERABEZRATEH/KEKRE
o IRERESTE BERSRE
EXBEAKREEZEBAKRAZS%
ER R ST B ABRA N
30,000 7T (20164F : 30,000/ 7T)
A LR o MEHEIEL 2 S REN 5
BEFTA -



36. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(Continued)

b)  Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised
by the relevant local government authorities, whereby
the Group is required to make contributions to the
Schemes at a rate ranging from 21% - 30% (2016:
21% to 30%) of the eligible employees’ salaries.
The local government authorities are responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The obligations are calculated based on a
certain percentage of the basic payroll.

37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme which
was adopted on 28 May 2010 for a period of ten years
commencing from 28 May 2010 whereby the directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite employees of the Group, including directors of any
companies within the Group, to take up options to subscribe
for shares of the Company. The terms and conditions of the
grant are determined by the Board at the time of grant. The
exercisable period of an option is not to exceed a period
of ten years commencing the date the share options be
granted. The options give the holder the right to subscribe
for ordinary shares in the Company. A nominal consideration
of HK$1 is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an
option. Options would be forfeited should the employee
leave the Group. All the existing share options were granted
under the scheme.
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 7. RAGHLUBRGBARZRX S
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (48)
a) The terms and conditions of the share options that (a) A TNAEZE2017F12831H It F
existed during the year ended 31 December 2017 EFEZBEBIREZGRRIEE BT
were as follows and all options are settled by physical BEREDRSBERI MM EE :

delivery of shares:

Contractual
Vesting Contractual Number of life of
Date of grant condition Exercise period exercise price options options
BB BEHS fTiER BHTERE BRENE BRESHEY
'000
T
Options granted to directors:
BrEs2mRg:
- on 6 December 2011 Immediately 6 December 2011 to 5 December 2021 HK$0.276 117,000 10 years
- 2011412 A6H LS 201112 A6A 2021612 A5A BT 104
- on 23 November 2015 I[mmediately 23 November 2015 to 22 November 2018 HK$0.222 179,000 3 years
- R2015%11 A23A e 2015611 A23H  2018%F 115 22H BT 3F
Options granted to employees:
BrES2ERE:
- on 6 December 2011 Immediately 6 December 2011 to 5 December 2021 HK$0.276 298,000 10 years
- R2011%12A6H BNEs 2011612 A6H E2021F 12858 BT 106
- on 23 November 2015 Immediately 23 November 2015 to 22 November 2018 HK$0.222 844,000 3 years
- R2015%11 28R e 2015611 A23H £ 20185118228 BT 3
Total share options

BREAE 1,438,000
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37. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 37. BEGHUBRGBRHRZR 5
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (48)
b) The number and weighted exercise prices of share (b) BREZEE MINETEBSOT :

options are as follows:

2017 2016
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
IHEEL g
TEE BRENE IRE EREHE
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
BT T BT T
Outstanding at beginning of RE AT
the year 0.238 1,479,000 0.238 1,496,000
Lapsed during the year FRERY 0.231 (41,000) 0.276 (17,000)
Outstanding at the end of RERRARITER
the year 0.236 1,438,000 0.238 1,479,000
Exercisable at the end of RERR] FATE
the year 0.236 1,438,000 0.238 1,479,000
The options outstanding at 31 December 2017 had exercise 2017612 A31H - mARITEEREZ
prices of HK$0.236 (2016: HK$0.238) and a weighted 171F 8 B0.2367 7T (20164 : 0.2387%6
average remaining contractual life of 1.77 years (2016: 2.79 TT)  MINEFARTENFEH /.77
years). F (20164 : 2.79%F) ©
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38. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a) Share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

38. B R (R

(a) BF

() ZEREETRA

2017 2016
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
B &E o] Rt & B !
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
T TERT T TET
Authorised EE
As at 31 December MW12A31H 40,000,000 400,000 40,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRHERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each & RXEE0.017% T
2 AR
At beginning of the year REF 17,093,656 170,937 17,603,601 176,036
Shares repurchased (ii) i 1 B [2] ii) (554,865) (5,549) (509,945) (5,099)
At end of the year RER 16,538,791 165,388 17,093,656 170,937

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive

dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to

one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary

shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual

assets.
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38. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(@) Share capital (Continued)

(i) Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

On 26 January 2018, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with an independent third party (“Subscriber”) for
the subscription (“Subscription”) of a total 3,380,000,000
new ordinary shares of the Company (“Subscription
Shares”). On 12 March 2018, the Subscription has taken
place and Subscription shares have been allotted and
issued to Subscriber at a price of HK$0.053 per share. The
Group received a net proceeds from the Subscription of
approximately HK$178,000,000.

(i) Repurchase of shares

The Company repurchased a total of 554,865,000 shares
(2016: 509,945,000 shares) of the Company at an
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$98,163,000
(2016: HK$94,390,000) of which HK$5,549,000 (2016:
HK$5,099,000) was debited to share capital and balances
of HK$92,614,000 (2016: HK$89,291,000) was debited to
the share premium account. Out of 554,865,000 shares
(2016: 509,945,000 shares) repurchased, 552,565,000
shares (2016: 487,750,000 shares) were cancelled during
the year while the remaining 2,300,000 shares (2016:
22,195,000 shares) were cancelled in January 2018.

(i) Lapse of vested share options
In 2017, 41,000,000 share options lapsed (2016:
17,000,000).
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(a) RBE&E(4\)

() EEREETKA (&)
M2018F1H26H - "E B EH —F B/
EFE=F(RBADITLRBERZ AR
B R A $£3,380,000,0000% & A & #
Tk ((RERMH]) (RESE] - R
2018F3A12H * RBEHEE ZETK
BRI H B 1R FM0.0537%8 T 2 B 1%
ERETTRBA AXBEBEARES
T8 g BY FT 45 7K 18 5 58 49178,000,000#
=

(i)  RGAEE

A2 A) B8 B AR R 7] 48 X (B £998,163,000
770 (20164 : 94,390,000/ 7t) Z
B {n ££554,865,0000% (20164 :
509,945,000/% ) + H #15,549,000/% 7T
(2016%F : 5,099,000/87t) st AR A « &
#892,614,0007% 7t (20164 : 89,291,000
B IT) 5 AR5 & BR © 554,865,0004%
BB %10 (20164F : 509,945,0008%) /4
552,565,000M% (20164 : 487,750,000
BR) E R FE A - M8 T #92,300,000
B& (20164 : 22,195,000/%) B 720184
1A -

(i) EEFBIREKIEZ KL

M2017% » 41,000,00017 (20164 :
17,000,00017 ) BB A% #E B K3 -
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- b 2. ==
38. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued) 38. EAR R E (48)
(b) The Company (b) EAT
Available-for-
sale financial
Contributed Share option investments  Convertible notes Accumulated
Share capital Share premium surplus reserve reserve equity reserve losses Total
B3 THEEE
& R R SRR BREGE SHEERE LA L @it
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
L T T THL ThT THT T TR T
At 1 January 2016 #201651A18 176,036 4,302,009 81,043 111,794 - 26,322 (1,322,703 3,374,501
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - (313,686) 313,686)
Other comprehensive income £t 2EKE - - - - (260) - - (260)
Total comprehensive income FEERENREE
for the year - - - - (260) - (313,686) (313,946)
Released upon expiry of RABREEISREE
convertible notes 34 - - - - - (15,913) 15913 -
Released upon lapse of REREXNERE
share options 38a)fi (1,450) - - 1,450 -
Repurchase of shares RiEE 38a)i) (5,099) (89,291) - - - - - (94,390)
At 31 December 2016 2016512731 170,987 4212,718 81,043 110,344 (260) 10,409 (1,619,026) 2,966,165
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - = (153,656) (153,656)
Other comprehensive income £t 2EKE - - - - (1,928) - - (1,928)
Total comprehensive income FEE2ENREE
for the year - - - - (1,928) - (163,656) (155,584)
Released upon expiry of RABREEISREE
convertible notes 34 - - - - - (10,409) 10,409 -
Released upon lapse of REREXANERE
share options 38a)fi) - - - (2,491) - - 2,491 -
Repurchase of shares RiEE 38(a)() (5,549) (92,614) - - - - 6 (98,157)
At 31 December 2017 #2017 12A31R 165,388 4,120,104 81,043 107,853 (2,188) - (1,759,776) (2,712,424)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue
of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share.
Share premium is not distributable but may be applied in
paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
equity holders as fully paid bonus shares or to provide the
premiums on repurchase of own shares.
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38. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(i) Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus arose when the Company issues shares
in exchange for the shares of subsidiaries being acquired,
and represented the difference between the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued and the value of net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired under the group reorganisation
in 1999 in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), contributed
surplus is available for distribution to equity holders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- it is or would after the payment, be unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.

(i)~ Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted by the Company and recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments as
set in note 4(r).

(iv)  Available-for-sale investments reserve

Gains/losses arising on recognising financial assets
classified as available-for-sale investments reserve at fair
value.

(v)  Convertible notes equity reserve

The reserve represents the equity component (i.e. option
to convert the notes into shares) of the convertible notes
issued by the Company.
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38. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(vi)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong which were
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy as set
out in note 4(p).

(vii)  Accumulated losses
Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

(d) Distribution of reserves

At 31 December 2017, the Company had no reserves
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended),
the Company’s contributed surplus in the amount of
HK$81,043,000 (2016: HK$81,043,000) is currently not
available for distribution. The Company’s share premium
account in the amount of HK$4,120,104,000 as at 31
December 2017 (2016: HK$4,212,718,000) may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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39. COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF

msmzmE

2017%12HA31H

39. XA ATR2017FE12A318 2

FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MRk R R
DECEMBER 2017
2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FHET F#ET THEL TEL
Non-current assets EREEE
Interests in subsidiaries NENEIPA: £ 40 4,511,743 4,678,417
Available-for-sale investments AN ECHERE 5,409 4,592
Total non-current assets ERBEERRE 4,517,152 4,683,009
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits Hi YRR  ZE R
and prepayments U 27,880 31,549
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 443 48,383
Total current assets MEBEERE 28,323 79,932
Total assets M 4,545,475 4,762,941
Current liabilities RBAR
Other payables and accruals HENTIERERER (49,653) (19,318)
Convertible notes ARER (297,142) (105,112)
Borrowings fiE & (61,021)
Financial liabilities at fair value RATEERBERIIR
through profit or loss MK aE (37,895) (224,937)
(435,711) (349,367)
Net current liabilities mEAEEE (407,388) (269,435)
Total assets less current BEERRBER
liabilities 4,109,764 4,413,574
Non-current liabilities kRBAMRE
Borrowings BE (456,451) (322,109)
Convertible notes EE &S (940,889) (1,125,300)
Total non-current liabilities ERBaten (1,397,340) (1,447,409)
NET ASSETS BEFE 2,712,424 2,966,165
Capital and reserves RATHENEGEEE
attributable to owners =1
of the Company
Share capital [FEN 38(a) 165,388 170,937
Reserves ffE 38(b) 2,547,036 2,795,228
TOTAL EQUITY LERESS 2,712,424 2,966,165
2017 £ | PEEARERER2 A
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40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017

are listed below. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

40. "B AT 2 iR
R2017F12831B BB AR 2715

WTH-BRmBRAEIN

FfT #5 B 40 28 5

stated otherwise. REBR -
Proportion of ownership interest
HEREMM
Place of Group's
incorporation/ Particular of issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company operation paid up capital holding ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
AREER  BRLT  H-RME
LEER A/ SR EETRYRRAHE kg f%  ATRE  IERE
Wiseley Investments Limited The BVI 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% = Investment holding
EREERAR ZELEREE US$1.00 each RERK
100RERAE!.0%TL EER
Easy Sino Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1.00 100% 100% - Provision of administrative
EERERRAT B 1RERRRAAT00%T senvices to group companles
mEBRRRETHRS
Chuang Xin Management Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$2.00 100% 100% - Provision of management
Senvices Limited B AREBRBA A0 senvices to group companies
HNEEREERAT REERAREERRE
Grand Rise Development Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 100% 100% - Investment holding
HERRARAT 3 100 ARHAA 1008 RERK
Power Great Limited The Cayman lslands 1 ordinary share of 100% 100% - Investment holding
AERRAT FEES US$1.00 each RERR
1RERER 00ETZ LRR
Superb China Limited The BVI 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
FERRAA ZERERRE US$1.00 each RERK

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

100RERAR!.00%TL BRR
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40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

PEEET RN @)

2017%12H31H

40. R BAB z#Em (8)

(Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
HEREM
Place of Group’s
incorporation/ Particular of issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company Note ~operation paid up capital holding Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
FREER  BFLTF  A-RME
kL Wit ERRI/ S0 EETRMRRAHE FRE fE  LERE  EERE
Bi Tuo Yuan Technology The PRC Registered capital 100% = 100%  Inactive
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd i RMBA500,000 BEK
BRENR (RY)ERAT iR AR 500,000
Qrion Energy Intemational The Cayman Islands 100,000,000 ordinary shares 100% = 100%  Exploration, development
Inc. (‘OE) HSHE of US$0.001 each and production of coalbed
RRERRERERAR 100,000,000R EREE mefhiane
([&%Z) 001X ERR BR FENEERER
Xian Hong Chang Co,. Inc. The PRC Registered capital 100% = 100%  Inactive
EREEREREREERAR e RMB51,700,000 85K
&R ARH51,700,0007C
Pipeling International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HKS1,00 100% = 100%  Investment holding
ARERERAT B RERRRAR.00%T RE#R
Metro Standard Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1.00 100% = 100%  Inactive
BHERAT B RERRBRAT.0AT B2h
Ultraway International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HKS1,00 100% 100% - Investment holding
BRERERAR 3 1REBRRAA1.00%T RERR
S0G Energy Inc. Canada 1 ordinary share of 100% - 100% Participation in oil and gas
nex CAD1.00 each projects
RERER!.0MT 2 5Bk SERRIER
Sino Executive Limited The BVI 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
ABEARES of US$1.00 each RERR
100RERAA!.00%TL SRR
Total Orient Global Limited The BV 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
EEERRHS 0f US$1.00 each B AR
1005 RAE 00X ERR
Abundant Discovery Limited The BVI 100 ordinary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
HERRAT ABABRES of USS1.00 each RERK
1005 ERAE 00T, SR
2017 53 | PEBRRERERD A 177
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40. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

40. R BAB z#Em (8)

(Continued)
Proportion of ownership interest
HEREM
Place of Group’s
incorporation/ Particular of issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company Note operation paid up capital holding Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
AREER  BFLTF  A-XME
kL Wit EREL/ERRE EETRMRRAHE FRE B LERE  EERE
Golden Glow Holdings Limited The BVI 100 ordinary shares 5% = 75%  Investment holding
ZERERRE of US$1.00 each RERK
100 RAE 00T, SRR
ZEEEEERREARAA The PRC Registered capitl 75% - 75%  Raw coal washing and sales of
(ZREEREN) B RMB50,000,000 raw and cleaned coal
iHfE 2 AR 650,000,007 RERERHERRRRBR
Soperton Limited The BV 1 ordinary share 100% 100% - Investment holding
ABEARES of US$1.00 each Bk
1REREE! 00K, AR
S0G Capital Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HKS1,00 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(3 1REBRRAA1.00%8T RERR
REkFRERERR AR The PRC Registered capital 100% - 100%  Financial sevices
me RMB300,000,000 SHRH
& AR %300,000,0007C
Taijin Finance Group Limited 43 Hong Kong 10,000 ordlinary shares 100% = 100%  Inactive
ZeLREEARAT B of HK$10,000 e
10,0000 & AR 10,0007 7T
Notes: B &

Registered under the laws of the PRC as a wholly-owned

foreign enterprise

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.
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FETEY TN )

2017%12HA31H

41. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 41. FEEERRHERS

The Golden Glow Group, 75% owned subsidiaries of the
Company, has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The
NCI of all other subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by

the group are considered to be immaterial.

Summarised financial information in relation to the Golden
Glow Group, before intra-group eliminations, is presented

below:

NR BB T5%E 5 2 I B A 5Golden
Glowk BEAE S RNFIERER - A5 E
I IE100% % B FT A Kb i B 2 7 2 3E
TRESWRBLTERK -

A #AGolden Glows B (72 5% B A 3P 4K 85
A ZWEERBMB25)0T -

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET F&T
For the year ended 31 December H=E12A31BILEE
Revenue WA 417,637 273,223
Profit for the year F N F 3,225 11,667
Total comprehensive income ZHE A B 3,808 9,270
Profit allocated to NCI 2 Be = FEYERRAE 51 2 0/ A 806 2,917
For the year ended 31 December H=E12A31BILEE
Cash flows generated from/(used in) KBRS (FTH)
operating activities ZBEERE 124,281 (118,972)
Cash flows used in investing activities WEFRSFAZRESRE (1,213) (382)
Cash flows (used in)/from financing activites B&EE) (FT ), FIE 2
Hens (122,183) 119,274
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BERACRd) 8 885 (80)

2017 £ |

FEARERERLDA
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41. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

41. FEiERztEs ()

(Continued)

2017 2016
HK$’°000 HK$'000
THET FABT

As at 31 December ®12H31H
Current assets MEEE 197,072 182,435
Non-current assets ERBEE 54,928 82,347
Current liabilities mEAaE (171,147) (189,082)
Non-current liabilities EREFBEE (14,235) (13,652)
Net assets BEFE 66,618 62,048
Accumulated non-controlling interests Rt IEER A 16,655 15,512

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017
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42. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. HEMHBAE
On 1 September 2016, the Group disposed Key Wisdom R2016F9A1H  AEBEHERSEHK
Group that engaged in the exploration and sale of crude oil REERBIMRAREB 2 BEER -
and natural gas. The net assets of Key Wisdom Group as at BESENNTKBBZEEFEOT

the completion date were as follows:

HK$'000
FE T
Property, plant and equipment L E =) & 15,634
Intangible assets EBEAE 12,837
Trade and other receivables JFE g BR S K EL Aih i L BR 3R 6,865
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFAESEEY 1,846
Trade and other payables JE AT BR 3R % EL A FE A 3008 (8,589)
Deferred tax liabilities REHIBARE (11,240
Net assets disposed of HEZBEFE 17,353
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries included in profit FTALRE ZERERA
for the year from discontinued operations in the REFERIFCEER
consolidated statement of comprehensive 2 A 2 & B A A
income (note 10) Wezx (HsE10) 11,647
Total consideration FERRE 29,000
Satisfied by: RN
Cash paid BEfRE 1,450
Consideration receivables (note 28(ii) FE WA AE (BT 5E28(ii)) 27,550
29,000
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEA RS MEFRE
Cash consideration received BEWBESKE 1,450
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZREMBEEEEY (1,846)

(396)
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43. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH 43. FRKB—KMEASTIWEE

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 20 November 2017, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, Sino Executive Limited (“Sino Executive”)
acquired entire issued share capital of Taidin Finance Group
Limited (“Taidin”) from the transferor, Taidin Finance Group
Holdings Limited, at a consideration of HK$2,097,000.
Taidin held a lease agreement of the office premises and
office furniture and equipment which were occupied by the
transferor and did not carry out any significant business
transactions on acquisition date.

In the opinion of the directors, the acquisition did not
constitute an acquisition of business in substance. The
acquisition of the rental deposits paid and office furniture

E

R2017¥11H208 - "R RIZ2 2 B M
B 2 FlSino Executive Limited ([ Sino
Executive ) M # & F Taidin Finance
Group Holdings Limited & ZE & & &
BERAR ([F£]) 22HEHTR
AN KRB AE2,097,0008 T - TeHEE
B PTG PR B A 0 3 DA RO AR ML K R
EeHERZ BERKERBATERS
FRMEREBHRZS °

EERA5 WEEE L TMERBERT
WEENEERS AN REMRRE
BRREBWE—FZHBARKREEE -

and equipment were then considered as acquisition of
assets through acquisition of a subsidiary.

Therefore, the acquisition was not accounted for as a
business combination in accordance with HKFRS 3 -
Business Combination. The acquisition of Taidin was
completed on 20 November 2017.

At - R IE B S BT RS B 35 %
BE WETAS ARIIEEBRS G -
W& B 2017411 A20H 5T °

HK$°000
FE T
Property, plant and equipment W% - WEREE 297
Deposits paid BN 1,897
Cash and cash equivalents ReRASEEY 66
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFE 2,260
To be allocated to the carrying amount of property, BB EME  BELEZEZ
plant and equipment BREE (163)
Total consideration BB 2,097
Satisfied by: AN
Cash paid BEfEE 2,097
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEA RS MEFRE
Cash and cash equivalents acquired WEs2ReRREEEY 66
Cash consideration paid BENRERE (2,097)
2,031
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44. PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACTS

AND DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has one (2016: one)
production sharing contract in respect of the development

and production of coalbed methane and there is no (2016:

no) development contract in respect of development and

production of coalbed methane, crude oil and natural gas in
the PRC.

(i)

On 28 March 2006, OEl (which the Group acquired
on 15 November 2010) entered into the Sanjiao
CBM Project with China United Coalbed Methane
Corporation Ltd (“CUCMCL”) (the “PRC partner”) for
the exploration, development, production and sale of
the coalbed methane and other related or derivative
products that may exist in a total exploration area
of approximately 383 square kilometers subject to
reduction in accordance with the Sanjiao CBM Project
located in the Erdos Basin of Shanxi and Shaanxi
Provinces in the PRC (the “Contract Area”).

Pursuant to the Sanjiao CBM Project, OEl is engaged
as the foreign partner and operator to provide the
necessary technology know how and assign its
competent experts to explore, develop, produce and
sell coalbed methane or coalbed methane products
extracted from the Contract Area. OEl and PRC
partner have formed a joint management committee as
required under the Sanjiao CBM Project and appointed
representatives as members of the committee
The Joint
Management Committee is responsible to oversee the

(the “Joint Management Committee”).

operation in the Contract Area.

In April 2009, CUCMCL transferred all of its interest
and associated obligations with respect to certain
gas fields, including the areas covered by the Sanjiao
CBM Project, to PetroChina. The transfer was
approved by the State-owned Assets Supervision
and Administration Commission of the State Council.
PetroChina joined the Joint Management Committee of
the Sanjiao CBM Project.

FETEY TN )
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4. EmSRERRFHAESE

MR2017F12A8318 * AEBEEFREE —
18 (20164 : —1R) MEERFAZE R AEE
EBZEMDKAER ' MILE (20164 :
mHEEER REARRARAERE
Ef@sHESR -

R2006F3 A28H ' BIn % (A&
B R20105F11 158 WEEZ A 7))
HAmERREREMEAA ([F
BEER] ([RAFBMH]) FT—
P=RXEERIEE - AERRLLR
FEILFEE KRS 2 BRE A
H((ERME]) =R KEERIE
B R AE RS AL
HWIB3F HFABBEHMEEE (BF
HIR) NFE 2K ER R E M B 7
HOTHEE R ©

RE=KERER  BIFZIES
SINTRHREER  RHEBBZRK
AN e RIRTER 2 ER AR A
WK FE EENMHEEMRE
BZKERIRBRER - BRIFL
Hh T EHERB=KEREAR
ERRUBEAEEZES ([BE
g REERRLEZZES® Z
RE -BMESAREEANMEL

M2009F4 A - FEEE ERIEER
EThEH(BREEBA=ZXKESR
BEFEBEZRE) 2 EARIAHE
EfER TP AE ZBEERDRE
BErBREEEEEERZESH
e EHENMA=ZREERIBE

e -
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44. PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACTS
AND DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS
(Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

Under the Sanjiao CBM Project, the development of
the Contract Area is divided into the exploration phase
development and production phase. OEl is required
to conduct core testing and run pilot production
to ascertain the potential commercial value of the
coalbed methane field in the planned exploration area.

The exploration phase has an initial term of four years
and expired on 1 July 2010. The PRC partner has
extended the exploration period to 30 June 2012 in
order to develop a larger production scale. Based on
the supplementary agreement of the Sanjiao CBM
Project dated 28 October 2010,
period was extended to 6 years to 30 June 2012.

the exploration

The exploration period has been further extended
to 30 June 2014 by way of a further supplementary
agreement of the Sanjiao CBM Project dated on 6 July
2012.
agreement of the Sanjiao CBM Project was signed,

In December 2014, a further supplementary

the exploration period has been further extended to 30
June 2016. All costs incurred in the exploration phase
shall be borne by OEI.

On 20 November 2015, the Group received the official
written notification from NEA for the approval of ODP
and the project then enter into the development
and production phase. On commencement of
the development and production phase, all the
development and operating costs shall be borne as
to 70% by OEl and 30% by the PRC partner, except
if the PRC partner chooses not to participate in a
particular site. If the PRC partner chooses not to
participate in a particular site, all the development and
operating cost will be fully borne by OEl. Also, the
PRC partner’s participation can be less than 30% for
certain wells in respect of which the PRC partner will
not need to bear the development costs or will bear at
a specifically agreed percentage. As a result, the profit
sharing ratio will be adjusted according to their actual
participating interest in the coalbed methane field.

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017
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44. PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACTS
AND DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS
(Continued)

(i)

(i

(Continued)

The Sanjiao CBM Project has a term of thirty
years, with production period not more than twenty
consecutive years beginning from the date of
commencement of commercial production to the
expiry date of the production period as specified in the
ODP, unless production is suspended or abandoned
in accordance with the Sanjiao CBM Project or under
special circumstances, the production period can
be extended with the approval of the relevant PRC
authority.

In May 2010, the Group entered into an operation
agreement with an independent PRC third party (the
“PRC Party”) for the exploration, development and
production of crude oil and natural gas that existed
in an exploration area located in Shaanxi Province
in the PRC (the “Jinzhuang Oil Field”) for the period
from 1 May 2010 to 31 July 2011. The PRC Party is
a party to a production sharing contract with a State-
owned enterprise for the exploration, development
and production of crude oil and natural gas in the
Jinzhuang Oil Field (the “Jinzhuang PSC”) for a period
up to 2025. Pursuant to the operation agreement,
the Group was engaged as the operator to explore,
develop and produce crude oil and natural gas from
the oil field. The Group bored all development and
operation costs and shared 95% of the income from
sale of crude oil and the entire income from the sale
of natural gas extracted from the Jinzhuang Oil Field.
The operation of the Jinzhuang Oil Field was jointly
controlled by the Group and the PRC Party. At the
same time, Kenwin Group based in Hong Kong,
acquired the rights and obligations of the Jinzhuang
PSC from the PRC Party. The Group signed a
memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with the
owner of Kenwin Group and paid an interest free and
refundable deposit of HK$60,000,000 to the owner
such that the Group had the option to acquire the
entire equity interest of Kenwin Group.
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44. PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACTS
AND DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTS
(Continued)

(i

(i)

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

(Continued)

In June 2011, the Group and the PRC party agreed
to extend the operation period to 31 October 2011.
In November 2011, the Group acquired the Jinzhuang
Qil Field by acquiring 100% equity interest in Kenwin
Group.

In September 2016, the Group disposed the Jinzhuang
Qil Field with detail in note 42.

During 2009, the Group acquired through a transfer
agreement and an assignment agreement the rights
and obligations to participate in two oil exploitation
projects for the exploitation, development and
production of a number of oil wells, each for a
period up to 2023. The oil wells of these projects
are separately located in Liuluoyu, Shannxi Province,
the PRC (the “Liuluoyu Oil Field”) and in Yanjiawan,
Shannxi Province, the PRC (the “Yanjiawan Oil
Field”). The Group also acquired, under the transfer
agreement and assignment agreement, the business
assets including oil and gas properties, the rights to
use the on-site plant, machinery and facilities for the
exploration, evaluation and development, and assumed
the liabilities associated these oil fields.

As advised by the Company’s PRC legal advisers,
the Group is entitled to the rights and obligations
of the development contract and participate in the
exploitation and production of crude oil in the Liuluoyu
Qil Field and Yanjiawan QOil Field. Since the Group has,
in practice and substance, the power to govern the
financial and operational policies over the operation of
the oil fields, the Group incorporated the results of the
oil production and the related assets and liabilities of
these all fields into its financial statements.

In September 2016, the Group disposed the Liuluoyu
Qil Field and Yanjiawan Qil Field with detail in note 42.
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45.

46.

SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH

TRANSACTIONS

a)  During 2017, interest on borrowings of HK$7,961,000
(2016: HK$30,633,000) was capitalised as property,
plant and equipment and oil and gas exploration and
evaluation assets (note 9(a)).

b)  During 2017, provision for environmental restoration
and decommissioning costs which increased by
HK$1,537,000 (2016: increased by HK$2,556,000)
was included in the property, plant and equipment
(note 17).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
owners and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
owners’ returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the capital structure of the
Group consists of net debts, which include other payables
and accruals, provisions and borrowings, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

45.

46.

FETEY TN )
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EXFBREXD

(a) R2017F AN - fg & F £7,961,000
7 7T (20164F : 30,633,000/ 7T )
BEERERYME BERZEAR
R ENER R AT & E (BT EE9(a)) ©

(b) R2017E R REBEEFELF
FB & B &1 01,537,000/ 7T (2016
& #02,556,0005% 7T) B it A
¥ BEREZEMFI7)A -

EXER
AEEEREAZEZARDREAE
BEMESEARBELEEELE  {th
25 18 B R R 7K S AR Y B 2 B AR 75 E
BUARERSSEKRAZRE BERE
B A B iE B Ko [7) E At K 25 48 BE & 55 2K
Mg e

AEEBEERELREAHEARBERERT
RER  fMERSEEKFEERTA
EREEZERSEAE ALRER FE AR
MR Z TR MRE 2 BEGE I
HEKHERE 2 ZCEERNRBEIEL A
o

EBRTEBEZBERLT  AEEZE
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46. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 46.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part
of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through payment of dividends, new
share issue as well as the issue of new debts or repayment
of existing debts. The net debts-to-equity ratios at 31
December 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

EXAERE(8)

EETHHEREBETRN - RiTZ
TEz— REFHEAKNARESHEE
AZHBRBETER BREEEZHE
& AREBRSERT RS - FIRET
BUOFEEBXEEREGEL  HEE
BARERERFE T o )R20174F K201645
12831 A B FEHESLERNAT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET F&T
Total debts: BERSARE
Trade, other payables and accruals FERTBR SR - H e 50E
LIEREH 407,832 349,603
Borrowings BE 533,888 322,109
Provisions &% 6,709 4,810
Convertible notes AR =R 1,238,031 1,230,412
Financial liabilities at fair value through EAFEEBERSEREDN
profit or loss MBEE 37,895 224,937
2,224,355 2,131,871
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RREEFEEY (21,766) (251,530)
Net debts B FE 2,202,589 1,880,341
Equity T 3,164,495 3,091,643
Net debts-to-equity ratio B F B R 70% 61%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency risks,
commodity price risk and equity price risk arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. These risks are
limited by the Group’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and arises primarily from
the Group’s trade and other receivables and cash at banks.

(i) Trade and other receivables

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

(i) Cash with banks

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing
cash and deposits with financial institutions that meet
the established credit rating or other criteria. Given these
high credit ratings, management does not expect any
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet
its liabilities when due, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

FETEY TN )

2017%12HA31H

47. R E R ER

EE RBEEL AX E¥ER - B
mERE R LA ERERERAEE
ZABEBBRTELE - ZSRARIE
BAKEZHMBEEBRREER (BT
30) 15 LABR ) ©

(a) EEREE
FEERBEMEFPFXVBEIEZIZ AR
ERTANEAMERANEEY B EE
ZRER ERRRFEREAEEZIE
WER R R E M ERER RIRITRS °

() FEYAR R A il fEUYER 7K
AEBZzEERBREEREERERK
Hihrl B - EBEAMRTEZEER
BV EREBEENMAS 2 RESEER
% o N20174 R2016%F12H31H » K&
EMEs K EEETRR -

@) RiTHZE
AEBENRE MF RN B EE LR
BEERR ZEHBERBEHEINRR
AEEFRIEMBRE ERZFHH
REBESEETARS EEEEDYL
BEMRXZT TERETERE -

(b) FENE & E S
mBETRR A EERERMBGE T
INEETAERAEEZRAR AKEE
BRBESZHEREERREABERN
RBECERNIBMEAE CAEEEA
AEMREEXZERABEXIERR -
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. B REKRER (§)

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans
to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The contractual maturities of financial liabilities are shown as

(b) HENVE & EPE ()

AEEBATEINELERBTEERS
Bl RRASEBKZEHRERMEER
IWRAERERRER R EHEESHE
BELABEEIEEREFALARAE
EEHE - ARBECBRRAEHERE
MBESHTRKREBRETBERY
NHEREEFEN RS HEERERA
BRCEBESF UREZZHBHRE
ZIEERERAENEEHREARD

MBREEZEOIHBERET

below:
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 1yearbut  2years but
Carrying undiscounted year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
BHRFR 1ER, 1EH)E 2ENE
FEE ReR2sH BEX B2 T {B5E I SEILE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS' 000
TAL AL AL AL AL AL
2017 17F
Non-derivatives: I
Trade, other payables and accruals ERER - HtENFER
BlRER 407,832 407,832 407,832 - - -
Convertible notes TARZE 1,238,031 1,522,140 407,504 1,114,636 - -
Borrowings &E 533,888 781,081 116,299 43875 323,531 294,048
Financial liabilties at fair value through R ATFERBERIIKRH
profit or loss i%aR 37,89 37,89 37,89 - - -
Total ) 2,217,646 2,748,948 969,530 1,158,511 323,531 294,048
2016 20165
Non-derivatives: 3fE
Trade, other payables and accruals EEN - EtEAFER
RRER 349,608 349,608 349,608 - - -
Convertible notes THREE 1230412 1,455,594 104,663 371,575 979,356 -
Borrowings f&E 322,109 523,756 25,049 25,049 57,018 415,980
Financialliabilties at fair value through ~ RATERBERIIKH
profit or loss iBeR 204,937 224,937 204,937 - - -
Total ) 2,127,061 2,553,890 704,452 396,824 1,086,634 415,980
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s fair value
interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings and
convertible notes. Borrowings and convertible notes were
issued at fixed rates which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group has no cash flow interest rate
risk as there are no borrowings which bear floating interest
rates. The Group has not used any financial instruments to
hedge potential fluctuations in interest rates.

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s loss for the year by approximately
HK$50,200,000 (2016: Nil) before the consideration of
capitalisation of interest. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the end of reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for the
borrowings in existence at that date. The 100 basis point
increase or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
recognised assets and liabilities that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. At 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
related hedges were made by the Group.

FETEY TN )

2017%12HA31H

47. BHEGER (4§)

(c) ¥ 3= bz
%2017$&2016¢12ﬂ31 H AEBEZ
AFEANNERBREZEXRAEE R
ZER - AEERREEMEENEER
MK EEmMASAFENRAR - 6
REABEERZIDMETE LA E
B ERES RS EREE - NEB WX
KA T AR EETEE -

R2017F12A31H » (HstEfA H &
BB TEZERT  FEEEiEgm/
BREICOEEGESASEAFEER
# 40, 2> 4950,200,0005 7T (20164
) (Tt REXEFE) - HEESN
TIBREF RSB A RE AR LR %
£ BEHARZBEEZEENERR
BREETE - NSO D100EE T AE
BEYWT —FEHREBHZATHER R
ZATRERIBEB) 2 fhET -

(d) E%&REME
REBAX s ERRAREERE B
EBNEEB LN BT EZEE
REENAME - B20174F K%2016F12 A
318 - AEEWEELEEE -
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the

end of reporting period date to currency risk arising from

recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency

other than the functional currency of the entity to which they

relate. The sensitivity analysis includes balances between

group companies where the denomination of the balances

is in a currency other than the functional currencies of the

lender or the borrower.

47. BB EGER (8)

(d) E¥EME (&)

() FERRZZEEREE

TREDI AR B 3 R A R A A
RUNEHERBZDEEEHE U ZEHET
BZEEXBEMEAZZEEREBRFSE -
BREIMEESBEARRME &L
MEE/BHRTAEDTREHD 2NEEE
Aohz E¥5HE -

2017 2016
Australian Australian

dollars usD RMB CAD dollars Usb RMB CAD

an E3s N ny B e AR® s

'000 '000 000 '000 000 000 000 000

n i n r T T T T

Short-term investment i - - 64,300 - - - 64,300 -

Trade and other receivables  FEMUR 3 R 2 ft FE M 3% - 3 4,551 - - 8 302 45,002

Notes receivable* ElhZE 2,000 - - - 2,000 - - -

Cash and cash equivalents ~ B4 RBELSEN 2 3 2 4 1 20,386 2 5
Amounts due from group ~~ EREB A ZE

companies - 130,000 18,000 10,604 - 130,000 20,175 -

Trade, other payables and ~ JEFTERSN - EfofE(5UA

accruals RERER - - - (1,758) = = - -
Amounts due to group EfEBARE

companes - [0094)  (5678)  (9.259) C o pudt) @718 410

Convertible notes RRZE - (130,000) - - - (130,000 - =

Overall net exposure BERREE 2,002 (200,905) (69,899) (402) 2,001 (224,522) (11,987) 37,617

*

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

Included in interest in a jointly controlled entity
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s (loss)/profit after income tax expense and
accumulated losses and other components of consolidated
equity in response to reasonably possible changes in the
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of reporting period. The sensitivity
analysis includes balances between Group companies
where the denomination of the balances is in a currency
other than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower. A positive number below indicates an decrease in
loss/increase in profit and decrease in accumulated losses
where the HKD weakens against the relevant currency. For
a strengthening of the HKD against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on loss/profit
and accumulated losses, and the balances below would be

FETEY TN )

2017%12HA31H

47. U B RESER (48)

(d) E¥EEE)

(i) BRI
TRETHRBREARERSERNEEE
REARRE R ZSMNEE R Z ] gE & B &
ERAEERMAEH X L& (BB, 8
M & BT B 18 A M fw & HE o H A 4H AP
DRIBHEY GRESTEELIRKE
NRRIEZER MxFEHRIIAET
HfEHT 2 EW AN 2 BHEETE - i
BT A ABERRS AT EBERRER
FEEEIRD kR BERD - 8
BTAEBERRY  AITEHER/
AR RFBEREKEBESFRERRZ

TE O BATEHRAKES /AR

negative.
2017 2016
(Increase)/ (Increase)/
decrease in decrease in
loss after loss after
taxation and taxation and
Weakening  accumulated Weakening accumulated
in HKD losses in HKD losses
BRBEBER B 12 B 1B K
RitE5E R ER
BTERE  (Em R ArEE  GEm),/ R
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
TERT FHET
RMB AR 2% (1,679) 2% (267)
CAD mnrc 2% (50) 2% 4,928
Australian dollars BT 3% 366 3% 335

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
end of reporting period and had been applied to each of the
Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for the financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

B 47 T R SNETE 5 2 B3 4
& AR A RES LB A R B A R EE T
EEEERZEGESHBTARSR
TEERR MAAEMEH (LER
RE) RETREE -
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the end of the next reporting period.
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the HKD and the USD would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the USD against
other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the effects on each
of the Group entities’ profit or loss after income tax expense
and equity measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the end
of reporting period for presentation purposes. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2016.

(e) Commodity price risk

The Group engages in petroleum-related activities. The oil
market is affected by global and regional demands and
supplies. Prices of onshore crude oil are determined with
reference to the prices of crude oil on the international
markets. A decline in the prices of crude oil and refined
products could adversely affect the Group’s financial
position. The Group historically has not used derivative
financial instruments to hedge against potential price
fluctuations of crude oil.

(f) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity instruments classified as available-for-sale
equity securities which are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong. Listed investments held in the available-
for-sale portfolio have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly for
performance against expectations. The portfolio is diversified
in terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.
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47.

48.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(f) Equity price risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from
changes in the Company’s own share price to the extent
that the Company’s own equity instruments underlie the fair
values of derivatives liabilities of the Group. At the end of
reporting period, the Group is exposed to this risk through
the conversion rights attached to the convertible notes
issued by the Company as disclosed in note 34.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on equity price risk includes the
Group’s financial instruments, which fair value or future
cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in their
corresponding or underlying asset’s equity price. If the
prices of the respective equity instruments had been 20%
higher/lower, loss for the year would increase/decrease by
nil and other component of equity would increase/decrease
by HK$1,081,000 (2016: HK$918,000).

COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments - Lessee

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases were payable as follows:

47.

48.

msmzmE

2017%12HA31H

HEEREEE (&)

() IxFEHERE(E)
MAREzTETABERAFEZER
KARRFZRATA - BIARKE A
ARBARF Z REZBMAZRERR
MNP ESAFT W E - R EHAEE R
B AEBRARRBAETAIRERES
B 7 <z 460 B e T AR X2 b LR

RAREERER 2HRESTBEELREEH
ZUMBITE AQAFEIARARRERE
HEREMESEEEE 2 RAERE
BmEE  MERATAZE®R LR,
T¥20% - AFEEEB&EEM RS T
V& TT ¢ T E AR AN 26 > A A 35 a0 A
1,081,000/8 7 (20164F : 918,000/ 7T ) °

e

(a) HEEZHERE - RKHEAN
MR20174 K20165F12A31H @ ER A
BHCEME 2 RRKRAERIBLEE
N

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Within 1 year 1FER 6,144 7,170
After 1 year but within 5 years 1 1% E5F A 4,244 7,253
10,388 14,4283

The Group is the lessee of a number of properties held
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to six years without an extension option. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEERREKEHERAZEYMEL
EBEA—BME REFHREZNTH
MNF1z65 TEEHEEE-FF
HEMERERLEHRSE -

2017 £, | FEHRERERAA

195



V“ Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2017

48.

49,

50.

196

Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited

COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Capital commitments

48.

iR (4F)
(b) BARFKIE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FHET

Commitments in respect of the Sanjiao ME=REERIAR & E
CMB Project 18,333 39,803
Commitments in respect of the LNG project iR L RARIEE 2 & 69,090 64,089
87,423 103,892

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Environmental liabilities

The Group engages in the exploration, development
and production of coalbed methane resources. The
consequence of coalbed mining includes dismantlement and
demolition of infrastructure in the mining sites. The Group
may have obligations to make payments for restoration and
rehabilitation of the land after the sites have been extracted.
As at 31 December 2017, a provision of HK$6,709,000
(2016: HK$4,810,000) was made in the consolidated
statement of financial position (note 32).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
no related party transactions have been entered into during
the year which might reasonably affect any decisions made
by the users of these consolidated financial statements.

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 12, all the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 13, and other five (2016: nine) senior
management personnel are as follows:

49.

50.

HBEE

FHRRRZEBRE
AEELEREBRERZHIE  FEM
EE G METEEBERRZZRBEFRE
FFBESZEALE AEEREE
EEBBTKFARE I NERLHE
REREZERZER - R2017F12H318 -
RGBS AR R WYEH 7 6,709,00078 7T
(20164F : 4,810,000 7T) < B (M=
32) e

FAEALX S

BB B MEASTREEN - F RS
TSI AR R B R A B SRR A (E
AIBMEHZRAEEEARYEZHEA
25 -

FTEEHEASME
AEBETZEEAEBME (BREME2
IR BECERNARBEEN ZHE
MEBMEEZENEREHEEX
2 RIERA A% (20164 - ) Hit
BREEABMNZRBE)ANT

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

THET FHT

Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 15,033 19,647
Post-employment benefits BEB 1218 71 - =
15,033 19,547

Total remuneration is included in “employee costs” (see note
9(0)).
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51. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 5. B EERMBEABZYEH
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY =
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and MR2017F K2016F12 A1 HER Z A&

financial liabilities recognised as at 31 December 2017 and MR EERMBEREZEABES AN

2016 may be categorised as follows: T~
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT F& T
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEEBERSERED
profit or loss MBEEE 51,606 22,621
Available-for-sale investments AEHESREE 5,409 4,592
Loans and receivables (including cash B3k % pE IR
and bank balances) (BIEE S MRITER) 563,007 780,747
620,022 807,960
Financial liabilities kA=K
Financial liabilities at fair value through EAVTEEBRERRDY
profit or loss HHasE 37,895 224,937
Financial liabilities measured REBIHKAFTEZ
at amortised cost B%aE 2,144,779 1,902,124
2,182,674 2,127,061

52. AF{HE
(a) LHBRAFEHABZHMBIA

52. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
(@) Financial instruments not measured at fair
value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value include
trade, notes and other receivables, deposits, loan
receivables, short-term investment, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other payables, borrowings and
convertible notes. The fair value of all these financial assets

WIEAFEFE W BT ABEEK
BRK - EWER R EMEWER - Re
BRER RHEE RekReEFE
Y ENERFREMEMTKIE BER
AMRER FIEZSVBEERVE
and financial liabilities are not materially different from their BEZATEHEAEREEEMRS °
carrying amounts.

BB BREGRRFEL R RE EE R
LEBENVHEERMBRAENATE
T2EMSREEE -

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market prices.

2017 £, | FEHRERERAA 197



(‘]’ Notes to the Financial Statements

31 December 2017

52. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 52. AF{#i & (&)
(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair (@) EFBRAFEHFEZHMBIA
value (Continued) (#8)

The valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs
used in determining the fair value measurement of level 2
and level 3 financial instruments, as well as the relationship
between key observable inputs and fair value are set out
below.

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value
Information about level 3 fair value measurements

(i)  The fair value of contingent consideration is estimated
using a discounted cash flow method.

TXHINEEF2EREIBMBIA
ZAVFEFERMERNGEERMEE
ATABREARBE UERTEAJHER
BEEANFEZENERE -

(b) BAFHEGEZHBIA
BEHFEIBAFEFAENEN

() HBEREBZRAFEEARSREN
BAGE -

Significant unobservable inputs BRI B R &8 A SR

2017 2016
Discount rate Prif = 22.36% 22.08%
Growth rate BR= 3% 5%
Increase in discount rate and growth rate by 1% and 1% IR ERRERRD RN % LI

would increase the fair value of the contingent consideration
by HK$16,058,000 and HK$3,313,000.

(i)  The fair value of derivative component in convertible
notes is estimated using a binomial options pricing

model.

Significant unobservable inputs

1946 B BB K E 2T EH 5 M
16,058,000/ 7T 523,313,000/ 7T °

(i) ARRERS ATFEER=HRH
WS B A -

ERTAHREABE

2017 2016
Dividend yield A% Bk 25 =& 0% 0%
Volatility B 4 24.94% 17.35%

-28.62% -36.99%

Increase in the volatility by 1% would decrease the fair
value of the derivative component in convertible notes by
HK$32,348,000.
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52. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) AFEEEFE (8)
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (b) BRAFEEZHBIAR (8)
(Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial TRIBHIZAFEYIEOPTETLARA

instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value FEBREI D 2D :

hierarchy:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F1E : HRABEXAERNEERMSHZ
identical assets or liabilities; WEOCREFHE)

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within FoE: FHUEHE (AERK) EE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or (BPAHRERITE) BIRENEHE
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly FIENRECEEREBELZ
(i.e. derived from prices); and £ N

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based FEIE: WHBBABERMEHIEZE
on observable market data (unobservable inputs). EXBEZEE (T #ERyg

&) o
2017
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E Ep) SE3E st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFHET TFHET FET
Financial asset at fair value BAFE{EEBERIIER
through profit or loss W& E
- Contingent consideration - BRE - - 51,606 51,606
Available-for-sale investments oEHESMEE
— Listed securities in Hong Kong - BB LEMEH
at fair value (BRAFE) 5,409 - - 5,409
Financial liabilities at fair value $Z A FE{EHEBIEETIER
through profit or loss BB &
— Derivative component in - MRERZITE
convertible notes B - - (37,895) (37,895)
2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ FoE F3E BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
Financial asset at fair value BEAFEEBEZRE
through profit or loss VY75 & B
- Contingent consideration -HBRE - - 22,621 22,621
Available-for-sale investments At EemEE
- Listed securities in Hong Kong -BEB MRS
at fair value (EZAr¥E) 4,592 - - 4,592
Financial liabilities at fair value BEAFEEBBERIE
through profit or loss VBT BLE
— Derivative component in - A BRRERZITE
convertible notes B - - (224,937) (224,937)

There were no transfers between levels during the year.

2017 £ |

FRAEBR ML BEETAEE -
PEBRRERERA A
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52. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value

53.

54.

200

(Continued)

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value
based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as

52. AF{HFTE (&)
(b) BMAFEFEZHEIR ()

REEATABEEARE (F3B) &
NFEARNTHTAZHERNOT

follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET F& T
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEBBBIIIRN
profit or loss MBEE
At 1 January E’\1 H1H 22,621 22,417
Change in fair value NEEEDH 26,275 2,705
Settled during the year FANEE (17,000) (4,235)
Exchange adjustment PE W 58 2 19,710 1,734
At 31 December MW12H318 51,606 22,621
Financial liabilities at fair value through AT {EHZEBERIIRE
profit or loss HMBaE
At 1 January M1A18 224,937 =
At issue date EAE‘;’?/_ S-E - 277,746
Change in fair value NEEED) (187,042) (52,089)
Exchange adjustment PE X % - (720)
At 31 December M12A31H 37,895 224,937
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 53. SREHAIEEIE
() In March 2018, the Company issued a total of () M2018F3A - AEEZRERE®

(i

3,380,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.053
per ordinary share to an independent investor. The
net proceeds from this subscriptions of approximately
HK$178,000,000 are mainly used for the settlement of
certain financial obligations of the Group.

Subsequent to year end, the Group entered into an
agreement with one of convertible notes holders that
based on the Subscription Agreement and Bond
Instrument dated 1 February 2016, the maturity date
of the bonds is extended to 18 May 2018 while the
conversion right attached expired as stated in the said
original agreements (note 34: Convertible note 3).

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018.
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§0.0538 T2 B M — 2 BULR
& % % 17 & #£3,380,000,000/% %
B - ZRBFERE SR FHE
#)7%178,000,0008 7T * =2 A 1E
BEE T AEEMBAE -

iy MNEH#HBR%E AEBEEEFR -]
RBRBBEZEFEBEAENDZE &
20162 A 18 FT % 5] A9 32 8 1 =&
MEFNEAEE  BEFFHEA
E=2018F5 188 i M &5 &9 #2
A& 4 B3 _E it R A B Byt ) 25 2k 3
(KI5E34 : ATRRERER (=)

54. MR FT2Z2EHM
Bk E A ESER2018F3H29R
FEME R B B o



(’ b EHEIERERAS
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